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THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

Canal Contract Information

Date From To Miles
May 24, 1848 Terre Haute Point Commerce 42
Crosscut Canal Clay / Owen / Greene Co.

Nov 15, 1848 Point Commerce Newberry 17 ( Details Next Page )
Greene Co.

June 27, 1849 Newberry Maysville 23
Daviess Co.

Nov 14, 1849 Maysville Petersburg
Daviess / Pike Co.

Sep 6, 1850 Petersburg Evansville *54
Pike / Warrick / Vanderburgh Co.
White River Aqueduct built in 1848
Point Commerce - Evansville 111
Surveyed R.H. Fontleroy July 2, 1845
*Petersburg - Pigeon Reservoir = 23 miles
*Pigeon Resevoir - Pigeon Feeder Dam = 13 miles
*Pigeon Feeder Dam - Evansville = 18 miles (built in 1836-38)
Pigeon Dam contract dated May 27, 1837

Dates of Importance

Sep 1846 “Daniel Webster” - 1st boat to Attica
July 31, 1847 Wabash & Erie transferred by State to Trustees - Terre Haute
Oct 27, 1847 “Planet” arrives in Lodi
Oct 25, 1849 “EA Hannegan” & “GR Walker” - st boats to Terre Haute
May 12, 1850 *“Aeolus” - 1st boat to Terre Haute from Eel River
June 5, 1850 Crosscut Canal opened to Point Commerce
Aug 21,1852 Canal open from Toledo to Maysville
June 25,1853 Canal watered to Evansville
July 29,1853 “Pennsylvania” arrives in Evansville

1860 Canal south of Terre Haute abandoned

Water maintained from Pigeon Reservoir to Evansville
1864 Canal bed filled in at Evansville

Compiled by: Robert F. Schmidt
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Point Commerce - Newberry

Summary of Contracts

November 15, 1848

Number
f

Q
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Estimated ! Engineer’s
cost at Con-| estimate
tract prices. | of cost.
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of
Work.

Names
of
Contractors.
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No. 113,
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Road Bridge,
Road Bridge,
Lock No. 6, #s5
Plain,

Plain,

Plain,

Plain,

Road Bridee,

Rock No. 7, 740
Plain,

Plain,

Wood Culvert,
Plain,

Road Bridge.

Plain, ]

Lock No. 8, #57

Plain

Wood Culvert,

Road Bridge, wSgr59

Locks No. 9 and 10, and
Tow Path Bridge,

Tow Path, "

Tow Path,

Tow Path,

Tow Path,

Tow Path,

Tow Path,

Tow Path,

" |Tow Path,

White River Dam,

$165,110 00

$167,875 00

Whole length 17 miles and 6 chains, or §9,831 per mile,

State Line to Terre Haute

Cross-cut Canal

Facts &

Figures

Miles
227
42

Point Commerce - Evansville 111

240 ft - Sugar Creek / West Union
200 ft - Eel River / Logansport

194 ft - Patoka River / Glezen

Total 380

* 7 from Pigeon Dam to Millersburg - 19 miles

# Locks # Stone
40 17
14 2
19 * 2

73 21

Laurens, Gallig'r & Co.
Solomoa Clune. .
Allison, Hanch't & Co.
Allison, Hanch’t & Co.
Patrick Kirney & Co.
Robert Lowry

Hugh Fulton.

Hugh Fulton.

- |Hugh Falton.

James Byrnes.

J. 8. Freeman.

James Byrnes,

Hugh Fulton.
Gallagher & Wallers.
James Byrnes.

James Adams & Co.
Michael Harrington.
Groverman & Bourne.
H, & J. Hermeling.
Robert Lowry.

Clark & Ragan.
White & Murray.

H. & J. Hermeling.
J. & T. Tarvin.

Calvin & Kirk.
Stewart & Knight
Stewart & Knight.

1Stewart & Knight.

Stewart & Knight.
Stewart & Knight.
Stewart & Knight. -
Stewart & Knight
Stewart & Knight.

Stewart & Knight.

Locks
13

1

4

18

12 locks in remaining 92 miles

Aqueducts

510 ft - White River / Petersburg Roofed

Page 2

Roofed
Open Trunk
Open Trunk

Compiled by

Robert F. Schmidt

# Aqueducts
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GIBSON COUNTY
1876
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THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

TOUR ROUTE DETAILS

INTRODUCTION

The Wabash and Erie Canal's final link that joined
the Cross Cut Canal below Terre Haute to the Central
Canal's completed portion out of Evansville at Port
Gibson was built from the north to the south. This tour
book is written opposite of the direction in which the
canal was built but in the direction the tour will follow --
southwest to northeast. The tour has been changed
from the direction usually followed on Wabash and Erie
tours to ease the exiting of the buses in certain areas
and to accommodate our lunch schedule. Anyone
wishing to follow the route as the canal was historically
built, must work from the back of this route to the front
and change the direction of the turns. Remember once
the canal was completed boats traveled in both
directions.

This route is written in the following manner. The
direction of the turn is given first and is followed by the
general compass direction in parentheses. The name
and number of the road/street or a general description of
the turn is then given. This is followed by an
approximate number of miles from the turn to the next
twrn,

(N) = North, (S} = South, (NE) = Northeast, etc.

US = Federal highway, SR = State Road, CR = County
Road, St. = Street

Points where the tour will stop, places that will be
pointed out while driving by, and alternate sites will be
in bold type. These alternate sites cannot be reached
by the bus due to tonnage limits on bridges, lack of turn
arounds for the buses, low wires, etc. These can be
reached by car and are worth seeing.

The stops will be fully described in the engineer’s
report and elsewhere in the book.

HEADQUARTERS AT
EXECUTIVE
INN VINCENNES

The buses will leave the inn and
proceed south on US 41 to Fort
Branch, Indiana where the “Final Link Tour” begins.
This will take approximately 40 minutes and will give
your tour docent time in which to give you a general
orientation.

THE TOUR

Turn Left (E)} on SR 168 -- 3.5 miles

Left (N) CR 350 E -- 1 mile by Kruse Cribs

Left (W) CR 600 S -- 3/4 mile -- cross canal at  Pigeon
Creek
Right (N) CR 280 E which is first road on right -- 3/4

mile

Right (E}) CR 525 S which turns and becomes CR 550 S
- 14 ton bridge limit. The embankment seen here over
which the road runs is for the reservoir dam. The
bridge crosses the sluice for the canal feeder.

GIBSON COUNTY

STOP # 1 Pigeon Creek Reservoir
Located at pig farm

PIGEON RESERVOIR - 1027 acres

it
PR CANAL
FEEDER ->
$* % 23 e
LOCK # 67 —> - '
7' LIFT- TIMBER & 2=, { 24~
4 § L2y 2¢
2 »§ o aE 29 jé
il L'J.-\';/ ! e ]
| e, B
PORT GIESON

Continue (E) on CR 5560 S
Left (N) CR 350 E -- 4 miles

Right (E) SR 64

Page 4




THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington
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1876
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THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

Right (S) CR 450 E Fairview Church Sign

Left (E) CR 200 S comes outon CR 1756 S

STOP # 2 Watered Canal Prism

We are on a high spot looking down into the prism. We
will follow this watered area of the canal for a short
distance.

Proceed into
Francisco

Left (N) 5E0 E

Right (E) SR 64

Photo by Phil Bennett

Left (N) 850 E Black Beauty
Coal Company
== 2 1/2 miles

After passing jog in the road an open area appears on
the left and you can see the Keg Creek embankment.
Note high canal bed profile to your right and left.
Right (E) 50 N

STOP # 3 Box Culvert No. 203 (Buck Creek)

CANAL FLOW -> CANAL PRISM CANAL FLOW.

= |

=F - .
\—CREEK Fl..OW—/

BOX CULVERT

Stan Schmitt

Left (N) SR 57 Cross Patoka River -- 4.5 miles

This old canal town of Dongola was located on the
south side of old Patoka aqueduct which crossed the
Patoka River.

Page 6

PIKE COUNTY

HISTORICAL CANAL MARKER at left side of road in
canal prism. Note how high canal bed was above the
current road. The canal angled across the road here.
From this point and across the valley SR 57 is on top of
the canal embankment.

Photo by Bob Schmidt

STOP # 4 Deep Cut

The beginning of the deep cut is very evident along SR
57 after passing the site of former coal conveyor into
the deep cut. The tour stop is located at right side of
road between the towns of Glezen (S) and Willisville (N)
-- place for bus to pull off road

Right (S) 50 W near Willisville

Right (SW) 1256 W

STOP # 5 Watered Canal

Proceed on 125 W

Right (W) first gravel road to SR 57

Right (N) SR
57 to
Petersburg

Photo by Bob Schmidt




THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

HISTORICAL CANAL MARKER at Dairy Queen on left 'wé'rr.c-;‘;«'.rréggs'—r-_-":"--'-;;7"
side of SR 57 between 1st and 3rd streets where canal 5 - 2 "lfgi— .
warehouse was located. <

\0 free

f.‘?‘z’;@qtuﬂ%‘h; N \é

-~ Cispozal

BLUFFS PRISM - Behind Waterworks facility

L on SR 57 to SR 61

L on SR 61 to River Rd.

L on River Rd. that winds through the hills along
the bluff. Waterworks facility is on the left. You need
to enter into the chain link fence and go to the back of
the facility to see watered cut of canal bed. This is
before Prides Creek and the river.

Back track route to SR 57

L on SR 57 to continue tour

Photo - Robert Schmidt

STOP # 6 Aqueduct Site before you cross the Gil
Hodges bridge

This was the longest aqueduct on the Wabash
and Erie Canal. The East and West Forks of the White
River meet to the west of the bridge. Note how the
canal was raised to cut through the low valley. On the
north side of the river below the current railroad bridge
some cut stones from the aqueduct are still visible, The
south abutment of the agueduct was incorporated into
the railroad bridge abutment.

CANAL WAREHOUSE 1849 PETERSBURG UIKE . WHITE RIVER COVERED  momoors
557 FT iR
5 PIERS
ALTERNATE TOUR SITES (Car route)
42' ABOVE
RIWWER :
SCHOOL HOUSE DEEP CUT - Behind Sewage
Treatment facility
SR 57 to 4th Street in Petersburg
L on 4th Street
L on Spruce Street past treatment facility over
rutted road to field -- Deep Cut is on your right . T enas
IMILAR TO g <Ay
Back track route to SR 57 A R R _ e
194 FT  —=
ABUTMENT —




THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

Railroad bridge across the East Fork of the Railroad bridge across the East Fork of the
White River looking to the south. This White River looking to the north. The
bridge is at the location of the longest aqueduct that crossed here sat 42 fect above
aqueduct on the Wabash and Erie Canal. the water level and was 557 feet in length.
The southern abutment remains and is The railroad piers sit where the aqueduct
incorporated into the railroad structure. piers once stood. The Gil Hodges bridge is
Photo - Robert Schmidt on the right on SR 57. Photo - R. Schmidt

This huge stone block and the others
scattered around the area nearby are
from the White River aqueduct.
These are found on the north bank of
the river under today’s railroad
bridge. Many of them have been
carried away over time by the
flooding of the river. Photo - R.
Schmidt

The paneling in this room of the
Barrett Memorial Pike County Library
was cut from timber used in the old
Wabash and Erie canal aqueduct
across the White River. The planks
were cut from oak and poplar timbers.
Austin and Una Rudolph had them cut
into paneling and donated them to the
library. Photo - Robert Schmidt

This Indiana State Format Marker
sits northwest of Petersburg on SR
61. It marks the old buffalo trace
that ran from Louisville, KY, to
Vincennes, IN. Photo- R. Schmidt

Page 8
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DAVIESS COUNTY
1876
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THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

DAVIESS COUNTY

Proceed north on SR 57 to Washington

Along this stretch of SR 57 for 2 1/2 miles north from
the river the road occupies the canal embankment and
the railroad occupies the towpath.

LUNCH
{Omit this section if doing a car tour)

Right (E) on National Highway to Montgomery and the
Gasthoff Restaurant for lunch

Return to SR 57 and cross on National Highway to
continue tour

Left (W) on National St. to Maysville -- 3 miles
Cross Railroad Tracks and make an immediate turn
Right (NE) 300 W -- follow tracks to Hawkins Creek
STOP # 7 Timber Arch Culvert No. 176 Remains

(Palmer’s now Hawkin's Creek)

THE FOLLOWING EXAMPLE IS A STONE ARCH BUT
IS SIMILAR IN FUNCTION TO A TIMBER ARCH AS
FOUND AT PALMER'S CREEK

DIAGRAM BY STAN SCHMITT

Continue North on 300 W

Right (E) 50 N, becomes Qak Grove then McCormick
Ave.

When you cross the railroad tracks you then cross the
canal.

Right (S) on NW 16th St.

Left (E) on Walnut

Right (S) on NW 3rd. St.

Left (E) on Van Trees

Left on NE 5th Street which is SR 57

Proceed North on SR 57 through Plainville. Just outside
Plainville the Wabash and Erie Canal prism is visible for
miles on your left.

Continue North on SR 57 to Elnora. The canal is west
of the highway along the railroad tracks.

ALTERNATE ROUTE (Car route) to canal prism

Left (N) on Washington St.
Left (NE) on Ellen

Right on Main

Left on Odon

Right on Adeline

Right on N. Spriger

Left on SR 57

GREENE COUNTY

Crossing the first creek (Slinkard’s Creek) west of SR
57 was the location of the slack water dam and canal
guard lock.

Proceed to Newberry
Left on 3rd St.
Right on Mulberry
Right on 2nd St. park buses on right - ORIENTATION
STOP # 8 Newberry Dam (dangerous)
After orientation bus proceeds slowly across the bridge.
The remains of dam to the left (W) can be seen at low
water. To the right (E) the canal entered the White River
at the bend upstream. The slackwater pool created by
the dam was in this area and under the current bridge.
ALTERNATE ROUTE (Car route)

SR 57 in Newberry before reaching the bridge

L on Second Street
REMAINS OF NEWBERRY DAM

Page 10
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THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

TIMBER REMAINS OF NEWBERRY DAM
PHOTO - BOB SCHMIDT

R on Franklin Street to railroad track -- this is on

the canal. The house to the right of the corn cribs is
private property. Ask permission to walk across the
property to site of canal dam. On this side of the river
was the river lock in the Newberry Dam. At low water
dam remains and river lock remains are visible.

Back track to SR 57

L on SR 57 to continue tour route

Left on SR 67

Right (E) on SR 54 toward Bloomfield

Left (N) on 250 W by red barn before White River

We will follow the canal prism through this area riding

first on the berm side of the canal and then crossing to
the towpath side of the canal.

STOP # 9 Timber Arch Culvert No. 166 Remains
(Latta’s Creek)

SEE REMAINING TIMBERS IN CREEK BED
PHOTO - BOB SCHMIDT

Proceed to SR 67

INDIAN MOUND on right where the road crosses a
paved road and jogs from the canal berm to the canal
towpath.

Right (NE) on SR 67 Cross Eel River

Right (S) on 710 N to Point Commerce (1 block)
Left at next road

Right at next road and up the hill

Left at next street, buses back up and wait
STOP # 10 Allison Home

Walk down road to home. Please DO NOT trespass
onto property. Please stay on the road.

Buses backtrack to SR 67

Left on SR 67 or Commercial St. and cross Eel River
to enter Worthington

Right onThird

Right on CR 157 and straight ahead onto gravel road
until it comes out once again on CR 157. We will follow
Cross Cut Canal prism through this area.

Right on CR 157 -- 1.5 miles

Right (E) on CR 990 N just before Owen Co./Greene Co.
Line

Park bus outside of Citizens Gas
STOP # 11 Hike the Canal Prism

Johnston, the canal port established by John Allison,
was located along the canal in this area. Take time for a
leisurely walk along a cleared path where you can see
the canal prism for about a mile.

Back CR 990 to CR 157. To your right you can see the
county line marker. The guestion often arises if the
Wabash and Erie Canal entered Owen County. This
proves that it did if only for a short distance. This is
shown on the map on the following page of this book.

Page 12
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The map on the right shows the Wabash & Erie
Canal as it enters Owen County. The arrow shows
where this small loop in the Ecl River is located.
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THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

Left on CR 157 Right (W) on Worthington to the park See the huge
sycamore branch and note the plaque in memory of
Jewell at the park's entrance.

On the west side on the road about 1/8 of a mile was a
canal culvert of the Cross Cut canal from Terre Haute.
This canal joined the Wabash and Erie at Terre Haute Left (S) on Dayton St. to SR 67
with what was to have been the Central Canal at
Worthington. It was 42 miles long. This all became the Right (SW) on SR 67 to Vincennes and the Executive
Inn. This return trip will take approximately 45 minutes.

Wabash and Erie Canal.
— END OF TOUR —
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THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

1853 CHIEF ENGINEER’S REPORT

The following 1853 structure report is
that of Jesse Lynch Williams, chief engineer of
the Wabash & Erie Canal, describing the
conditions of the structures. To clarify the
report and to make it easier to find each
structure, headings and additional current
information have been added in bold type
before each of his descriptions. Some may be
repetitive to his report. Stan Schmitt has
provided much of the additional information
such as lock names and the conditions at the
sites when he last visited them.

CLAY COUNTY

Lock No. 50:
Foundation timbers are exposed and are being
undermined.

Lock No. 51:
There seem to be some foundation timbers in
the ditch wall.

Locks Nos. 50 and 51. Near together; a short
distance below the mouth of the Eel River feeder, each
of 8 feet lift; built of timber on the crib plan. A tow path
bridge is built over the lower end of the upper lock. The
next structure is the culvert through which the water is
drawn from Splunge Creek Reservoir into the canal. The
work consists of a culvert 40 feet long, with two spaces
of 8 1/2 feet by 2 feet clear. A breast wall 14 feet high,
of timbers twelve inches square and 32 feet long. On
the reservoir side there are wings framed into the breast
wall, stepping off to correspond with the slope, and
braced apart to retain the embankment. A course of
sheet piling extends along the first stick of breast wall
its entire length connecting with the plank wall in the
reservoir bank; and the culvert and breast wall is well
planked with two inch oak boards.

There are four cast iron sliding gates, working in
cast frames, raised by wrought iron stems with screws
at the top. This structure operates well, and appears to
be entirely secure; but a small portion of it is subject to
decay.

4

JESSE LYNCH WILLIAMS

i

Road Bridge No. 112:
Road bridge No. 112; near the lower end of the
reservoir.

Road Bridge. No. 113:
Road bridge No. 113.

Culvert No. 159:

Culvert No. 159. Length 111 1/2 feet. Three
spaces 12 by 3 feet clear. Top; of the culvert 6 1/2 feet
B. Top and portion of sides of culvert planked with two
inch boards.

Bridge No. 114.
Bridge No. 114. At side of Hooker's Mill.

Road Bridge No. 115.
Road bridge No. 115. At Kossuth.

Waste Weir:
Waste weir. Built on the same plan as that at
the mouth of the Eel River feeder.

(Waste weir at mouth of Eel river feeder, to draw water
from the canal, and to fill the Splunge Creek reservoir,
as occasion may require. This structure is built of
timber. It consists, first. of two abutments, 50 feet
apart, built in the form of an L - the lower side being
stepped off to correspond with the slope of the
embankment. The foundation consists, first, of two

Page 15




THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson -

Worthington (Point Commerce)

sticks of timber, 10 inches square, laid in the direction
of the tow-paths, 7 feet apart - the lower side of the
upper one corresponding with the upper face of the
abutments. Along this upper stick there is sheet piling,
4 feet long, extending to end openings of abutments 710
1/2 feet each side.

On these lower sill there are nine cross timbers
for sills of bents notched down, leaving the projections
above 6 inches. The space between the cross timbers
is filled with foundation timbers 6 inches thick. The
timbers are 25 1/2 feet long, extending 5 feet above the
upper sill, and an additional course of sheet piling is put
in all around the upper end of the foundation,
connecting with the first course along the wings of the
abutment. The joints in the bents are placed at 4 feet
A, affording a spill over the waste weir for about 40
feet. There are two gates, 5 1/2 feet long, raised by
rollers and chains - gates suspended by iron bars
working from centers at upper edge of foundation.
Foundation planked, as also abutments. Top of
foundation 1 feet B.)

Lock No. 52 (Kossuth Lock):
Lock No. 52. Of 7.10 feet lift at Kossuth; built
of timber on the crib plan.

Culvert No. 160:

Culvert No. 160. Length 136 feet. Two spaces
10 by 3 feet clear. Covering secured by iron rods
through side timbers into the foundations. Covering of
culvert and part of sides planked with two inch boards.
Top of culvert 6 feet B.

Road Bridge No. 116:
Road bridge No. 116.

Waste Weir:
Waste weir of timber, on the same plan as that
at the mouth of the Esl River feeder.

Culvert No. 161 (Prairie Creek):

Culvert No. 161. Prairie Creek. Timber arch 15
feet chord clear. Length 100 feet from face to face.
Foundation extending 4 feet beyond at each end. Ring
18 inches deep. Top of culvert 5.80 feet B.

Lock. No. 53 (Gallaghers Lock):
Lock No. 53. Of 6.6 feet lift. Just below Prairie
Creek. Built on timber on the crib plan.

Road Bridge No. 117:

Road bridge No. 117. Road to New Brunswick;
short distance below lock.

Road Bridge No. 118:
Road bridge No. 118. Road to New Brunswick.

Lock No. 54 (Ragans Lock):
Lock No. b4. Of 7 feet lift.
the crib plan.

Built of timber on

GREENE COUNTY

Culvert No. 162 (Lake Branch):

Now (Lagoon Creek)

Culvert No. 162. Lake branch. Timber arch 20
feet chord. Length 93 feet. Ring 18 inches deep. Top
of culvert 2 feet B.

Culvert No. 163:

Johnstown

Culvert No. 163. 1/4 mile above Hubble's Mill,
One space 10 by 1 1/2 feet clear. Length of culvert 130
feet. Top of culvert 12 feet B. Top and part of sides of
culvert planked with two inch oak boards.

Road Bridge No. 119:
Road bridge No. 119. At Hubble's Mill.

OWEN COUNTY

Canal briefly enters Owen County and turns abruptly
South returning to Greene County.

GREENE COUNTY

Guard Gates:

Guard gates, to be used in floods, to prevent the
water of the Eel River running down the Canal. This
structure consists of two short cribs on a foundation of
timber and planks. The gate lies flat below bottom of
canal when not in use. When required, it is raised and
held in its position by the pressure of the water. Paddle
gates are provided to draw the water down when the
gate is to be lowered.

Waste Weir:

Waste weir. 2 1/2 miles above Worthington.
This structure is built, in all respects, on the plan of that
at the mouth of the Eel River feeder already described.
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Culvert No. 164 (Seaman’s Creek):

Culvert No. 164. Seaman’s Creek. Three spaces
12 by 3 feet in the clear. Length 108 feet. Top of
culvert 6 feet B.

Culvert No. 165:

Lemon Creek

Culvert No. 165. Just above West Point
Commerce. Length of culvert 98 feet. One space 3 by
1 1/2 feet clear. Top of culvert 3.1 feet B.

Road Bridge No. 120:
Road bridge No. 120. Road to Point Commerce.

Road Bridge No. 121.

Road bridge No. 121. Across the canal at
Worthington. Small culvert in berm bank passing water
into the canal.

Road Bridge No. 122:
Road bridge No. 122.
miles below Worthington.

Louisville road, 1 1/2

Lock No. 55:

Lock No. bb. Of eight feet lift. One and a half
miles below Worthington. Built of timber on the crib
plan.

Road Bridge No. 123:
Road bridge No. 123. Fairplay road.

Lock No. 56 (Fairplay Lock):
Lock No. 56. Of 7 feet lift. 1/2 mile below
Fairplay road. Built of timber on the crib plan.

GPS - N 39D 02.040M W 86D 5.253M
Culvert No. 166 (Lattas Creek):

Culvert No. 166. Lattas Creek. Timber arch 26
feet chord. Length of culvert 100 feet. Ring 18 inches
deep. Head wall on the tow path side raised extra
height to admit of road way over the creek. Top of
culvert 2 feet B. Crown of arch planked with two inch
boards. Tow path over culvert 10 feet A, and berm
bank 6 feet A.

Road Bridge No. 124:
Road bridge No. 124.
Newberry.

Road from Fairplay to

Guard Gate:

Guard gate, consisting of two short cribs; pair of
common lock gates with paddles. This gate is required
to keep the floods of White River from running down the
canal.

Road Bridge No. 125:
Road bridge No. 125. Road to Bloomfield.

Road Bridge No. 126:
Road bridge No. 126. Road to Bradford's Ferry.

Lock No. 57:
Lock No. 57. Of 7 feet lift. Built of timber on the
crib plan.

Road Bridge No. 127:
Road bridge No. 127. Road to Bradford’'s Ferry.

Culvert No. 167:

Culvert No. 167. Timber arch of 16 feet chord.
Length of culvert 102 feet. Ring 16 inches deep. Top
of arch 1 1/2 feet B planked over with two inch boards.
Tow path 10.4 A, and 6 feet A.

Road Bridge No. 128:
Road bridge No. 128. Bloomfield.

Lock No. 58:

Lock No. 58. Of 8 feet lift. Near the entrance
of White River, four miles above Newberry. This lock is
built on the combined plan. Against a dry wall of
sandstone, studding is secured with iron rods and keys,
to which two courses of planking is spiked. The
foundation is made in the ordinary way.

Lock No. 59:

Lock No. 59. Of 8 feet lift. A short distance
below lock 58, which brings the level down to the pool
of Newberry dam. This lock is also built an the
combined plan, but there is first a crib raised 4 feet high
above the foundation and filled with stone. The top of
the crib is covered with timber, the front sticks
projecting beyond the face of the wall sufficient to
receive studding. In all other respects this lock is built
like that last described.

Slackwater to Dam

Towpath Bridge (Doan’s Creek):

Tow path bridge over Doan’s Creek 120 feet
long; two spans of 60 feet each, with one bent in the
middle. Bridge above high water of White River.

Towpath Bridge:
Tow path bridge, 50 feet long, half a mile above
Newberry dam.
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GPS - N 38D 55.705M W 87D 01.194M
Newberry Dam:

Parts of the dam’s cribs and ties are visible at
low water. Some stone is visible. Very difficult to get
there.

Newberry dam. This structure is 444 1/2 feet
fong and 12 feet high above low water of the river.
About 290 feet of the dam is on rock, the remainder is
on sand and gravel. The foundation is formed by, first,
a course of brush about two feet thick with men
standing upon it. Then six courses of ties, the first
being B0 feet long and stepping off - the last 43 feet
long. Upon this, there is built a crib 4 1/2 feet high at
the lower, and 6 feet high at the upper sides, - 29 1/2
feet wide measured in the direction of the stream. The
upper and lower sides of the crib, to the height above
noted, are plumb. Between the first and second and
third courses of timbers in the lower sides of the crib, a
space of 6 inches is left to admit the free escape of any
water that may get into the crib through the dam or
apron timbers.

Upon the lower end of the crib are apron timbers
14 1/2 feet long, securely spiked to the timbers below
and closely jointed together. The crib has five courses
of lineal timbers in it, held together by round ties,
dovetailed at the ends, and securely pinned at the points
of bearing. From the apron, leaving a projection of 13
feet, the dam is raised the remainder of its height by 4
sticks of timber laid close together and forming a slope
on the lower side of 1 in 4. - These timbers are secured
in their position by round ties dovetailed into each other
and into the upper stick of the square crib, and also by
the covering timber and plank. The covering timber is
16 feet long, having their support in the middle. The
first course of timber at the upper and lower side of the
square crib is 18 inches square. The apron and timbers
connected therewith, are held together by 700 spikes
22 inches long and one inch square, and 350, 18 inches
long and 3/4 inch square. The whole crib is well filled
with stone - care being taken to put the largest under
the apron and the body of the dam, and the fine material
near the upper side. At the upper side there is a course
of sheet piling extending about 4 feet below the
foundation, or down to the rock. The upper end of this
piling is spiked to the upper toe-stick of the square crib.
From this point up to the covering timber, the square
crib is planked, making a joint with the covering timber.

Above the dam, raised to the height of the
square crib, there is a bank of gravel and fine stone,
topped off with larger stone. Below the foundation of
the north-west side of the river, extending out from the
abutment where there is no rock, there has been put a
large quantity of brush rock, to protect the abutment

and dam from undermining. The comb of the dam was
raised five feet A on the upper level from the guard lock
down. The north-west abutment of the dam is a crib of
timber 60 feet long, 20 feet wide from out to out, and
31 feet high. The upper four courses of the abutment
are stepped off at the lower end. The abutment crib is
held together with round ties dovetailed at the ends.
The abutment is built on a foundation of hewn timbers
laid close together, placed 3 feet below low water of the
river.

Below the abutment there is a protection wall of
timbers 40 feet long, raised 27 feet high, receding from
the river at the lower ends as they rise, secured by
round ties extending into the natural bank of the river.
In front of this wall there is stone and brush protection.

River Lock at Newberry Dam:

Part of either the dam abutment or river lock is
still visible.

On the south side of the river there is a river
lock, admitting of the passage of flat boats, 105 feet
long and 21 feet wide. The lock is built on the crib plan,
and is of the same height of the north-west abutment.
The crib next the river is filled with stone, and the other
also to the height of ten feet. The foundation timber of
this lock is placed on solid rock 3 feet below low water
of the river.

Guard Lock at Newberry Dam:

Near the river lock and a little below the range
of the dam is located the guard lock, through which the
water is admitted to feed the Canal south from this
point. The guard lock consists of Buttresses to receive
and support the gates and cribs on each side between
the same raised 5 feet high. Upon these cribs there are
posts and cap raised to the desired height. The cribs of
the guard lock are raised to the same height as the river
lock - say to 22 feet above bottom of Canal, being 4 feet
above extreme high water of White River.

In the upper gates of the guard lock there are
eight paddle gates 2 by 3 feet, for the passage of water
into the Canal. Just at the upper end of the guard lock
there is a culvert for hydraulic purposes, with 4 sliding
gates in it 2 by 4 feet.

Road Bridge No. 129:
Road bridge No. 129. At Newberry, a short
distance below the guard lock.

Slinkard’s Creek Dam:

Now (First Creek) Nothing found.

Slinkard’s Creek Dam. 1 1/2 miles below
Newberry. The bed of the structure is fine sand of the
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most treacherous kind. The foundation of the dam
consists, first, of a course of brush about two feet thick,
and then three courses of round trees - the first two 35
feet long and the upper course 25 feet. The dam is 100
feet long between the abutments, and is curved up
stream, having a versed sine of 12 1/2 feet. Upon the
foundation there are five courses of range timbers, each
course consisting of five lengths of timber 21 feet long.
To these timbers the apron timbers 13 feet long and 9
inches thick are secured by suitable spikes. The space
between the lineal timbers and the foundation under the
apron is filled with stone. The top of the apron is three
feet above low water of the creek. From the center of
the apron the breast of the dam is raised, consisting of
seven courses of timbers 21 feet long and 12 by 18
inches, by which the arch is raised 7 feet high. In every
alternate course the range is commenced with a short
stick so as to break the joints. The whole is well
secured with wrought spikes. The brush and trees are
cut off smooth at the upper end and two courses of
sheet piling 7 feet long driven the upper ends being
spiked to the upper range of timbers under the apron.
The piling extends out to the ends of the wings of the
dam 22 feet. Above the dam there has been put in a
large quantity of small stone, fine brush, and other
material. The foundation of the dam was put in 4 feet
below low water, and the comb is raised 5 feet above
bottom of Canal, making the dam 10 feet high above
low wvater.

The abutments of the dam are 50 feet long and
14 feet wide from out to out. The wings at the upper
end are 22 feet long. The abutments rest upon a
foundation of hewn timbers laid close together, and they
are raised 18 feet high above the same. The lower ends
of the abutments are stepped off - top course 34 feet
long; wings, and part of face of abutments, planked.

Towpath Bridge above Slinkard’s Creek Dam:
Nothing found

The boats cross the pool a short distance above
Slinkard’s Creek dam by means of a tow-path bridge.
This structure consists of one middle span of 60 feet,
and two end spans of 40 feet each. The bridge is
supported by two high bents resting on mud sill in the
bed of the creek. On the caps of the bents there are
sub-chords 30 feet long, upon which the chords are
placed and securely bolted. The chords of the bridge
consist of three sticks to each span 10 by 14 inches,
and require no other braces except those extending from
the posts of the bents to the ends of the sub-chords.
The bridge is 7 feet wide, from out to out. Lateral
bracing is introduced in the middle span.

Guard Lock at Slinkard’s Creek:

Nothing found

The Slinkard’s Creek guard lock is located just
below the dam. It is built upon the plan of the Newberry
guard lock, having 8 paddle gates in the upper gates of
the lock to admit the passage of water down the Canal.
The buttresses of the lock are raised 23 courses high,
making the top 22 feet above the bottom of Canal.

At the Newberry guard lock the level of the
bottom of the Canal is depressed one foot giving five
feet water in the Canal from Newberry to the first lock
above Maysville.

Road Bridge No. 130:
Road bridge No. 130. One mile below Slinkard's
Creek.

DAVIESS COUNTY

Culvert No. 168:

(Weaver Ditch)

Culvert No. 168. Length of culvert 105 feet.
Top of same 2 feet B. Top and portion of sides planked
over.

Road Bridge No. 131:

Road bridge No. 131. Road leading to White
River.

Culvert No. 169:
Culvert No. 169. One space 10 by 2 feet. Top
of culvert 2 feet B. Length of culvert 101 feet.

Road Bridge No. 132;
Road bridge No. 132, Owl Prairie.

Lock No. 60 (Owl Prairie Lock):

Now Elnora

Lock No. 60, of 5 feet lift, walls 12 feet high,
built on the crib plan, of timber.

Culvert No. 170:
Culvert No. 170. One space, 10 by 2 feet clear.
Length 99 feet. Top of culvert 2 feet B.

Canal visible along highway Indiana 57.

Waste Weir:

Waste weir with two large gates, b by 6 feet, to
be hoisted with chains and rollers. The foundation of
the waste weir consists of hewn timbers laid close
together, extending ten feet above and nineteen feet
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below the gates. The stick immediately under the gate
is of extra size, and along the upper side of this, and the
wings of the side-walls on the same line, there is a
course of sheet piling. Into this foundation stick three
posts are framed, receiving a cap, the top of which is 5
feet, A. The outside posts are let into the side-walls 3
inches. The side-walls, or abutments, consist of timbers
stepped off on the lower side, the lowest stick being 18
1/2 feet long, and the upper 6 1/2 feet long. From the
upper end of the side wall timbers wings are extended
out to the center of the tow-path. Timbers 7 feet long,
half topped with the side-wall timbers. The side-wall
timbers are prevented from pressing together by round
ties running out into the embankment. On the upper
side of the wings there are timbers 7 feet long, locked
together in L form, which support the tow-path and
sustain a bank of earth around the wings. The gates are
supported by two rods to each gate, made in U form, of
iron 2 by 1/2 inch, secured to a center point at the upper
side of the foundation timbers, and to the gates by keys.

Lock No. 61:
Lock No. 61, of 6 feet lift, built of timber on the
crib plan.

Road Bridge No. 133:
Road bridge No. 133, just below the lock.

Culvert No. 171:

Culvert No. 171. One space 10 by 2 feet.
Length 101 feet. Top of culvert 2 feet B. Top and part
of sides of culvert planked.

Waste Weir:

Waste weir just above Smother’s creek. This
structure is upon the same plan of that described just
above lock No. 61.

Culvert No. 172 (Smother’s Creek):

Culvert No. 172. Smother’s creek. Four spaces
10 by 4 feet clear. Length of culvert 101 feet. Top of
same 2 feet B.

Road Bridge No. 134:
Road bridge No. 134,

Lock No. 62 (Plainville Lock):
Lock No. 62 of 6 feet lift.
Walls 13 feet high.

Built on crib plan.

Lock No. 63:
Lock No. 63, of 7.3 feet lift. Walls 14 feet high,
built of timber on the crib plan.

Tumble:

Tumble on berm side of Canal, to admit water
from Lagoon pond and other branches that could not be
passed under the Canal.

Culvert No. 173:
Culvert No. 173. Two spaces 10 by 18 inches.
Length 98 feet. Top of culvert 1.50 B.

Road Bridge No. 135:
Road bridge No. 135. Road to Edwardsport.

Aqueduct No. 15 (Prairie Creek):

Prairie creek agueduct, No. 15. This structure
consists of 4 spans of 29 feet, the trunk being 24 feet
wide in the clear. It is supported by two timber bents,
and on crib pier b feet thick, in the center of the
channel. The abutments are of timber, planked and
sheet piled. The abutments and piers are protected with
stone and brush.

Road Bridge No. 136:
Road bridge No 136.

Lock No. 64:

Bretts Mill

Lock No. 64 of b 1/2 feet lift, built on the crib
plan. The difference of level between the bottom of the
Canal above and below the lock, is 5 1/2 feet, but the
water above the lock is five feet deep, and below only 4
1/2 feet, consequently actual lift of the lock is 6 feet
from surface to surface of the water.

Culvert No. 174:
Culvert No. 174. One space 10 by 2 feet clear.
Length of culvert 98 feet. Top of culvert 1 foot B.

Road Bridge No. 137:
Road bridge No. 137. Road from Washington to
mouth of Prairie creek.

Eldon
Culvert No. 175 not fisted.

GPS - N 38D 39.080M W 87D 13.609M
Culvert No. 176 ( Paimer’'s Creek):

Now Hawkins Timbers visible across bottom of
creek.

Culvert No. 176. Palmer’'s creek. Timber arch
of 18 feet chord. Length of arch from face to face, 86
feet. Ring 18 inches deep. Top of arch 1 foot B,
covered with two-inch oak plank, extending 23 1/2 feet
each way from the center line of Canal. There is also a
short vertical wall of plank in the center of each bank,
connected with the planking on top of the arch.
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Road Bridge No. 138:
Road bridge No. 138. In Maysville.

Road Bridge No. 139:
Road bridge No. 139.

Lock No. 65 (Veals Creek Lock):

Lock No. 65, of 3 feet lift. Walls 9 1/2 feet high.
Water 4 1/2 feet A above and below the lock. Walls 9
1/2 feet high.

Culvert No. 177 (Veal's Creek):

One timber visible

Culvert No. 177. Veal's creek. Timber arch 26
feet chord. Length of culvert 125 feet from face to face.
Ring 18 inches deep. Foundation 27 feet B. Top of arch
12 1/2 feet B.

Culvert No. 178:

Culvert No. 178. One space 10 by 1 1/2 feet
clear. Length of culvert 156 feet. Top of culvert 7.75
feet B. Top and part of sides planked with 2 inch oak
plank.

Road Bridge No. 140:
Road bridge 140. Road to Feisel’'s Ferry.

Culvert No. 179 (Wrangling Run):

Culvert No. 179. Wrangling run. Two spaces 8
by 3 feet clear. Length of culvert 143 feet. Top of
same 15 feet B.

Road Bridge No. 141:
Road bridge No.
Petersburg road.

141, Washington and

GPS - N 38D 32.453M W 87D 13.548M
Agueduct No. 16 (White River):

South abutment intact (stone only). Masons
mark carving visible. Piers have toppled and are visible
at low water. North 1/2 of aqueduct in Daviess County.

White river aqueduct, No. 16. This structure is
557 feet long, consisting of six spans of 85 feet clear
space, and sustained by five piers 42 feet high above
low water mark. The piers and abutments are of
substantial cut stone masonry. The masonry of the
abutments extends six feet below bottom of Canal,
resting on timber cribs raised from the natural surface of
the river bank. The cribs are filled with stone and
covered with hewn timber, laid close together, from
which the masonry is commenced. The abutments are
surrounded with the slope of the embankment, raised up
to nearly bottom of the Canal under the trunk. The crib
timbers being thus covered up and excluded from the

air, and being also kept moist, are believed not to be
subject to decay.

The first two piers from the south side are
founded on solid rock, and the north pier on piles driven
about ten feet. The piling so arranged that the outside
row comes immediately under the face of the pier all
round. The piles are prevented from spreading at top by
placing on each side a stick of timber the length of the
foundation, and bolting them together with iron rods
about thirteen feet long. The space in the middle,
surrounded by the piles, is filled with stone to the top of
the piles. The piles are cut square and smooth on top,
and receive two courses of foundation timber laid close
together, the first course being of short timbers laid
crosswise.

The third and fourth piers rest upon platform of
timber, the first and last courses in each being laid close
together. The intermediate courses are laid about
twelve inches apart. The third pier from the south side
of the river has six courses of timber and the fourth pier
four courses of timber in the foundation. It was
intended to excavate the foundation for the fourth pier
so as to admit of six courses of timber, but we found a
large log in our way, and the alternative was presented
of either risking it at that depth with the log under it five
feet below low water, or defer the completion of the
aqueduct a whole year. Sickness and other causes
having retarded the work so much, that at that late
period in the season, the delay incident to removing the
log and continuing the excavation would have
endangered the whole work, it was concluded to risk the
foundation with four courses of timber, the excavation
having been made to five feet below low water, and our
judgment proved correct in this matter, as we had barely
time to get in the foundations and secure them before
there was a flood in the river. The position of the log
was carefully ascertained, and small stones thrown in
along its sides, covering the whole bottom of the pit, so
that the foundation timber would not rest on the log. All
the excavations below water were made without
building coffer dams, or pumping out the water, by
means of a scraper with long handles worked between
gunwales floating upon the surface of the water, and
pulled by oxen working in a large boat, anchored in
proper position. This proved to be an economical and
expeditious mode of excavating below water, and will
answer to a depth of ten or even twelve feet. The
foundation and slopes of the embankment and the ends
of the aqueduct are well protected with stone.

The superstructure of the aqueduct rests on top
of the piers and abutments 6 1/2 feet above the bottom
of the Canal, the trunk being suspended from the arch
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by iron rods 1 1/8 inch in diameter. The trunk of the
aqueduct is 16 feet wide in the clear and is calculated
for 4 1/2 feet depth of water. There are four main
chords consisting of five courses of oak plank 2 1/2
inches thick by 18 inches deep. On top of these are four
additional chords composed of four courses of 2 inch
oak plank 12 inches deep. There are four arches
composed of nine courses of plank 2 1/2 inches thick
and 12 inches wide. The truss frame is 18 feet 4 inches
high from the bottom of the lower chords to the top of
the plate or upper chords, composed of nine posts and
braces between each pier, or pier and abutment. The
arches are footed into the chord, the versed sine being
13 1/2 feet. The chord planks are bolted and pinned
together, and bolted to the truss frame in the center
between them. The arch plank are bent to the curve and
spiked to each other, breaking joints and the whole are
bolted together. The whole structure is roofed and
weather-boarded and painted, to protect it from the
weather.

PIKE COUNTY

Aqueduct No. 16 (White River) South 1/2 of aqueduct
in Pike County. See description above.

Guard Gate at White River Aqueduct:

Guard gate just below the aqueduct consisting
of short cribs, and one large gate swinging entirely
across. This gate is suspended by iron rods from a post
- the top of which is exactly vertical over the step of the
gate. There are two paddle gates for the passage of
water. This gate is required to be shut when boats are
passing up through the aqueduct to check the strong
current. It is to be opened immediately after the boat
gets through.

Culvert No. 180:
Culvert No. 180. Small culvert to drain water
from coal pit.

Culvert No. 181:
Culvert No. 181.
from coal pit.

Small culvert to drain water

Culvert No. 182 (Lick Creek):

Culvert No. 182. Lick Creek. Three spaces 8 by
3 feet clear. Length of culvert 156 feet. Top of culvert
18 feet B.

Culvert No. 183:
Culvert No. 183. One space 5 by 3 feet clear.
There being rock in the bed of the branch no foundation

timber was put.
culvert 18 feet B.

Length of culvert 156 feet. Top of

Culvert No. 184:
Culvert No. 184. One space 8 by 2 feet clear.
Length 142 feet. Top of culvert 14 1/2 feet B.

Culvert No. 185:
Culvert No. 185. One space 10 by 2 feet clear.
Length of culvert 140 feet. Top of culvert 15 feet B.

Waste Weir:

Waste weir. This structure consists of, first,
three sticks of foundation timber laid three feet apart,
and timber abutments, built in the form of Ls. The lower
side being stepped off to correspond with the slope of
the embankment. The abutments are 60 feet apart. The
top of the foundation is 6 feet below the bottom of
Canal. The dam consists of hewn timber laid close
together in a broken curve having a versed sine of 6 1/2
feet. The two end timbers in each course of the dam are
24 1/2 feet long, and the middle timbers 12 feet long.
The dam is raised to 3 feet A. In front of the dam there
is a course of sheet piling 4 feet long, and thence
upwards the face of the dam is planked. In the middle
of the dam at the level of the foundation there are posts
framed in, leaving an opening 2 feet square, which is
filled by a cast iron sliding gate, having an iron stem and
worked by a screw at the top. A crib is built around the
gate, raised to the bottom of the Canal, to prevent the
earth from obstructing the gate. A large bank of clay
and gravel and small stone is put in front of the dam.
The foundation below the breast wall is planked, as also
the wings of the abutments. The step timbers of the
abutments are held out by round ties running into the
embankment. Into the foundation and the top of the
dam, posts are framed and capped, which support the
tow-path bridge.

Road Bridge No. 142:
Road bridge No. 142. Leading from Petersburg
Ferry above Petersburg bluff.

Road Bridge No. 143:
Road bridge No. 143. Leading from Petersburg
to Wright's Ferry.

GPS - N 38D 29.650M W 87D 17.625M
School House deep cut. The canal is cut into the bluff
like it was at Fountain near Attica.

Culvert No. 186:

Culvert No. 186, at Petersburg. One space 8 by
3 feet clear. Length of culvert 140 feet. Top of culvert
15 feet B.
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Road Bridge No. 144:
Marker
Road bridge No. 144; Petersburg; double track.

Culvert No. 187 (Pride’s Creek):

Culvert No. 187. Pride’s Creek. Timber arch 22
feet chord. Ring 17 1/2 inches deep. Length of culvert
105 1/2 feet from face to face. Top of culvert 6 1/2
feet B.

Culvert No. 188:

Culvert No. 188. One space 6 by 1 1/2 clear.
Length of culvert 110 feet. Top of culvert 5 1/2 feet B.
Top and parts of sides planked with two-inch oak
boards.

Road Bridge No. 145:
Road bridge No. 145. Tow-path changed at this
bridge.

Culvert No. 189:

Culvert No. 189. One space 10 by 2 feet.
Length 112 feet. Top of culvert 5 feet B. Covering and
part of sides planked.

Road Bridge No. 146:
Road bridge No. 146.

Culvert No. 190:

Culvert No. 190. One space 10 by 2 feet clear.
Length 112 feet. Top of culvert 6 feet B. Covering and
part of sides planked.

Culvert No. 191(Pride’s Creek Summit):

Culvert No. 191. Summit branch of Pride's
creek. Two spaces 10 by 2 1/2 feet. Length of culvert
100 feet. Top of culvert b 1/2 feet B. Covering and part
of sides planked with two-inch oak boards.

Patoka Deep Cut very visible and watered.

Road Bridge No. 147:
Road bridge No. 147. Road crossing on Patoka
Summit.

Culvert No. 192 (Flat Creek):

Culvert No. 192. Flat creek, first branch south
of Patoka Summit. This culvert crosses the Canal at an
angle of 60 degrees. The length of the culvertis 116
1/2 feet. There are three spaces 10 by 3 feet. Top of
culvert 2 feet B. The covering timber is bolted down by
iron rods, passing through a timber under the foundation
and one on top of the culvert. The top and sides of the
culvert are planked. This culvert is not put in where it
was located, and will always be troublesome although

there is a deep ditch cut from the lower side to carry off
the water.

Culvert No. 193:

Culvert No. 193. One space 10 by 2 feet clear.
Length 101 feet. Top of culvert 3 feet B. Covering and
part of sides planked.

Culvert No. 194:
Culvert No. 194. One space 10 by 2 feet.

Lock No. 66 {Hosmer Lock):

Now Glezen, low spot

Lock No. 66 of 7.9 feet lift. Walls 14 1/2 feet
high. Above this lock the water is 4 1/2 feet deep, and
below 4 feet, so that the difference of surface is 8.4
feet. Built on the crib plan, of timber,

Culvert No. 195 (Little Flat Creek):

Culvert No. 195. Little Flat creek. Two spaces
10 by 3 feet clear. Length 136 feet. Top of culvert 14
feet B.

Culvert No. 196:
Culvert No. 196. One space 8 by 3 feet clear.
Length 140 feet. Top of culvert 15 feet B.

Culvert No. 197:
Culvert No. 197. One space 8 by 3 feet clear.
Length 150 feet. Top 18 feet B.

GPS - N 38D 22.859M W 87D 20.065M
Aqueduct No. 17 (Patoka River):
There is timber under the mud which is not

visible. The embankment is visible and there is a
marker. The North 1/2 of the Aqueduct is in Pike
County.

Patoka aqueduct, No. 17. This structure
consists of one middle span of 50 feet, and four other
spans (two on each side) of 36 feet. The middle span
is supported by two crib piers six feet thick, filled with
stone, resting on foundation timber six feet below the
water. The remainder of the trunk is supported by
double bents, resting on foundation timber, placed in
pits dug in the slope of the river bank. The abutments
are of timber, resting on foundations six feet below the
bottom of the canal, sheet piled and thoroughly planked.
The superstructure is an open trunk 18 feet wide in the
clear, and calculated for four feet depth of water. The
chords rest of sub-chords on top of the piers and bents,
supported in the middle by long braces footing in
chords, needle beams and suspension rods. The middle
span has double chords and double braces, one set of
braces meeting in the center, the others being separated
by a straining beam, three needle beams and three
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suspension rods on each side The foundations and all
the slopes up to the abutments are well protected with
stones.

GIBSON COUNTY

Agqueduct No. 17 (Patoka River):
South 1/2 of agueduct in Gibson County. See
above description.

Guard Gates at Patoka Aqueduct:

Former site of Dongola

On each side of the Patoka there is a guard gate,
the gates of the upper one facing up stream, and those
of the lower facing down stream. They are to be used
in case of accident at the aqueduct, to shut the water
off both ways. Slide gates are provided in the side of
the aqueduct trunk to let off the water.

Road Bridge No. 149:

Road bridge No. 149, at Dongola. The tow-path
changes here, the bridge being provided with additional
track.

Culvert No. 198:
Culvert No. 198. One space 4 by 1 1/2 feet
clear. Length 127 feet. Top of culvert 11 1/2 feet B.

Culvert No. 199:
Culvert No. 199. One space 9 by 1 1/2 feet
clear. Length 142 feet. Top of culvert 15 3/4 feet B.

Culvert No. 200 (Hurricane Creek):

Embankment visible

Culvert No. 200. Hurricane creek. Two spaces
8 by 2 1/2 feet clear. Length 169 feet. Top of culvert
23 1/2 feet B.

Culvert No. 201:
Culvert No. 201. Small.

Culvert No. 202:
Culvert No. 202. One space 9 by 2 feet clear.
Length 131 feet. Top of culvert 12 1/2 feet B.

GPS - N 38D 21.774M W 87D 22.756M
Culvert No. 203 (Buck Creek}:

Culvert under road

Culvert No. 203. Buck creek. Two spaces 8 by
3 feet. Length 153 feet. Top of culvert 19 B.
Road Bridge No. 150:

Road bridge No. 150. Dongola and Princeton
road.

Culvert No. 204 (Keg's Creek):

Keg creek, large embankment

Culvert No. 204. Key's creek. Four spaces 8 by
4 feet clear. Length 160 feet. Top of culvert 21 feet B.
Side timbers secured by bolting post to them on the
outside.

Road Bridge No. 151;
Road bridge No. 151, Princeton road.

Culvert No. 205:
Culvert No. 205. Small.

Culvert No. 206 (Lost Creek east fork):

Culvert No. 206. East fork of Lost creek. Two
spaces 8 by 3 1/2 feet. Length 124 feet. Top of culvert
10 1/2 feet B.

Culvert No. 207:
Culvert No. 207. One space 6 by 1 1/2 feet
clear. Length 103 feet. Top of culvert 4 1/2 feet B.

Road Bridge No. 152:
Road bridge No. 152. Francisco to Princeton.

Pigeon Deep Cut visible and watered

Waste Weir:

Waste weir with two large gates, supported by
iron bars, working from a center, at upper side of
foundation, raised by chains and rollers. This structure
is built of timber and plank upon the plan described next
before Lock No. 61.

Tumble:
Tumble in berm bank to let in branch. Culvert at
this point impracticable.

Road Bridge No. 153:
Road bridge NO. 153. Boonville and Princeton.

Waste Weir:
Waste weir in berm side to pass water to and
from the Pigeon Creek Reservoir.

Culvert No. 208 (Scaffold Lick):

Culvert No. 208. Scaffold Lick. Timber arch of
16 feet chord. Ring 16 inches deep. Top of culvert 2
feet B. Length of culvert 96 feet from face 1 face.
Crown of arch planked. As the water in the reservoir
rises above the bottom of the Canal on both sides of this
culvert, it was necessary to secure it from rising by iron
bands. They pass through a stick of timber under the
foundation, and are strongly keyed together. The bars
are 2 by 1/2 inch, made in pieces from 4 to 6 feet long.
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Road Bridge No. 154.
Road bridge No. 154. Port Gibson, at lower end
of the Pigeon Creek Reservoir.

GPS - N 38D 16.612M W 87D 30.552M
Pigeon Creek Reservoir Culvert:

Pigeon Creek Reservoir culvert, to admit water
into the Canal from the reservoir, is built of timber upon
the plan of the culvert for the Splunge Creek reservaoir.
There are four sliding gates for the passage of water.
The foundation is rock, but not being very hard, timber
was put in upon it on the ordinary plan, and the whole
planked on below the breast wall.

Waste Weir & Road Bridge:

Waste weir at the west end of reservoir bank.
This structure consists of timber abutments 66 feet
apart, in the form of L's, with breast wall 3 feet high,
and longitudinal foundation timbers 2 feet apart, filled in
between and covered over with stone. On the breast
wall there are posts against which the plank rest, raising
to top water line of the reservoir, and upon which there
is a wide cap, on which a man may walk, to remove the
plank when a large discharge is required. From the
waste weir there is a ditch to convey the water gently
down to the level of the creek bottom. Across the Canal
there is a road bridge about 30 feet long.

Lock No. 67 (Port Gibson Lock) & Towpath Bridge:

Site visible, some timbers visible, now a pig lot.
Embankment of Pigeon Reservoir visible.

Lock No. 67, at Port Gibson. Lift 7 feet, but the
walls are raised 15 feet high, to guard against overflow,
in case the reservoir should break into the Canal. The
gates are raised to correspond with the walls. The lock
is built of timber on the crib plan. Tow path bridge over
the mouth of feeder from the reservoir.

Lock No. 68:
Lock No. 68. Near Port Gibson. Lift 7 feet, built
of timber on the crib plan.

Culvert No. 209:

Culvert No. 209. One space 9 by 2 feet clear.
Length of culvert 103 feet. Top of culvert 4 1/2 feet B
Covering and part of sides planked.

Lock No. 69:
Lock No. 69. Lift 8 1/2 feet, built of timber on
the crib plan.

Culvert No. 210:

Culvert No. 210. One space 2 by 2 feet clear.
Top of culvert 2 feet B. Length of culvert 94 feet.
Covering and part of sides planked.

Culvert No. 211 (Snake Run):

Culvert No. 211. Snake run. Timber arch of 16
feet chord. Ring 16 inches deep. Top of arch 2 feet B.
Length of culvert from face to face, 86 feet. Crown of
arch planked.

Road Bridge No. 155:
Road bridge No. 155. Warrington road.

Lock No. 70:
Lock No. 70 , of 6.8 feet lift.
the crib plan.

Built of timber on

Culvert No. 212:

Culvert No. 212. One space 10 by 2 1/2 feet
clear. Length of culvert 103 feet. Top of culvert 2 1/2
feet B. Covering and part of sides planked.

Culvert No. 213:

Culvert No. 213. One space 9 by 2 feet clear.
Length of culvert 99 feet. Top of culvert 2 1/2 feet B.
Covering and part of sides planked.

Culvert No. 214 (Smith’s Fork):

Culvert No. 214. Smith's Fork. Timber arch of
28 feet chord. Ring 21 inches deep. Length of culvert
from face to face 86 feet. Top of arch 1 1/2 feet B.
Crown or arch planked.

Lock No. 71 (Smiths Fork Lock):
Lock No. 71, of 6 feet lift. Built of timber on the
crib plan.

Road Bridge No. 156: ( SR57)
Road bridge No. 156. Petersburg and Evansville
Road.

WARRICK COUNTY

Aqueduct No. 18 (Big Creek): (Near SR 68)

Big Creek Aqueduct, No. 18. This work consists
of three spans of 26 feet clear between the bents and
abutments. The trunk is supported by two double bents
resting on foundation timbers in the bed of the creek,
planked up and filled with stone, and two timber
abutments, resting on foundation timber six feet below
the bottom of the Canal. The back, sides, and wings of
the abutments are sheet piled and well planked. The
foundations are protected with brush and stone. The
superstructure is a simple trunk, consisting of string
pieces, posts, and caps, being 18 feet in the clear, and
adapted to four feet water above bottom.
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Lock No. 72 (Big Creek Lock):

Remnants were visible in the 1980s when
Pigeon Creek was dredged.

Lock No. 72, of 6 feet lift; built of timber on the
crib plan.

Road Bridge No. 157:
Road bridge No 157.

Culvert No. 215:
Culvert No. 215, one space 9 by 2 feet clear.
Length of culvert 96 feet; top of culvert 2 1/2 feet B.

Culvert No. 216:
Culvert No. 216; two spaces 10 by 2 feet clear.
Length of culvert 96 feet; top of culvert 2 1/2 feet B.

Lock No. 73:
Lock No., 73, of 6.8 feet lift; built of timber on
the crib plan.

Road Bridge No. 158:
Road bridge No. 158.

Head Gates:

Rochester, some remnants

Head gates to pass water into the Canal from
Pigeon Creek dam.

Pigeon Creek Dam:
Pigeon Creek Dam.

Culvert No. 217;
Culvert No. 217. Timber, rectangular, submerged.

Culvert No. 218:
Culvert No. 218. Timber, rectangular, submerged.

Culvert No. 219:
Culvert No. 219. Timber, rectangular, submerged.

Culvert No. 220:
Culvert No. 220. Timber, rectangular, submerged.

Culvert No. 221:
Culvert No. 221. Timber, rectangular, submerged.

Culvert No. 222:
Culvert No. 222. Timber, rectangular, submerged.

Road Bridge No. 159:
Road bridge No. 159,

Waste Weir:
Newark

Waste weir
described.

at Newark, built on plan last

Culvert No. 223:
Culvert No. 223. Timber, rectangular, submerged.

Culvert No. 224
Culvert No. 224, Timber, rectangular, submerged.

Road Bridge No. 160:
Road bridge No. 160.

Culvert No. 225:
Squaw Creek. Stone was removed and some is
at Millersburg.
Culvert No. 225. Arch of cut stone.

Culvert No. 226:
Culvert No 226. Rectangular, timber submerged.

Culvert No. 227:

Culvert No 227. Rectangular, timber submerged.
The canal is still visible from culvert 228 through
culvert 234. There is a marker in Wesselman Park.

Culvert No. 228:
Culvert No. 228. Rectangular, timber submerged.

Culvert No. 229:
Culvert No. 229. Rectangular, timber submerged.

Culvert No. 230:
Culvert No. 230. Rectangular, timber submerged.

Culvert No. 231:
Culvert No. 231. Rectangular, timber submerged.

Road Bridge No. 161:
Road bridge No. 161.

Culvert No. 232:
Culvert No. 232. Rectangular, timber submerged.

Culvert No. 233:
Culvert No. 233. Rectangular, timber submerged.

Culvert No. 234:
Parts may still exist underground at Division
Street.

Culvert No. 234, at Division street, in Evansville,
This culvert is an arch of 5 feet chord (springing from
abutments 2 1/2 feet high, to correspond with a sewer
in the city leading to the river) of cut stone masonry.
The foundation is a pavement of stone 12 inches deep,
settled into gravel. The ring of the arch is 12 inches
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deep, abutments 18 inches thick. The arch is plastered
on top with hydraulic cement, and covered over with
gravel.. The culvert is 100 feet long, connected at both
ends with a brick sewer built by the corporation of
Evansville.

Road Bridge No. 162:
Bridge No. 162, one mile above Evansville,

Road Bridge No. 163:
Bridge No 163, Walnut street in Evansville.

Road Bridge No. 164:
Bridge No. 164, Locust street in Evansuville.

Road Bridge No. 165:
Bridge No. 165, Main street in Evansuville.

Road Bridge No. 166:
Bridge No. 166, Sycamore street in Evansville.

Canal basin located at Road bridges 167-168. Marker
on lawn of old court house about the canal.

Road Bridge No. 167:
Bridge No. 167, Vine street in Evansville.

REMEMBERING THE CANAL BUILDERS
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By 1835 the Wabash and Erie Canal had been
completed to Lagro, IN. and was in the process of being
built to Lafayette where it was to terminate. At that time
Calvin Fletcher, a lawyer in Indianapolis, had conversations
with the Governor of Indiana, Noah Noble. Most of these
conversations concerned internal improvements. Fletcher
recorded in his diary the things he found most important
cvery day. Part of the entry marked Thursday 15 October
1835 reads:

"Very pleasant. Govr. Noble called on me. Had
further conversation in relation to internal improvements.
He has just received a line from the
Madison R. C. to procure the apparatus
& assistance to survey from M. to
Nepolian (sic) to intersect the

SULLIVAN

exercising of all the soundest and best attributes of grave
and patriotic legislation than the present."

The state's dire condition led to the Depression of
1839, The canal workers laid down their tools and stopped
the projects. This ended the role of the state of Indiana in
canal building,

In 1846 Charles Butler, representing the canal bond
holders, proposed to take the state's interest in the canal for
one half of the debt and for the lands granted for its
construction to complete it. He also proposed that the statc
issue new certificates for the other half of
the debt and pay interest at four per cent
yearly with the state reserving the right of
redeeming the certificates. In July of
1847 the state turned over the canal to

Lawrenceburgh road in consequence |
presume of the unexpected high estimate
of the direct route. It is a favorable
indication of the union of the two points.
The route for a canal down White River
to terminate at Evansville scems to be
favorable & if the practicability of
uniting the waters of Eel & the Wabash
in Vigo County can be ascertained I look
upon the whole project of internal
improvements in this statc to be the most
interesting of any in the union & one that
is more deserving. There will not be

A e private ownership, the Trustees of the
Wabash and Erie Canal. Ten ycars after

NAL ¥ the project stopped, work on the canal
resumed under this new management.

DUBDIS The Wabash and Erie was completed to

Evansville by 1852, twenty years after
Jground was broken in Fort Wayne in
1832.

The 1847 Chief Engineer’s
structure report was made to determine
the condition of the structures after the

thirty miles in the state without a water
communication or railroad."

In January of 1836 the Internal Improvement Bill
was passed. The bill included extending the Wabash and
Erie to Terre Haute; building the Central Canal from the
Wabash and Erie Canal somewhere between Wabash and
Logansport (Peru) by following the Mississincwa River,
passing through Indianapolis, and running to Evansville
along the White River; and joining the two canals via a
Cross Cut Canal from Terre Haute to Point Commerce
(Worthington). These projects were begun. Those working
on the canal received high wages. Businesses got good
prices for all kinds of provisions. It appeared that times
were good.

Appearances were deceiving. Too much speculation
and too much extravagance led to the crash or Panic of
1837. Indiana was in financial ruin. In 1838 Governor
David Wallace said, "...never before have you witnessed a
period in our local history which more urgently calls for the

ten year delay before continuing the
canal. A later structure survey was made in 1833 at the time
of its completion. This tour book contains this report from
Clay County to Vanderburgh County.

It was with great anticipation that the settlers of
southern Indiana looked to having the canal completed
through their arca. This "Final Link" would join the
Wabash and Eric Canal via the Cross Cut from Terre Haute
to Point Commerce to the 20 miles of the completed Central
Canal from Evansville following along Pigeon Creek. Upon
completion, the entire canal would be known as the Wabash
and Erie Canal, a 468 mile long waterway connecting Lake
Erie at Toledo. OH to Evansville, IN at the Ohio River.
This was the second longest canal in the world. It was only
surpassed by the 1,000 mile long Grand Canal of China.

Our tour begins at Port Gibson in Gibson County at
the Pigeon Creek Reservoir. This is just 13 miles north of
the Pigeon Dam where the original work was done in 1836
on the Central Canal.
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NOTICE TO CANAL CONTRACTORS

WABASH & ERIE CANAL, INDIANA.

SEALED Proposals will be received at Princeton, Ind.. until
the 20th day of October next, for the construction of thirty-
five miles of the above named Canal. The work consists of
sixty sections, embracing much variety of excavation,
including considerable rock. a number of deep cufs and
heavy embankments,one aqueduct, eight locks, and many
culverts. All the mechanical structure to be of timber. and
will afford much work for carpenters.

There will be no stone masonry of any description. Of
the excavation and embankment there is much more heavy
work than is common on an equal length of line. Bidders
from Ohio will find it most convenient to reach this work by
way of the Ohio river and Evansyville, as the south end of the
work is only 18 miles north of Evansville—From the middle
and north part of Indiana, it will be most convenient Lo reach
the north end of the work at Petersburgh, in Pike county.
Bidders who are not known to the undersigned will be
expected to  furnish  proper  {estimonials  of
character —Payments in money will be made at periods of
about sixty days.

Plans and specifications of the work will be exhibited at
Princeton, by the Engineer in charge. 10 days before the
letting. The line will be in readiness for inspection by the
first of October. For further information, persons wishing to
examine the work can address W. J. Ball. Res’t Engincer,
Terre-Haute.

SAML. FORRER;
SOLOMON STURGESS.
S.R. Hasmer.
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GIBSON COUNTY

Gibson County contains 498 squarc miles and is
located in southwestern Indiana. It was one of the earliest
countics scttled because the emigrants followed the Native
American trails into the state. Onec of thesc was the Red
Banks trail from Kentucky that came up through what later
became Vanderburgh County.

Gibson County originally encompassed most of
Dubois and Pike countiecs. This area was the ninth county
to be organized (1813) just three vears before Indiana's
statchood in 1816. Later it was reduced to its current size.
It was named for General John Gibson who was secretary of
the Indiana Territory from 1801-1816.

When the settlers arrived they found the western
part of the county fairly level to undulating being mostly
bottom land and some barrens. This rich fertile alluvial soil
that was deposited by the rivers flooding was suitable for
farming. The sandy ridges (barrens) lay between the bottom
land and gravel terraces. To the cast and northeast were
clevated platcaus covered with excellent oak and poplar
timber. Deep valleys ran through the plateaus. A ridge of
vellow loam lay between the Patoka and White rivers. They
cut their channels through limestone in the eastern part of
the county and deposited it in a broad belt that lay southwest
to northeast between what became Princeton and
Owensville.

The stone found in the county is not of building
quality being friable. Bituminous coal which lies between
Gibson and Pike counties is of excellent quality. Gibson
county ranks 4th in the state in coal reserves. Bencath the
coal are clays that are suitable for the manufacture of tiles,
fire-bricks. terra-cotta and pottery.

Though of importance to the county during its early
vears, natural gas supplies have diminished. In 1906 there
were one hundred twenty-two gas wells that produced
minimal amounts of gas. An oil field is located mostly in
Patoka township near northwestern Princeton.

The sand ridges. which at first seemed of little
value, led to the growing of melons. The county has become
famous for its quantity and quality of melons. Cantaloupe
season begins about July 15th and watermelon season
begins about August 1st.

The county is basically agricultural. However,
Toyota is building a huge truck assembly plant close to
Princeton. Supporting industries will soon follow as well a
housing and shopping.

Various towns and cities were platted in the county.
Some fared well. Others are now defunct. These included
Princeton (the county secat), Buena Vista, Dongola.
Economy, Fort Branch, Francisco, Haubstadt, Hazelton,
Johnson, Kirkville, Mackey, East Mt. Carmel, MaKaw
Summit, Oakland City, Owensville, Patoka. Skelton.
Smithfield, Summitville (Somersville), Warrenton, and
Windham.  Warrenton, an early stage coach stop and
trading post, has the Log Inn, Indiana's oldest restaurant that
was built in 1825. Canal towns were Dongola, Francisco,
and Port Gibson. This book contains more information
about the canal towns and mentions the others in passing.

Native Americans

Gibson County was home to the remnants of several
Native American tribes--the Shawnee, Sacs, Fox, Kickapoo,
Miami and Pottawatomies. Shawnee Chief “Old Trackwell”
had a village on Indian creek about two miles northeast of
present day Princeton. The Miamis, who claimed ownership
of a portion of the territory, had a fort on the Patoka river.
The last Native American village located two miles west of
present day Owensville was destroyed by Capt. Jacob
Warrick in 1807. After the Native American removal by
Colonel Pepper and General Tipton in 1838 only a few
remained. They too soon fled from the encroaching white
settlers.

First Settlers

Gibson County's actual first settler was John
Severns. He and his family came to America from Wales
shortly before the Revolutionary War. John volunteered for
the war. One day he returned to visit his parents. A group
of Native Americans attacked his family killing his father,
mother, sister and younger brother. They took and kept
John and his older brother prisoners. After seven years John
managed to escape and fled to Pennsylvania where he later
married. He took a job assisting the government surveyors
in Maryland and Kentucky.

In 1789 Sevemns and his family settled on the south
bank of the Patoka River in a cave. Having lived with his
captors he had learned their language and was able to
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converse with Old Trackwell and win him over. After
several months the local Native Americans allowed John to
construct a crude hut of boughs, skins, and other materials.
He planted apple and peach seeds from Kentucky and had
trees producing fruit before 1802,

Severns was later allowed to run a ferry across the
Patoka River (now known as Severns Bridge) if he furnished
"firc water" to the Native Americans and let them use the
ferry for free. He was known to smoke the peace pipe with
them and is credited for preserving peace upon the arrival of
other settlers. He was an interpreter and also dealt with the
Indian agent.

Even though Severns participated in many of the
Native Americans” hunting and fishing expeditions and their
sports, he had a run-in with Old Trackwell. He made the
mistake of beating the chief in a race. This angered the old
chicf who began dancing around Scverns shouting loud war
whoops. Another race was run and Severns was smart
cnough to let the chief win thus pacifying him.

The land on which Severns actually lived belonged
to the Miamis. Their chief. “Old Never-Sleep,” was friendly
with Severns but basically ignored the other settlers.

In 1776 John Severns was made a Mason In
Williamsburg, Virginia. He died around 1829 and was
buried near where he settled.

Some of Gibson County's earliest settlers were the
families of Gervas Hazelton and Daniel Hazelton, David
Robb (1800), John Johnson (1802). William Hargrove and
Joseph Milburn (1803), and James McClure (1805). After
1809 settlers came in more rapidly. The county's early
setters were principally from the Carolinas, Kentucky,
Tennessee and Virginia. They were intelligent and pious
which set the moral tone for the county.

During the summer of 1810 Tecumseh was stirring
up trouble in northern Indiana saying the settlers were taking
the land from his people and driving them out. The settlers
in southern Indiana were fearful that the Native Americans
would raid their scttlements. At that time they built three
forts in Patoka township where present day Princeton is
located. These were Fort Branch, Fort Hopkins, and the
stockade at William Harrington's. This scare slowed down
settlement for a time. but by 1811 it was hard to recall all
who settled in the county,

It is also noted that the first Gibson County Court
of Common Pleas was held in the home of William
Harrington on Monday, May 10, 1813 pursuant to the
provisions of the enabling act for the organization of the
county. Harrington was the president judge and his
associate judges were Isaac Montgomery and Daniel
Putnam,

Princeton

Princeton is the county seat and is located about six
miles northwest of Port Gibson. It was founded on March
28, 1814 by Robert M. Evans but was named for William
Prince, a local attorney and legislator. Princeton was located
at the intersection of the Buffalo Trace and the Red Bank
Trace which ran from Kentucky to Vincennes. It was Evans
who was instrumental in getting the legislature to carve out
portions of Warrick & Posey counties to form Vanderburgh
(Jan 7, 1818). Evans also purchased land from Hugh
McGary at the location of the new town of Evansville, which
McGary named in honor of his supporter. Robert Evans
was also the Representative who introduced the Internal
Improvements Bill in January 1836. He had many
connections with the canal.

The Wabash and Erie Canal

The last "golden sections" of the "Final Link"
portion of the Wabash & Eric Canal were completed
between 1849-1853 and connected with the Cross-Cut
Canal at Worthington. At last the Wabash & Erie was
complete.

Port Gibson

The first stop on our tour is Port Gibson. This was
a small town on the canal but was strategically located at the
Pigeon Creck Reservoir. The water supply is the most
critical element in the operation of a canal. In southern
Indiana this supply came from damming Pigeon Creck 18
miles and 24 chains north of Evansville by building a feeder
dam and short feeder canal and by constructing Pigeon
Creek Reservoir. The feeder dam and feeder canal supplied
915 cubic feet of water per minute to the main canal all the
way to Evansville for eight months of the year. But during
the other four month dry period. water was supplied from
the Pigeon Creek Reservoir, which was located a little
further north, to the feeder dam and then down the main
canal to Evansville at the rate of 955 cubic feet per minute.

Page 35




THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

The Wabash and Erie Canal is visible behind the pig lot
and in front of the tree line. Lock No. 67 was a short
distance to the left of this picture. The Pigeon Creek

Reservoir was to the right of the picture.

At first the southern most portion of the canal was
going to be supplied from a reservoir at Flat Creck.
However. this was found to be insufficient. In the Resident
Engineer’s Report of November 25, 1830 to J. L. William

Chief Engineer from Wm. J. Ball, Ball statcs:

“I:i_n&ing the Flat Creck Reservoir so unfa.v‘ora})le,
an examination was made for an eligil:lc site on the head
waters of Pigeon Creek which resulted succeﬁﬁlﬂy. A
suitable p]ace was found for making‘ a bank across the vanoy
where its width is only 36 chains and the top waler line of
the Reservoir surveyed, including an area of 1480 acres.
Ordinates were also run, Ly which the content of the
Reservoir, when [u“ is ascertained with reliable accuracy,
to be 387,814,680 cubic feet. Tts maximum heig}a’c will be
7 fcel. A, an(] the greatest avaﬂable &eptll at t11e Luﬂa hearl,
10 feet. For a considerable portion of the distance around,
the banks are a}umpt; another portion has a more genl.le
inc].in_ation, and a part of the border is very flat. A
&epress-ion of 2 feet will expose 200 acres of land; a
depre:-;sion of 4 feet will expose 460 acres; and a (1epression
of 6 feet, 680 acres. But around the flat portion of its
border there are no settlements, and prol)alwly never will be.

A very small portion of the entire arca is arable land.”

“The area of country incliﬁi_ng towards, and the
d:rai_nagc of which would he caught ij the Pigeon Creek
Reservoir, was ascertained l)y survey to be 14,876 acres,
exclusive of the area of the Reservoir. The basis *formil‘lg
the Pigeon Creck Reservoir is remarkably well acla.ptoc] lo
the retention of water, ]Jemg a 'tight impervious cla_\' soil;
and the Surmlm(ling counlry is genemuy lnigll and roHi_ng,
in portions broken, ]'iﬂving also a clay soil is well calculated
to drain off into the Reservoir, a largc proportion of the

rain that falls upon it.”

“In my calculations of the probably available
quantily of water to be laid up in the Pigeon Creek
Reservoir, | have assumed an annual fall of rain and snow
melted of 35 vertical inches, and that two-fifths of this, or
14 vertical inches, would flow into the Reservoir. This
quantity would amount to 755,998,320 cubic feet. 1 have
suppnseﬁ an allowance of 4 fect vertical over a mean surface
of the Reservoir (1,027 acres) would be an ampie allowance
for loss }Jy evaporation and ]ea]vage, c(mgi(].ering the pcc'uliar
tenacity of the soil. This would amount to 178,944 480
cubic {ee’c, and ]Jciﬂg deducted from the (]ra{nage aho\re,
wou]cl }.eavc a net supp]y of 557,053,840 CUIJJI.C fcct; W}'iiﬂ}'i
would afford 1,097 cubic [eet per minute for 12 months.
Tt is intended to raise the Reservoir bank 5 feet above top
water line. It will be 10 feet wide on top, with slopes of 1
3/4 to 1 and in its centre there will be a tight wall of 2 inch
oak plan}e, cxtcnc].i_ng about 2 feet below the natural su ncace,

and 2, feet above the top water line of the Reservoir.”

“There is on the cast side of the Reservoir a high
point of land compose& of hard clay, underlaid with soft
sand stone roc}«, at a suitable level for the foundations of
the Reservoir Culverts, rendering the location particulm'i_v
eligi];:]e. From the culverts, a short and chcap feeder will
lead the water into the Canal just below the Tock.”

“At the North end of Pigeon Summit (_lieep cut, a
Lock will be put in having a lift varying from 1 to 3 feet;
the latter being its lift when the Reservoir is filled to top
water line; and t]wough the Reservoir, the embankments
are raised to an extra hcig]ﬂ: of 3 feet to Laeep them at all
times above water. The water will be admitted into the
Canal from the Reservoir ljy suitable waste weirs, and at the
north end of Pigeon Summit, a large waste weir will be

pmvi(le& lo (].iscl'mrge any ex’craorclinar}' floods that may
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ocour, and the excessive drainage of certain years. It is
intended to put in 4 gates 2 feet square for drawing the
water from the Reservoir to fll the Canal, and these
Logetller with the waste weirs at the North end of the
Reservoir, will be ampiy sufficient to c].i-schargc unusual
floods S and prevent the water rising l’;igher than is intended.
But the Reservoir bank is raised 5 feet extra height, and
would safely bear a rise of 2 feet, which would hold half the
1arges_t mon{]lly clrai_uagc that has occurred c}uri_ng the last
15 years. But it is not pr()]:)a})}e the Reservoir bank will ever
be cxpose(l to this extra pressure, and T do not think the
extreme oscillations in the surface of the water, from the
lowest stage in the fall, to the hig‘}lest, pro]aal}ly in Jn_]y,
need exceed six feet. It is intended to clear 250 acres of the
border of the Pigeon Creek Reservoir, which will be
a]’cema’teiy covered with water, and then exposed to the sumn,
and prevent any just cause of complaint, that the health of
the country has been i.mpaire& ];)y ﬂooding the land.”

“Tt will be seen that the distance from l\:ew]_!ut‘y
(Newberry) Dam to the South end of Pigeon Reservoir, is
64 miles and 6 c}mins, and the estimated supply of water
require&l, 4,338 cubic feet per minute. From the Pigeon
Reservoir to Pig’eon Crecb foader Dam, the distance is 13
ml'_i_eﬂ an(l 9 c]’m.in,-?, an(l the esltimatE(l suppj}' U{ water
require(!. is 655 cubic feet per minute. [From the Pigeon

Feeder Dam to Evansviue, the distance is 18 miles and 24

claaina, requiring Q15 culﬁc foet 0£ water per minute.”

“For the supply of the line from New}gury
{New}nerry} Dam to the South end of the Pigeon Reservoir,
there is a great superalmnclance of water, furnished Ly
White River, and there cannot be the least A.i‘F}CicuIty in
senc].mg forward an ample ?upp!y, con gi(}.eﬁng‘ the peculiarly
impervious character of the soil, and also the en]argemcnt
of the Canal to 5 feet depth of water, to near Ma,ysviﬂe, and
4 1/2 feet (].cptll, to the south end of Patoka Summit; and
the current, with the increased capacity, will be so moderate

. d . % »”
as nol lo 1npede navigation.

When completed the Pigeon Creek Reservoir was
stocked with lake fish and became a fishing resort.
Later when the reservoir was drained, the land was
found to be good farm land.

In a History of Gibson County, Indiana, Gil

Stormont quotes JR Strickland. "The history of the rise
and fall of Port Gibson is clos’ol}r interwoven with that of
the Wabash & Erie cana.L a waler-way projecl bom in
1827...The canal extended t]nmugh the eastern parl of
Gibson county and furnished a highway for the
transportation of much of the protlucts of the counly. The
little town mf Port Gibson, on the southeast laan}e of the

ca.nal, thrived and waxed strong."

"The canal also built locks (No. 07 & (/)8) at Port
Gibson and -altogeLher the little settlement became an
important station, in {:ﬁ.Ct, the principal canal point in

s "
Gibson counly.

During 1851-52 Elisha Embree, an attorney of
Princeton, and Samuel Shannnon platted the town of Port
Gibson and otherwise prepared for a permanent village. It
was incorporated on May 26, 1852. By that time Port
Gibson boasted of having a store, a blacksmith shop and a
flouring mill, the latter being promoted by Mr. Iglehardt of
Evansville. Later on 'Dud' Campbell started a saloon. For
a time, after the completion of the canal, passenger traffic
was quite heavy and the boats always stopped for an hour or
two at Port Gibson."

Francisco

The canal continued northeast through the highlands
of Pigeon summit that divides the watershed between Pigeon
Creek and the Patoka river. The first settlers in the area near
Franciso were William and Catherinc Hensley Reavis who
came n 1817, In 1818 William's two brothers and their
families joined them. David Johnson moved from his
original home m Gibson County. where he settled in 1810,
to the area around Francisco in 1817. Other families drifted
in and settled. But the advent of the canal spurred John
Perkins to plat and lay out the town of Francisco in January
6, 1851 on the east side of the canal in Center township.
Perkins built several business buildings, two flowering mills,
and a sawmill. He was also a merchant and a dealer in real
estate.

In the carly 1850s there were two established roads
that led to Francisco. One was a road that ran south from
Hugh Murphy's blacksmith shop to Evansville and the other
ran west from that shop to Princeton. Two other winding
country roads ran to Somerville and to Oakland City. At
that time the village consisted of about 12 homes. A grist
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mill where John Shanner lived stood on the canal bank.
South of it was located the saw mill and log house which
stood beside the canal bridge. The post office, conducted
by John Perkins, was on Main street. The mail arrived and
was distributed every Saturday. There was a frame school
house (16 ft. x 18 ft.) which also served as a church.

"Aunt Nancy" (Granny McConnell) was called in to
help with all illnesses since there was no practicing
physician. Her charge for obstetrics was two dollars and
fifty cents. No road was too muddy, no woods too dark, no
weather too bad for her to answer the call of someone in
need.

In November of 1857 a tornado set down near the
head of the old reservoir, proceeded northeast through
heavily timbered land, and hit the town of Francisco.
Several buildings were wrecked, some people were
seriously injured, but no one was killed.

By 1858 Francisco boasted three large pork packing
houses and warehouses, three large grain warchouses,
several general stores and a few smaller businesses. The
carly pioneer businessmen were Reuben Baldwin, William
Moore, S. G. Bamnett and Moore & Knowles.

During the Civil War a stranger came to Francisco
who was thought to be a southern spy interested in Morgan's
movements. When some of Francisco's soldiers came home
on furlough accompanied by some boys from southern
states, it was mentioned that this stranger named Worrell
lived among them. He came onto the street at about that
time and one of the Tennessee soldiers (Wells) deliberately
shot and killed him. Worrell was buried in the Francisco
cemetery. Wells was quickly sent to Evansville. There were
a few Francisco citizens who held southern sympathies.
They were known as "Copperheads" or "Butternuts" and met
secretly as the "Knights of the Golden Circle." Some of the
women indulged in hair pulling when they heard treasonous
words spoken by another woman.

Getting the news of the war was so important that
clubs were formed that met at members’ homes to hear the
news. Since the mail arrived only weekly, they would send
someone everyday to Princeton to pick up the mail from the
Francisco box and bring back the Evansville Journal and the
Cincinnati Gazette or Enquirer. If real important news from
the front was to be reported, the church bell was rung
outside of regular worship hours. Many learned of the death

of a relative in this manner.

Francisco was incorporated as a town in 1907. The
Francisco State Bank was organized in 1908 and its building
cost $1,900 to erect.

Dongola

From Francisco the canal followed the lowlands of
the Patoka river to Dongola which was platted on March 10,
1851 by William Carpenter and Isaac Steele. There the
canal crossed the river on an open trunk aqueduct. The
contractors on the section of the canal at Dongola and the
building of the aqueduct were Stewart and Rockefellow.
They, as was the case of most canal contractors, were
honorable men who had many men engaged to work on their
section. Shortly after beginning their section Bev Willis, a
rather wild fellow, built a shanty boat (10 ft. x 15 ft.) on the
Patoka river. It became a den of drunkards. Contractor
William H. Stewart found his best men beginning to neglect
their work and gave Willis one week to take away his boat
and whiskey. Willis obeyed, sold his whiskey to another
"doggery man," tore up his boat and moved to California.

BY NATE TAGMEYER

Then Spradley came to Dongola to build a whiskey
shanty. There were no laws against this at the time. Anyone
who built a log shanty and purchased a barrel of whiskey at
twenty-five cents a gallon could own his own "doggery."
Many of these drinking dens arose along the canal route.
Spradley brought two barrels of whiskey from Warrick
county and set up his doggery. He boasted that the canallers

Page 38



THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

would have to get busy to get rid of him. Stewart took
several of his bosses armed with picks to break open the
barrels and dump the whiskey onto the ground. This ended
the selling of liquor in Dongola.

The Irish were known for their drinking and
fighting. About this time the Irish would get drunk and pick
a fight with an American by calling him a "Know-Nothing."
If he resented the remark about fifteen Irish would attack
him. About noon of clection day in 1852, Mr.Swallow was
seen running down a road near Francisco being chased by a
group of men who called him a "Know-Nothing." When he
was near the crowded polls, he stopped, faced his pursuers,
and clubbed two of them. Ed Mosley went to his aid and
began knocking the Irish men about until the whole gang
started to fight. Swallow bloodied the noses and heads of
over half of the gang.

Most of the sections on the canal were a mile long.
But in the case of a section that had lots of heavy work, it
would be shorter so that the sections could each be
completed about the same time. The canal towpath and
berm were built of dirt that was hauled in one-horse carts.
When the haul was not over two hundred vards, the usual
procedure was to have four carts and four shovel men.
When the procedure was done correctly, as a full cart left to
be deposited on the bank another empty cart arrived to be
filled with dirt.

Over each forty men and carts was a boss. Most of
the shovelers were Irishmen. Most of the lumbermen who
cut timbers for culverts or bridges were Americans. The
workers were given a half gill of whiskey each day.

One of the heaviest work sections on the canal was
that over Keg Creek and its bottoms. Its contractor was
Ragon. The fill across these bottom lands was one hundred
feet wide and somewhere between fifteen to eighteen feet to
the canal's bottom. Along the sides of this fill was built the
berm bank (10 ft. wide) and towpath. These were six feet
higher than the canal bottom. It took a great number of men.
many carts and many teams of mules or oxen. These teams
often consisted of as many as eight yoke of oxen to pull one
huge plow. It took a total of nearly three years to complete
the work at Keg Creek.

The contractor for the heavy works across
Hurricane Creck was Patrick Manning. Pat McTurbon
worked for Manning for two years as his trusted
bookkeeper. McTurbon was such a good civil engineer that

the resident engineer of the canal, Mr. Ball. said he was
more competent that any other man working on the canal
and offered him a job working for him with a good salary.
McTurbon turned down the offer saying Manning was a
good man and he'd continue with him until the work was
completed.

One day a little lean man came to Manning to apply
for a job and asked for light work. Manning hired him to
replace his drunken jigger boss. Soon after hiring him,
another man came from Canada and took a job as a
shoveler. After several weeks of work. these men and
McTurbon did not show up for work. McTurbon's shanty
was locked on the outside as it usually was when he went to
work, but strange noises emitted from the building.
Manning had the lock removed and found the Canadian and
jigger boss tied up in strait jackets and gagged. They were
secured to the floor by a heavy stake. McTurbon had fled
with his instruments and good clothing. He wrote the
following note to Manning;

"Under circumstances over which I have no control,
I am compelled to leave your service, which I sincerely
regret.  Your accounts and time are correct up to yesterday
evening. You will, on the floor of my domicile, find two
guests of mine that T part from with satisfaction."

It was soon learned that the men on the floor were
Scotland Yard detectives from London, who had spent six
years chasing down John Cecil (McTurbon). He had robbed
an English nobleman of over five hundred thousand dollars
of jewelry. mostly diamonds. They knew he was an engineer
and had followed him all over England and America.

McTurbon always kept his shanty locked. The
detectives discovered that there was a large log on the north
side of it to make it sit level on the hillside west of Hurricane
Creek. They wiggled under the shanty and pried loose a
floor board while McTurbon was at supper. They planned
to return in the dark of the night and search for the
diamonds. However, McTurbon discovered the loose board
and laid in wait. When the men crawled under the shanty the
Jigger boss removed the plank, handed it to his partner, and
passed through the hole into the shanty. McTurbon hit him
with a sandbag and knocked him out. Then McTurbon
whispered to the man bencath the floor to come on in and as
he did he knocked him senseless. He then tied them up and
fled. The men weren't able to leave until ten days later due
to their injuries.
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The Irish

The workers, who were mostly Irish, lived in
boarding house shanties some of which were as large as
cighty feet long and were capable of housing as many as
fifty men on bunks. Others only accommodated four to six
men. There were a hundred of these shanties between the
Patoka Summit in Pike County and the Pigeon Summit
iin Gibson County. Rough stables for the teams of horses,
mules and oxen stood beside them along the canal.  All these
buildings looked like a string town along the canal.

The Irish drank heavily. With living and working in
such close proximity to one another, such carrying on had
never been scen before in Indiana. An example of how the
Irish loved to drink and quarrel was reported by Gil
Stromont as happening to him personally. He and young Pat
Manning, the son of canal contractor Patrick Manning at
Dongola, were unloading hay on Christmas morning in 1852
at the Manning home. Close by was a small Irish shanty.
The man and his wife were thoroughly drunk and having a
quarrel. All of a sudden the door of the shanty flew open
and the Irishman's wife landed on the frozen ground. Pat
Jumped off the hay wagon and ran to the man knocking him
down. The wife grabbed a shovel and struck Pat in the head
saying, "Again, Mr. Manning, you will learn to keep out of
our little pleasantries."

In another incident A, J. Malone was attacked by
drunken Irish workers when he returned home from having
a single-tree repaired. He used the single-tree as a club to
knock down seventeen of them. but he was hit in the head
with a pick handle and left for dead. His friends took him to
his home. After several weeks he regained his right mind
and described his attackers. He knew some by name.

A twenty man posse armed with guns went to the
boarding shanties. They forced the Irish to come out and
pass through a double line of the posse to be identified. All
but three had been tipped off and fled. The three that
remained had been hurt so badly during the fight that they
could not escape. John Loyd later killed one of them for
bragging how he beat Malone. The other two mysteriously
disappeared, probably killed by the Americans.

Asiatic Cholera

The cholera epidemics, which began in New York
City in 1832 and continued intermittently through 1873,

soon reached Indiana and Gibson County. It was hit harder
than most counties in the state with the exception of those
heavily populated along the Ohio River. During the summer
of 1852 eighty died. Whole families were entirely wiped out
by the epidemic. Another twenty or more died in 1873. A
few others recovered from the disease.

Fear was struck in the hearts of the people when
they learned of the fatal plague for which there was no
known remedy. It must be noted that at that time cholera was
known to be a contagious disecase. Not until 1884 was it
discovered that it was caused by bacteria and could be
controlled by quarantine and disinfection. Taking measures
to insure cleanliness eventually led to the eradication of
epidemics though some individuals still caught it.

THE UNDERTAKER

People became suspicious of one another dreading
contracting the disease. Conducting business and pursuing
pleasures was done only if necessary. Families who lost
some of their members often had to bury their dead by
themselves. However, sometimes there were men and
women who were true heroes and heroines. They entered the
homes of cholera stricken victims, cared for them, buried
their dead and did not ask for compensation. After an
epidemic the community was left with sadness and deep
lasting impressions.

Cholera first reached the United States in 1832
spreading down the Mississippi River and through the Great
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Lakes from Canada. It appeared again in 1848 always
spreading along water or road routes. In 1848 New York
City maintained a strict quarantine but New Orleans,
Louisiana, had no quarantine facilities and the epidemic
spread up the Mississippi and Ohio river valleys. By 1849
it reached Louisville, KY and Cincinnati. OH. In
Cincinnati, one hundred sixty people died in one day.

It wasn't until 1852 that the epidemic reached
Gibson County. It hit the Wabash and Erie Canal
construction camp located about seven miles southeast of
Princeton where between two to three hundred Irish
immigrant workmen lived. Sanitation among canal workers
and their shanties was terrible. Most of the men lived like
amimals. This left them open to discase. In less than three
weeks eighty people had died.

Many people fled following this first outbreak.
Bodics of the dead remained where they had died for days
before burial. It was next to impossible to find men to bury
them. Some of the Irish who had stricken family members
remained behind and since they were already exposed they
agreed to bury the dead. Long trenches near the canal
reservoir were dug to receive the bodies. A few bodies were
taken to Vincennes to be buried on consecrated ground. In
most cases those who helped also lost their lives.

There were also deaths among community residents.
The newspapers of the day only contain meager accounts of
cholera attacks. A Mr. Woods of Princeton was one who
died from it. A report written by Col. W. M. Cockrum
states in one history that cholera along the line one summer
and fall killed almost 1000 (sic 100) people in his estimation
between the Patoka and Pigeon Summits. At the Potter
farm, located three miles northwest of Qakland City. the
death toll was so great that they brought Whitelock. a cooper
from Francisco, to build coffins. After nailing his sixticth
body in a box, he said, "I have nailed the cholera up, and no
more will die." A two short hours later his body was placed
in one of his boxes and nailed shut. People fled the works
like cattle in a stampede. Work didn't resume until cold
weather came.

The scourge entered Gibson County again in 1873,
It traveled up the Mississippi valley and became epidemic
in Evansville and Mt. Vernon, IN, in Cairo and Carmi, IL,
and in Paducah. KY. where many deaths occurred.

It is believed to have recached Princeton, IN, from

onc of these infected places. At Princeton Mrs, John
Seabrooks, an old lady who did laundry for a living, is
thought to have become infected from handling the clothing
of someone who had been in some infected territory.

Shipping By Canal

Once the canal was completed, shippers had the
lowest rates that had ever been seen in Gibson County. One
of the old record books, kept by James and Col. W. M
Cockrum for their pork packing and tobacco business in
Dongola, showed that they shipped from Dongola to
Evansville "tierces of lard, two hundred and fifty pounds, for
ten cents each. barrel of pork for eight and a third cents
each, and hogsheads of tobacco, sixteen to eighteen hundred
pounds, for fifty cents cach."

BY PAUL BAUDENDISTEL

Most of the boats that used the canal in this arca
were heavy freighters. But the "Prairic Queen" and the
"Pride of the Wabash" were packet boats that ran from
Evansville to Terre Haute on the canal. These could carry
around thirty-five passengers each in finely finished sleeping
apartments and could carry even morc passengers if they
provided their own sleeping needs. The packet boats ran day
and night with four shifts of horses trving to cover one
hundred miles every twenty-four hours.

Schools

About 1810 schools were started in small log
cabins. The carly teachers were Ira Bostwick, David Buck,
Adley Donald, John Kell, and Major James Smith.

Physicians

Gibson county did not establish a county medical
society until May 1, 1874. Before then so called "olden
time" practitioners aided the citizens. These were Cook,
Day, Downey, Fullerton, Graff, Howard, Kell, Littlepage,
McCollough, Mumford, Neely, Patten, Pennington,
Stockwell, Walling, and West.
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NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS,
THEE unidersigtied T'rustees of ths Wabash and
L - Erie Canal; hetoby give ntticothar theywill re-
'eelvo'lon}aﬂ proposals at Point Commerce in: Gireane
County, Indidng, on the 15th day:of November noxt,
for-the eonauruetion of 17 miles of said Cwnal, 8xten-
ding along-the valley bf the west fork of White River,
frow Poinit Uonitnerce to the vallage of Newberry in
said County.. -On this division, there-are ta be con-
structed 6'Lif¥-Locks, one Guard-Lock,a Pam acrose
‘W hita Rwar--,"lﬂfqut, in height and over 400 fest. in
length; together with. the usual variety of work be-
fonglng to a Canet: The line will be divided into
sections averaging about halfa milein length,
At the ssmetime and place; proposals will beve
ceived for the performance of 8 partof the Rook Ex-
cavation at the Petoka Bummit, in Pike county.—
This section will smbrace nesr 20,000 cuble yards of
volid rock, varyingin depth. from 41015 feet, to-
gether awvith & porvion of earth excavation, 2
he work to be done will be read fy for inspection
{or two weeks previous to the doy-of Jettidg, during
which time sl Recasary informaﬁm’:_-Wiﬂg
by 16 Redident Bagineer. .=
~Payments will be-inade a5 the work progresees, in

par funds.
CHARLES BUTLER,) .
A M. PUETT, % Trustees 4o.
- THO® H. BLLAKE. _
Orict or Tne Boaro oy Trusrzss, Tt
‘Vorre-Haute, Ind.. Bop.7,:1848, { sop 13444

be giyen

Canal Letting.

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS.

THE undersigned Trustees of the Wabash and Erie Canal,
hereby give notice that they will receive scaled proposals at
Point Commerce in Greene County, Indiana, on the 15th day of
November next, for the construction of 17 miles of said Canal,
extending along the valley of the west fork of White River, from
Point Commerce to the village of Newberry in said County.
Othis division, there are to be constructed 6 Lift-Locks. one
Guard-Lock, a Dam across White River, 12 feet in height and
over 400 feet in length: together with the usual variety of work
belonging to a Canal. The line will be divided into sections
averaging about half a mile in length.

At the same time and place, proposals will be received for
the performance of a part of the Rock Excavation at the Patoka
Summit. in Pike county.—This section will embrace ncar
20.000 cubic yards of solid rock, varying in depth from 4 to 15
feet. together with a portion of earth excavation.

The work to be done will be ready for inspection for two
weeks previous to the day of letting, during which time all
necesary (sic) information will be given by the Resident
Engineer.

Payments will be made as the work progresses, in par funds.
CHARLES BUTLER,
AM. PUETT,
THOS. H. BLAKE
OFFICE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES,
Terre-Haute, Ind., Sep. 7, 1848.

Trustees &c.

sep 13-td

Courtesy of Stan Schmitt
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PIKE COUNTY

Pike County is located in southwestern Indiana and
1s the second county within the state from both the Wabash
River and the Ohio River. It is bordered by Knox and
Daviess countics on the north, Dubois County on the cast,
Warrick County on the south and Warrick and Gibson
Counties on the west. The major rivers running through the
county are the White and the Patoka. It covers 335 square
miles of land. It ranks 74th in area and 83rd in population
to Indiana's other counties.

The castern section of the county i1s hilly with nice
overlooks. To the west the land is more rolling. The
southeastern portion of the county has been croded from 120
to 160 feet since ancient times creating the hills and washing
away fertile soils. Sand deposits, "barrens," are proof of the
erosion. East of Petersburg the soil is black and rich and was
the site of an early prairie. Bluffs over 100 feet high along
the White River indicate the river’s height in ancient times.

Several types of coal underlie the county, but
valuable coking coal is predominant. Pike County ranks
eighth of the 20 coal producing counties. Clay and sand for
brick making and fire clay for pottery are available. Iron ore
is found in the limestone beds of the Wabash and Erie Canal
and along the White River north of Petersburg. The
southwestern part of the county has clay iron stones which
are good for paint. The county's sandstone is of good
quality for building and weathering. Some limestone is
found in thin layers.

The water north of the Patoka River found in
springs and wells is fairly good, but that to the south is high
in mineral salts and tastes unpleasant. Three of the
mineral springs are supposed to possess high medicinal
qualities.

Pike County Is an agricultural county and ranks
80th in the state in farm acres. However, these acres
outproduce most other counties in crops and livestock.

Bituminous coal deposits are being strip mined
today. Some of the coal is used by the Hoosier Energy REC,
Inc. and the Indianapolis Power and Light Company
generating plants located just north of Petersburg on the
White River.

Communities within the county include Alford.
Algiers, Arcadia, Arthur, Augusta, Glezen (Hosmer),
Hartwell, High Banks, Littles. Muren, Otwell, Petersburg,
Pikeville, Pleasantville, Willisville and Winslow. This book
will primarily cover those along the canal line--Hosmer
(Glezen), Petersburg, and Willisville.

First Settlers

Woolsey Pride came to White Oak Springs, located
Jjust about one-half mile west of Petersburg, in 1800
accompanied by his family and most likely his brother,
William, By 1807 he had built a block-house that was
constructed of huge oak logs. It was a square building two-
storics tall with port-holes in its walls. It was still in good
condition when torn down in 1918. Pride was joined by
Henry Miley (1802); Coonrod and Tislow families(1803);
David Miley (1804); and Hosea Smith, Charles and
Ashbury Alexander, and Jacob Chappell (1811).

When Hosea Smith arrived in 1811 he bought the
block-house from Pride and built a log palisade that led from
the fort to the spring. At the time the Native Americans
were upset with the whites taking over their lands. Charles
Risley and the Scallerhern and Walker families arrived in
1812. The block-house offered protection during the War of
1812 to many such families who came and then remained
after the war.

Even before Pike was established as a county.
Hosea Smith laid out a town in 1815 at White Oak Springs
which he called Alexandria . He established the first post
office at the "Springs"” on the old Native American trace
from Louisville to Vincennes and became the first
postmaster. He was also a surveyor, justice of the peace,
merchant and farmer. Had Smith been willing to donate the
land for the county seat, it probably would have been in
Alexandria (Whitc Oak Springs).

The first mail carrier was Mathias Mounts.
However, it was George Teverbaugh who carried the mail
once a week on foot from the White River at Decker Ferry
to White Oak Springs, then to Mud Holes, French Lick,
Paoli. and ending in Louisville.

By 1816 the Petersburg area was settled by James
Brenton, Peter Brenton, Thomas Case, Thomas Mead, John
Flinn, Moses Harrell, John Mclntire, Thomas Stewart, and
the Sarter family. Hosea Smith surveyed the site and laid
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out 152 lots on April 3, 1817. The town was named
Petersburg after Peter Brenton, who donated the main
amount of the land for the county seat. On April 14th of that
year the first lot was sold at a public sale to Robert M.
Evans for $144.00. This was the highest price paid for a lot
then or at any later sale.

County Established

Pike County was formed out of parts of Knox,
Perry and Gibson Counties by an act of the General
Assembly of Indiana on December 21, 1816. It was named
for General Zebulon Pike, who was killed at the capture of
York, April 27, 1813, during the War of 1812 and who
discovered Pike's Peak in Colorado. A commission of five
men werc appointed to select the county scat. In an election
held in February the following year, the people of Pike
County chose Paul Tislow, James Campbell and Harrison
Blackgrave as county commissioners.

The county was in its infancy and had no
courthouse. Meetings and elections were held in homes. At
the first meeting of the commissioners in 1817, the report of
the five man commission to select the site of the county seat
was held.  Petersburg was chosen because of Brenton's gift
of land.

The county commissioners met on February 10,
1817 in the home of Hosea Smith to divide the county into
four townships, For the usc of his home Smith received
sixteen dollars a year rental. The first three townships
(Madison, Washington, Jefferson) werc in what today is
Pike County and the fourth (Harbinson) was is what is today
Dubois County and a small portion of Perry and Martin
Counties. Throughout the following years the county's and
townships' boundaries changed. In 1824 Harbinson
township was put into Dubois County and a part of Gibson
County was put into Pike County to form Clay township.
Monroe township was created in 1820 with a portion of it
cut off in 1838 to form Patoka township. Madison township
had Logan township carved out of it in 1846. Monroe
township had Lockhart township created out of it in 1852.
The final division was made in 1857 when Monroe township
was carved from Patoka township. Today Pike County has
nine townships,

Elections for the townships’ justices of the peace
was held on February 25, 1817. They took place in
Madison twp. in the home of Archibald Pea with Zacharia

Selby elected, in Washington twp. in the home of Henry
Miley with two justices elected, and in Jefferson twp. in the
home of James Brinton with John Case elected. The
commissioners also appointed John Butler constable and
James Brenton inspector of Washington township. Elections
were held again on August 4, 1817. For many years
thereafter there were elections once or twice a year to elect
township. county, or state officials.

Judge Hammond came to Pike County from
Massachusetts with a wagon filled with "worldly goods" and
glass in 1819 and settled at High Banks. When he built his
home it had sash and glass windows. People came from
miles around just to look at the house.

Not long after Petersburg was named the county
seat, a log courthouse was built costing $599.75 and a
whipping post and log jail were erected. The $1.340.00
two-story twenty-foot-square jail was constructed with
double walls one foot apart with upright timbers filling in
the one foot space. The cells were on the ground floor but
could only be rcached via a trap door from the upper floor.
The post office was moved from the "Springs" to Petersburg
with its postmaster being Major John Mclntire,

First Mill

The early settlers raised some corn and hogs to
supplement their dict of game and fish. They would grind
the corn in a hollowed out tree stump that had been
smoothed off thus forming a type of mortar. They used a
large coarse stone the size of the hollow as a pestle. They
would parch the corn and place a small amount at a time in
the hollow. Another method was to make a grater and
scrape the corn over the sharp points to produce a
moderately fine grain. One can sec why the advent of the
mill was so important.

In 1822 Thomas Milburn built a horse mill which he
sold to Henry Miley. Miley moved the two-horse mill to
Washington twp. to a site near the cemetery in 1824, Its
production capacity was only thirty-five bushels per day.
Often farmers would come as far as twenty miles away and
have to wait as long as thirty-six hours for their grain to be
ground. During this time they camped out and engaged in
shooting, racing and drinking. Miley's Mill is also noted as
the first place that bolting cloth was used in the county
(1829).
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A mill and copper distillery were built in 1826 by
John Youngman at what is now Petersburg. He could
produce about a barrel of whiskey per day. A bushel of corn
produced a gallon of "spirits." The commissioners allowed
him to charge 10 to 12 1/2 cents per gallon. In 1831 a fire
raged through the mill and distillery stocked full of barrels
of whiskey. As whiskey ran down the strect in streams the
local citizens, not wanting it to go to waste, took straws and
sipped it up until they were senseless.

WHISKEY
10-12 1/2 cents
per gallon

In 1827 a building was erected by Peter and James
Brenton to house their carding machine. That year William
Deadman built a log house in which he ran a hattery. He
supplied hats that often lasted as long as ten vears to a large
arca of the country. Boots and shoes were made by William
Cargle and Aaron Grider. Meredith Howard and Chris and
William Miller ran distilleries that supplied a large quantity
of corn and rye. They were located on the creek bank. The
Miller's grain for their distillery was ground using a tread-
mill.

A major mercantile business was set up by Matthew
Foster in Petersburg. Vincennes had been the major trading
post up until this time. Judge Matthew Foster became a
wealthy man through his pursuits and later moved to
Evansville where he died in 1861. He was the father of John
W. Foster, a minister to Mexico, and the great-grandfather
of John Foster Dulles, Sec. of State under Eisenhower.

Foster went into partnership with Albert Hammond
in 1828. They bought produce and shipped it by flat-boats
to New Orleans. This type of transportation was begun in
the area around 1825. The usual routine was to ship during
the winter, sell the flat boat for its timber in New Orleans,
and return home by steamboat, horseback, or on foot. These
boats were called "Broad Horns." This helped life improve

for the settlers, They now had better means of obtaining
supplies. Women’s homespun dresses were replaced by
calico and silk.

Also in 1828 a tanyard was built by Samuel
Stuckey. It operated for more than fifty years. It produced
about $1,300 worth of leather per year. The tanner would
keep one hide for every hide he tanned. This was known as
"on the shares." He tanned "Murrain" cattle hides, and some
deer and elk.

A saw and grist mill was built by Jacob Stuckey
somewhere between 1828-1830 that was powered by a
trcad-mill. It was torn down at his death in 1838,

Wildlife

Hundreds of deer and wild turkey were hunted. On
one trip Langworth took a flatboat load of deer hams and
hides down the river in 1832. Five hundred of these pairs of
deer hams were purchased from David and Ed Corn for 13
to 25 cents a pair. Another time Solomon Teverbaugh killed
scventeen wild turkeys in one day and carried them six miles
to his home. The next day he carried them thirteen miles on
foot to Vincennes, traded them for a bag of salt, and returned
home yet that day.

Snakes were also prevalent in the county. In
Petersburg there was a spring known as "Town Spring"
where cight rattle snakes were killed by Moses Harrell and
Martin Miley. Peter Ferguson and his friends killed over
three hundred snakes. mostly rattlers, in a well known snake
den during the snakes™ torpid period, At another time
merchant George H. Proffitt killed several rattle snakes that
had holed up under a goods box that he had placed outside
his store for use as a step. They were discovered when John
Stuckey's marble rolled under the box while he was playing
marbles outside of the store. The largest of these snakes had
twenty-nine rattles and was over eight feet long. When it
was cut open, it was found to have eaten a quail. two
rabbits, and many mice. Besides running a store Proffitt
later served several terms in the State Legislature, two terms
in Congress as Representative from the district. and was
Minister to Brazil.

Businesses
General stores and groceries were built in the
1830s. The town of Petersburg grew slowly as did other
small communities such as Winslow. J. W. Cockrum loaded
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a flat boat from Patoka with pork at Winslow in 1835. In
1838 George Dean set up a mercantile business in Winslow
and became wealthy. His will set up a charity fund to
provide relief for destitute widows living within eight miles
of Winslow.

Wm. McCormack shipped the first hogshead of
tobacco from the county in 1841. It destination was New
Orlcans.

Annual Muster

Up until it was repealed in 1839, there was an
annual autumn muster where officers wore dress uniforms.
These consisted of a blue swallow-tailed coat trimmed with
stripes of red tape on the breast, a double row of brass
buttons down the front. and large brass tinsel cpaulets; a
pair of buckskin or homespun trousers; a three-cornered hat
with a plume; a pair of moccasins; and a sword. The
soldiers dressed in regular frontier dress and carried rifles or
muskets. Many officers obtained their titles of Captain,
Major, Colonel or General at these company, regiment, or
brigade musters even though “not a drop of blood” was
shed. Occasionally there was some excitement when an old
dispute was settled through a bout of fisticuffs.

Wabash and Erie Canal

Construction of the Wabash and Eric Canal was
begun in 1849 from Maysville to Petersburg which was
thought to develop the resources of the area. In the Annual
Report of the Trustees of the Wabash and Erie Canal of
December 26, 1850 the trustees state:

“At the last named point (Newberry Dam), and at
the several locks between this dam and Maywi”e, in
Daviess Counl.y, lhere Wi“ 1)(—: a larger amount o[ water
power than on any other portion of the canaL the
improvement of which will tend to écvelope (sic) the
resources and advance the wealth of this porlion of the
State. I is in this light, chiefly, that the leasing of water-
power on any portion of the canal is sanctioned. As a

source of direct revenue, it is of but little consequence.

In 1850 the canal construction was extended from
Petersburg to Evansville through Pike County and was
contracted to Messrs. Forrer, Sturgess and Hosmer on
September 6, 1850. The work was to be completed by
November 1, 1852 according to the Engineer's Report of the
Wabash & Erie Canal of November 18, 1851,

LETFING OVCON 'l'ltrt cras

LTI

Un the Wabash & Lr: Canal

HE undersignad, ‘Prustees of the Wabash and
Erie Canal,. will receive fenled proposals i
l’u: sesburgh, Pike county, Indiana, on the 1ith day
ui’ Nouve mbu Huxt, lor the construction of about 154
daptles of sald Canal, extending Irom Maysville to
1“«.u,rabur.( Thiis division embruces a large propor-
"rion ol the beraviest earth work on the canal, and is
W Ihy 1llf, niie: ulinii al’ cuntr.lciur-! acu;slumui to
Tenvy w ork, 'I'ne line w ill Le divided inw scetions
suited o the shape and. character of the ground, av-
‘ernging near a hulf nile in tength.
The an;m-‘uuunre ol the .\q_uvdut:l uver Bast Fork
of White River - wil! ajso be let, It iz about 400
Avet in length, eonsisting of” four spans ot neur 10v
tevt, sustaiued-by timbor urchids and truss- -work, and
ndw-ul from the weanther.
1I'he, work will be rendy for indpection for vne
week previous o the leting, and all nccessary in-
formation wiil be given by the resident Engioeer.
Bidders not known either to the Trustees, or to the
ICngineers, will be expeeted (00 encluse with their
jlu)pu‘* aly, sauslactory tc:-mmmmlu us to charucle r
and qualitication s

N LES BUTLER. g

Trustees of the
PO SR G S T e Wabash & Erie

' THOS H, BLAKE. Cahal.
Terre-Hnuate, Indey Sept. 19th, 1840 -—s0pt 28,

LETTING OF CONTRACTS

On the Wabash & Erie Canal

THE undersigned, Trustees of the Wabash and Erie Canal, will
receive sealed proposals at Petersburgh, Pike county, Indiana, on
the 14th day of November next, for the construction of about 13
1/2 miles of said Canal, extending from Maysville to Petersburg.
This division embraces a large proportion of the heavicst earth
work on the canal. and is worthy the attention of contractors
accustomed to heavy work. The line will be divided into sections
suited to the shape and character of the ground, averaging near a
half mile in Iength.

The superstructure of the Aqueduct over East Fork of White
River will also be let. It is about 400 feet in length, consisting of
four spans of near 100 feet, sustained by timber arches and truss
-work, and enclosed from the weather.

The work will be ready for inspection for one week previous
to the letting. and all necessary information will be given by the
resident Engineer. Bidders not known cither to the Trustees, or
to the Engineers, will be expected o enclose with their proposals,
satisfactory testimonials as to character and qualifications.
CHARLES BUTLER. Trustees of the
AM. PUETT, Wabash & Erie
THOS. H. BLAKE. Canal.

Terre-Haute, Ind.. Sept. 19th, 1849—sept 28.

Courtesy of Stan Schmitt
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Asiatic Cholera

The canal was not completed by November 1852
due to circumstances beyond the control of the contractors.
Besides extensive repairs that required extra time and funds,
Asiatic cholera broke out in 1850 in Pike County. The child
of an Irish canal worker was the first death due to the
disease. Her father died soon after. Before long laborers and
other Pike County citizens passed away. Stories were told
how a wagon pilled high with dead cholera victims would
pass by late at night. They were taken to Washington, IN
where a pricst performed the last rites. They were cither
buricd in a common grave or cremated.

At the stone quarry located along the Bluffs outside
of Petersburg, several of the workers died. Some of them
were buried in the Bluff Cemetery.

The frightened citizens of Petersburg fled. Only
twelve families stayed. To their credit Dr. J. R. Adams and
Dr. Alexander Leslie remained to give aid and to prevent the
disease from spreading.

Canal Work Continues

William Ball in The 1853 Annual Report of the
Resident Engineer dated December 6th, 1852 states:

'On the Petersburg Division, the payments
amount lo %57,902.62 leaving a pro]:a.l)le sum of
$11,600 yet to be paid. All the sections in this division
have been completed except two, viz: Nos. 186 and 192,
a.IlL:l 11}'}01'1 t]’]ese mlic]']. more WOI‘L Ilag alrea(l}’ })ee‘n (10118
than was contmnpla’cecl in the original estimates. On each

of these sections there is a river washed Muﬁf and at those

points the tow—pallj 18 necessarﬂy made parl.ly in the river
and based upon a sloping‘ rock. A portion of the material
of which the embankment has to be made, seems to become
semi-fluid and flattens out almost incleﬁnitcl}r. Other
portions adhere ’cogether, but are coutinua"y w];dmg at the
base. To reme(ly this evil on section 186, we have moved
the line over into the bluff several £eet, and cut llearly the
whole prism of the canal thmugh rock. On section 192
this plan could not be aclopted, except at great cost, and our
onjy resource is to continue to raise the bank until it
acquire a sufﬁciently flat slope lo ensure a*tal')_i_lity. It is
oxpccteci that in a few weeks we may be reac}y Lo pass some
water over these sections, and it is hopcc]. that 1')\ worlzin:g a
force con:-:tantly the banks may be l:',epl above the water as
it is allowed to rise in the ca.na]., until they become settled

n

and stationary.

"In repairing breaches and li_ning the banks with
clay at su_ud.ry points on this division, there has alrcady been
expemled the sum of $4,167.73. Much work of this kind
remains to be (.{one, which will swell the cost of the
[)e‘cers]mrg Division considerable above the original
estimate. Nor is it posﬁi})le to say when these exiraor(li.nar}-
expenc]iturcs are to stop. I have staled a pro]:)al)le sum lo
meet tllenl, but there is no way of cletermining, a priori, the
precise mﬂgniturie of such work. As the difficulties arise,
we can only -adopl the best apparent means of remed}'ing
them, and go on with the work until the objcct 18

accomplis}lcd B

"The a.quoduct over the east fork of White river is
entirely comp]eted, Some wecks since, the waters of the
west crossed the cast fork of White river, and rccen’r}y a
boat has pasae& t]n.roug}l the aque&uc’t. This structure is
557 fect long consisting of six spans of 85 feet clear space,
and sustained ]Jy five piers 42 feet high above low water
mark. The piers and abutments are of cul stone masonry,
built in the most substantial manner. The superstructure
of the White river aqu educt is built upon the most approve&
p]an of a timber structure, cclm:bining the arch and truss
{mme, and the work has been done in a very perfoc[
manner. The main lJcari_ng timbers are entiroly above
water, the trunk ]Je:i_ng suspended }Jelow, and the whole work
is protected from the weather Ly mo{:ing and weather
lnoarding. Upon the wlwle, I have no hesitation in saying,
that this is the most substantial and per{ec’c aquociucl in the

Page 47




THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

state, reﬂecting much credit on the contractors, Mr. James
Kiney, who did the earth work and masonry, and Mr. A.
Madison, the accomp}ishc& arcllitect, who executed the

superstructure.”
‘White River Aqueduct

The White River Aqueduct was No. 16 and was in
the area known today as Rogers. When it was started a
construction camp was set up on the north side of the river
in Daviess County called New London. It became a small
village with some of the workers having their own homes
while others boarded in the camps.

To build the aqueduct huge timbers were cut and
hewn to lay in the bottom of the river. On top of this
foundation was constructed huge piers and abutments made
of sandstone. This stone was quarried by blasting it from a
bluff north of Algiers and finishing it off to the required size.
Ox teams hauled the stones that were placed aboard mud
boats to the river. There they were loaded onto flat boats
and floated down river about four miles to where the
aqueduct was being built.

On top of these piers rested the bed of the aqueduct.
It was built by pinning hewn timbers with wooden pegs. The
timber was cut to the length needed. Then two sides were
scored with a chopping axe. This would be smoothed off by
a ten inch wide broad-axe. The log would then be turned
over and its other two sides scored and smoothed in a like
manner to whatever the width that could be gotten from the
small end of the log. Holes were bored into the timbers and
the pins locked them together until they had a 25 to 30 foot
bed that was 557 feet long. Walls that stood 4 or 5 feet tall
were built on both of the long sides of this bed. They were
also pinned together. To seal this trunk of the aqueduct the
scams had tow placed in them with pitch tar. Water later
tilled this trunk deep enought to float the boats. To protect
the aqueduct from the elements it had weather boards and a
roof like a covered bridge built above this heavy trunk. It
was completed by 1848.

The White River Aqueduct was the longest
aqueduct built in Indiana on the Wabash and Erie Canal.
The south pier of the aqueduct 1s now used by the Big Four
Railroad. A few stones of the north abutment remain
scattered along the side of the river where the aqueduct once
stood.

Jesse Lynch Williams states in his Annual Report of
the Chief Engineer of December 7, 1852:

"Tn respect to the construction of the Southern
Division, the report of the resident engineer will give [l
information. The water from the White river feeder has
been introduced, and a boat has pas*sccl as far south as the
vicinity of Petershurg. The first 20 miles north from
Evansville }Javing been heretofore filled and 1'1avigﬂte(1,
there is wanting but a short distance to connect the
navigation. As there remains on the intermediate portion
on]y the Piniglling up of some 1’}6&1\’}1 section, it is suppo;etl
that a few weeks of favorable weather will complcle the

entire work.
Patoka River Aqueduct

The Enginecr's Report of 1853 shows Aqueduct No.
17 across the Patoka River as being made up of one middle
span of 50 feet and four other spans (two on cach side) of 36
feet. It was an open trunk aqueduct and was the fourth
longest in the state on the Wabash and Erie Canal.

Afier the canal crosses the Patoka River and heads
north, an Indiana State Format Marker sits in the canal
prism. It reads:

GPS - N 3822 859M W 87D 20.065M

TR e e R T N S A A T N IO S
The Wabash and Erie Canal

{enters the south of Pike County in section
{32 of Logan township and proceeds
inortheasterly through Patoka and
|Washington townships. One mile north of
Petersburg it begins to parallel the White
River and then leaves Pike County in
|section 7 of Washington township.

Page 48




THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington (Point Commerce)

After crossing the Gil Hodges Memorial Bridge
and entering Daviess County to the north, the canal towpath
i1s highly visible on the right side of the road.

A stone marker before crossing the White River
into Daviess County gives the history of Gil Hodges. It
reads:

“This bridge is named in honor of Gil
Hodges bomn at Princeton, Indiana April 4,
1924, graduated from Petersburg High
School 1941, played major league baseball
1943-1963 -- Brooklyn Dodgers 1943-1957,
Served in U. S. Marines 1944-1945, Los
Angeles Dodgers 1957-1961, New York
Mets 1962-1963, managed Washingion
Senators 1964-1967, managed New York
Mets 1968-1971 including World Series
Championship 1969. As a player Hodges
played in seven World Series; played on
cight national league all star squads, hit 14
grand slams, hit 22 or more home runs in 11
seasons, had 100 or more RBI's in sevenf |
seasons, was 6th player to hit 4 home runs
|fin one game, has world series record for
|Bmost games played by a first baseman.
Above all he was dedicated to God, family,
country and the game of baseball. Died
April 2, 1972. Buried in Holy Cross
Cemetery, Brooklyn, N.Y.

The 1850 census shows Petersburg with a
population of 480. The influx of a large number of Irish
laborers working on the canal started Petersburg's climb to
prosperity in the 1850s,

Charles Butler, W. R. Nofsinger and Thomas
Dowling, trustees for the canal, stated the following in
their January 1853 Annual Report of the Board of
Trustees of the Wabash and Erie Canal to the General
Assembly of the State of Indiana:

“At the date of the last annual report, the
Newhcrr}n Maysvﬂle, and Peters]mrgln divisions were
unfinished. The trustees have the satisfaction to report,
that these divisions have, r]uring the season been {inisiwd,
and the work paid {:or, with the exception of a small
balance upon sections 186 and 192 of the Petershurgh
Division, which tf‘ley withhold until those sections are

received IJ}‘ them from the contractors....."

The Wabash and Erie Canal and the passage of the
first boat "The Pennsylvania" down its course on July 29,
1833 led to making Petersburg one of the best shipping
points in southern Indiana. It was a major port with

produce arriving from Dubois, Pike, and parts of Knox and
Gibson counties. Warchouses sprang up, pork packing
became prevalent, and large quantities of all types of
produce were shipped.

At the foot of Main Streect was constructed the
Wabash and Erie Canal Passenger Depot. At the time it
was built this part of present day Petersburg was known as
Canalport. Today an Indiana State Format Marker is
placed near the street by the Dairy Queen. It says:

WABASH AND ERIE CANAL

Site of depot for canal which passed
through town at foot of Main Street.|
Operations through Petersburg ceased
1860. Constructed 1832-1853, canal
was nation’s longest, connecting Lake
Erie at Toledo with Ohio River at
Evansville, through Fort Wayne,
Lafayette, and Terre Haute. |

GPS N 38D 29.281M W 87D 17.051M

Hosmer (Glezen)

Two other towns grew up along the canal. Thesc
were Hosmer (called Glezen today) and Willisville.
Stephen R. Hosmer owned land on the Wabash and Erie
Canal and laid out a town on February 28, 1854 in the
northeastern corner of Patoka township. It was named
Hosmer in his honor. [ts streets were given names like
those found in any large city. Once the town was platted
Hosmer built a steam-mill and made other improvements,
With the failure of the canal the town of Hosmer began to
decay.

The railroad was completed through Hosmer in
1882. It stimulated the local lumber business and kept the
town going. Then the deep vein coal mines were opened
providing area men with jobs.

The town's name was changed to Glezen in honor
of Mary Glezen in 1939, Miss Glezen cstablished a
successful insurance business in Petersburg in the late
1800s and was a Notary Public. Hosmer had two churches,
the Presbyterian and the General Baptist. Miss Glezen
drove to Hosmer every Sunday from Petersburg to teach
Sunday School. Her unfailing service to the church
endeared her to the citizens of Hosmer and led to the name
change.
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Willisville

Willisville is located at the site of the Irish worker
construction camp for the Wabash and Erie Canal, It is
located about three miles south of Petersburg. It was named
Willisville in 1962 in honor of Floyd and Inez Willis, who
operated a grocery store there for seventeen years. Floyd is
the great-grandson of Maxwell and Jane Willis. Maxwell
was the cousin of John and Elizabeth Willis, the first of the
Willis family to settle in Pike County in 1833.

A story 1s told of how John and Elizabeth made the
trip from North Carolina to settle in Pike County, During
the trip Elizabeth tired of riding in the covered wagon and
would walk behind it where she could watch her baby son
Burli where he sat propped up in the back of it. When they
passed through Native American territory, the men carried
loaded guns and walked on either side of the wagon.
Whenever the family reached a stream or river they would
cut down logs and fastened them together to make a raft.
This raft was discarded once the stream was crossed. They
lived off the land during this journey. They shot wild game
and ate berries or fruits they found. They only brought corn
meal with them.

Their teams were so exhausted from climbing the
hills coming through the Cumberland Gap, passing through
Kentucky, and entering Indiana that they rested for three
weeks at French Lick before proceeding. When they saw
still more hills in southern Indiana they were ready to head
back to the Kentucky blue grass country. A traveler just
happened to pass by on horseback and spoke with them. He
told them that further west in Pike County was good spring
water and pasture grass that would tickle his horse's
stomach. They continued on and settled in White Oak
Springs. Some of their descendants moved to the area later
named Willisville and still live in homes in the area. The
store once operated by Floyd and Inez was turned into a
ceramic supply shop.

‘When the railroad replaced the canal with its tracks
laid atop the old towpath, a whistle-stop was located just
south of Willisville. It was called Clark’s Station, but it was
not a regular frain station where the train stopped on
schedule. Passengers wishing to ride the train had to flag it
down and climb aboard.

The town of Littles sits along the old canal bed. It

was scttled afier the canal era when the coal mines began
operation. Therefore it was not a canal town.

The Canal’s Heyday

The Wabash and Erie's heyday was between 1847-
1856. The "Fmal Link" portion was completed during the
middle of this time. The tolls and income from the canal
reached their highest mark of $193.400.18 in 1852. The
canal was well maintained allowing passenger packets to
run regularly. They would stop at every wharf for produce
and passengers. While stopped the passengers could
conduct business, visit friends, or pick fruits or berries,
These leisurcly trips were usually pleasant except for the
mosquitoes, One passenger wrote; "...all the mosquitoes
ever hatched in the mud puddles of Indiana seemed to swarm
ravenously about the heads of the passengers!" Often
passengers contracted malaria en route,

After the canal had stimulated new business and
brought in so many immigrants, the volume of traffic
increased to the point that it was obvious a morc reliable
form of transportation was needed. Even in the best of times
the canal was plagued with problems. It would freeze and
become impassable in the winter. Spring freshets would
burst dams and erode banks. People opposed to the canal,
because they thought it bred disease, drained the aqueducts.
Others were opposed to the high costs of building and
maintaining it. Repairs were cxtremely costly as often
whole locks, dams and aqueducts were lost to raging flood
waters.

As a direct result to the traffic increase and the
canal’s seemingly insurmountable problems, railroad
systems, which were originally planned as ways to feed the
canal from the state's interior, took over and ruined the canal
system. The old canal bed was filled in or silted in over the
years after the canal closed. It closed to the north of
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Petersburg first. For a time it continued operating to the
south to Evansville. Water still remains in the old canal bed
south of Willisville at Clark's Station.

After the canal was closed some of the old canal
warchouses were put to usc for a while as school rooms,
They are long gone.

The merchants of the time were E.B. Boone, W.H.
Connelly, P.C. Hammond, J.B. Hanna, W. and R.P.
Hawthom, T.M. Kitman, W.L. Minnick, T L. Montgomery.,
W.L. Scott, J. Wilson, and Goodlet Morgan.

Goodlet Morgan

Goodlet Morgan's name appears many places in the
history of Pike County. He was born February 26, 1825 to
Simon and Rose Reed Morgan being one of their eight
children. Simon, his father. came to Dubois County, IN
from Virginia. He was county clerk from 1818-1839 and
county recorder from 1818-1841. He also taught school and
was a Jasper, IN merchant. From him Goodlet received
much training.

To continue his education Morgan was sent from
home to learn the flatboat business, farming and
merchandising, He began living with Judge Matthew
Foster's family in Petersburg at the age of fourteen. He
remained with them for nine years and worked in Foster's
store. He then opened and ran a store in Evansville where
he met Emily Proffit.

Goodlet Morgan married George H. and Mahala
Proffit's daughter Emily on November 24, 1848. In 1851 he
returned to Petersburg. His home was begun in 1851 and
completed in 1853-54. It has fifteen rooms and two baths.
To the right of a spacious entrance hall are double parlors
with matching fireplaces. To the left of the entrance are the
downstairs bedrooms and bath, the library lined with
bookshelves from the floor to the ceiling, the kitchen, the
utility room, the pantry and the back staircase. The main
staircase leads to the second floor’s four large bedrooms.
nursery and bath. The Morgan-Proffit house. as it is known
today ., was later sold to George H. Proffit. Proffit removed
the tower which originally graced the front of the building.
This home still stands.

The Morgans had eight children of which only one,
his son Simon, survived him. Goodlet died October 13,
1907 and was buried in Walnut Hills Cemetery.

Morgan’s life pursuits included various business
enterprises. He took over ownership of Judge Foster's store.
He eventually ran the largest merchandising establishment in
Petersburg. He owned huge tracts of land. He handled large
amounts of produce and livestock as well as being elected
Pike County commissioner (1863) and county clerk and
president of the Pike County Council. He and Albert Smith
erected the jail in 1853 that was 40 ft. x 20 ft. and cost
$2.347.25. He leased 15 acres of land to the Pike County
Agricultural Society for ten years at $150 a year where they
held fairs. He provided clothing, fuel and provisions to
families of Pike County soldiers during the Civil War.

Morgan was very knowledgeable and wrote a four-
part serics in which he described Petersburg as it was in
1839. In it he names citizens and where their homes or
businesses were located. He includes prices of produce
saying they were low at the time--corn 10 to 12 1/2 cents per
bushel, wheat 30 to 37 and 1/8 cents per bushel, pork $1.50
per 100 pounds. He said prices of goods were high--
chopping axes were $2.50, nails were 12 1/2 centers per
pound, domestic cloth was 16 to 20 cents per vard and calico
and English manufactured cloth was 25 to 40 cents per yard.
However, he notes that most trade was done by barter.

The Newspaper

"The Patriot."
published in 1851 by editor
John N. Evans and printed | i
bv  Henry Stout of|¥
Vincennes, was the county's
first newspaper. In 1855-
1864 "The Reporter" was
published by Joseph P.
Glezen followed by a series
of other editors. In 1856 the
present day paper began and
was called "The Messenger"
in 1865 with the name "Pike
County Democrat" adopted
in 1869,
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The Railroad

The first attempt at a "Straight Line" railroad to
connect Indianapolis to Evansville was begun in 1854 when
the county donated $100,000 and a large amount of labor to
the project. It failed because the contractors did not pay for
the labor or supplies. Many local citizens were financially
ruined. It was eventually completed in 1882 by Mackey and
brought prosperity to the county.

On June 23, 1855, Petersburg was officially
incorporated by a narrow margin. There were 63 votes for
and 61 votes against it.

Today's Pike County Courthouse is the 4th (erected
mn 1922). The first log courthousc was built in 1818 and
was followed by two brick courthouses in 1836 and 1868.
Behind it sits the jail built in 1853 and remodeled in 1885.

Petersburg Tornado

On June 7, 1990 twin tornados swept through
Petersburg, a town of about 3,500 residents, and its
surrounding rural coal mining communitics. They left
hundreds of people homeless and seven dead. They cut a 4
block wide swath through the town from Homady Park to
the Elementary School. The tormados first touched down in
Union, bounced through the Bowman area, hit Petersburg,
and proceceded just south of Alford. Damages were
estimated to be between $50 to $60 million. In the city 114
homes were destroved, 99 sustained major damage. and 170
received minor damage.. In the outlying rural areas 40
homesteads were damaged,

Of the seven people dead in Pike County, six were
killed directly by the tornado and one, Albin Harper,
suffered a heart attack while watching it. Three of the
deaths were within a block of each other behind the
Petersburg Moose Lodge where between 200 to 300 people
had gathered for a wedding reception. Two women, Giles
Evans and Emma Willis were killed when the tornado
obliterated their building. Probably much of its debris
landed in the Moose parking lot where over a hundred cars
were damaged. Billie Minniear died in his mobile home
where he was trapped. Later Evaline Hilgeman died in an
Evansville hospital from injuries suffered while trying to go
from her home to a neighbor's basement. In Union Frank
and Majorie Mallot were killed when the tornado leveled
their home.

The tornado destroyed four churches--First United
Methodist, Free Methodist, Nazarcne and Wesleyan. Their
members not only helped with cleaning up the remains of the
churches and the town, they distributed food and clothing
and started planning to rebuild their buildings. They
received calls from other churches and people wanting to sell
church furnishings or offering to help build new churches.
Local churches offered their buildings for use by the
congregations whose churches were demolished.

The Petersburg Elementary School was totally
destroyed. Buildings that housed the city hall, police station,
county sheriff's department, and city jail were heavily
damaged. They hoped to build a new city-county building,

The Petersburg Health Carc Nursing Center was
destroyed. but due to the fast acting staff there were no
fatalities. They quickly moved the residents to the center
hall upon its approach. They laid many wheelchair patients
on their sides and covered them with blankets.

Hornady park was destroyed when its shelters and
buildings were blown apart. The carctaker and his family
barely escaped when they ran from their mobile home to a
nearby hillside and covered themselves with blankets. The
tornado passed directly above them.

Electricity and water were major problems for
everyone after the tornado - cven those whose homes
received no damage. Thev had to be shut off until repairs
could be made. Lack of clothing and food, the reporting of
damages and their repair. and the removal of debris from
streets so that they were passable also added to the
problems.

Evervone pitched in to help. Many people worked
in the town, but it could not handle all the volunteers. Amish
carpenters arrived offering their services as did the prisoners
from the Training Center in Perry County. As people
arrived from all over the state, they were assigned to crews
on 25 farms and rural homesteads helping rebuild barns and
other structures. Over 3.000 acres of farmland needed the
debris removed before it could be planted in crops.

Food, clothing, books, and educational materials
came from students in New Jersey who were penpals with
the Petersburg Elementary School students. Many
organizations throughout the state sent items lost by tornado
stricken families.
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Money arrived from Allendale, Illinois where a
tornado had ravaged thc town a short eighteen months
before. Money was collected by the namesake town of
Petersburg, New York which sent $518. Petersburg, IN is
located in Pike County, onc of Indiana's key coal producing
and clectrical generating counties. It has much in common
with the Petersburg, NY community which is fighting "acid
rain," an alleged by-product of coal fired electrical power
generation,

Following the disaster everyone wanted the news.
The Press-Dispatch in Petersburg normally runs 6.200
papers. They printed three more editions and sold out each
time. Four thousand eight hundred papers of the July 2 issue
were sold on newstands and there were three thousand five
hundred papers mailed.

Buffalo Trace

QOutside of Petersburg along IND. 61 stands an
Indiana State Format Marker that reads:

THE BUFFALO TRACE
Crossed White River at a nearby ford. It
was made by migrating buffalo herds. The/|
trace ran from Cinchonas to Louisville and |
was the only through trail in pioneer days. |

o Sl ety
BUEFALD THRACE
| cenwris,

unye |

ARy o k3 " ” D -H.
trake g f JHFERRSON
5 NES ALBANY S,

ARSI

In an Act of 1935 the state legislature provided for
the governor to appoint a three man commission to ascertain
the historical route of the Buffalo Trace from the Ohio River
to the White River and provide maps and drawings showing
its exact route. A report of onc hundred pages resulted

from studying government surveys made m 1804-10.

Great herds of buffalo passed over the same trail for
years tramping over prairies and through forests in their
annual migration. This trace was as wide as one mile in
some places. More than two-thirds of the pioneer scttlers of
Indiana used it. It was also known as Lan-an-zo-ki-mo-wi
by the Miami Indians and at various times throughout
history as The Buffalo Road, The Indian Road, The Mud
Holes Trace, the Louisville-Kaskaskia Trail, The Vincennes
Trace, The Clarksville Trace, Clark's Trace. The Governor's
Trace, and Harrison's Road.

The trace was recorded on the survey maps when
the land was divided into congressional townships in 1804-3
for military purposes. It was marked where cach section line
crossed it. The commissioner's court of Pike County from
1816-1830 shows the tracc passing through Pike and
Dubois countics from White Oak Springs near Petersburg to
the Dubois County Mud Holes. The trace passed almost
directly west through Petersburg and by Woolsey Pride's
Fort. The terminus of the trace was in Kentucky at Big Bone
Lick, a salt lick,

Blue Jeans Williams
About 10 miles northwest of Petersburg along Ind.

61 is the town of Monroe City which is located near the
center of the “Final Link” loop tour. It is near this town that

1 the seventeenth Governor of Indiana, James D. “Blue Jeans”

Williams, lived for most of his life. Close by in Walnut
Grove Cemetery a 30-foot high monument stands atop his
grave. The monument was erected in his honor in 1883
following his death on November 20, 1880.

“Blue Jeans” was a colorful character in Indiana’s
history. He was born January 16, 1808 in Pickaway
County, OH. His family moved to Indiana in 1818, and to
the homestead near Pond Creek Mills in 1823, when pioneer
life was full of difficulties. They were a poor farm family
and his education was gained not from books as much as it
was from the world around him. He took on the
responsibility of his five younger siblings at the age of
twenty after his father’s death. He had good common sense,

was industrious, and was held in high esteem by those who
knew him.

In 1839 Williams became a justice of the peace. He
was known for being fair and honest even though he knew
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little of the law. He resigned this post in 1843 to sit in the
Indiana Legislature as a Democrat. He held seats in both the
House and the Senate between 1842 and 1874 besides
serving on the State Board of Agriculture for sixteen yvears
and on many committees.

JAMES D. “BLUE JEANS” WILLIAMS

In his first attempt at U.S. politics, he was defeated
by Governor Oliver P. Morton in 1872 when he ran for
Scnator. In 1874 he got the Democratic nomination to run
for Congress after defeating Thomas R. Cobb, an attorney
from Vincennes, 107-64. The Republicans had difficulty in
selecting a candidate. Williams easily won the election.

Williams always wore homespun clothing otherwise
called Kentucky jeans, After the 1874 clection the
newspapers ridiculed him wondering if he’d continue to
wear this garb to Congress. Not to be out done, he had
twenty-five yards of cloth, made from the wool of his own
flock, sent to a Vincennes tailor to be made into two suits.
These suits included a long coat, vest, and pants worn with
a white shirt and black neck cloth. They were blue in color.

Williams became the House chairman for the
Committeec on Accounts. He thoroughly scrutinized every
penny spent and cut back needless expenses so much that
jokes were made about him. He was called “the two and one
half cent member from Indiana.”

During the election of 1876 while running for
Governor of the State of Indiana against Benjamin Harrison,
the Republicans and the newspapers made a huge joke over
his wearing blue jeans. The contest was said to be between
a “Blue Blood” and “Blue Jeans,” a dirt farmer. Instead of
hurting him, this and his known cconomy led to his

popularity. “Blue Jeans” clubs were formed in Indiana.
Huge rallies and parades were held. Wagon loads of young
women dressed in blue jeans and others with railsplitters
were a part of the parades. Campaign speeches were made
to crowds of thousands. Over 30 speakers came from other
states to stump for him. He won the election by more than
5.000 votes.

Williams died just before the end of his four vear
term as governor and shortly after his wife, the mother of
their seven children, had died.. He served his state well
entering into no official act without thoroughlv under-
standing its importance and its effects. It was during his
administration that the building of the Indiana State Capitol
was started. When the building was completed and

furnished. its cost was within the $2,000,000 appropriation
of Williams” term. He and his associates were economical.

R - -

Dr. Ralph Gray at Williams” marker. Photo-Bob Schmidt
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NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS.

CANAL LETTING.

THE undersigned, Trustees of the Wabash and Eric Canal,
hereby give notice that they will receive scaled proposals at
Washington, Davies (sic) county. Indiana, on the 27th day of
June next, for the construction of about twenty-four miles of
said Canal, extending from the proposed Dam across the West
fork of White River near the South linc of Green (sic) county,
to Maysville, in Davies (sic) county. On this portion of line
there are to be constructed five Lift Locks and one Guard Lock.
to be built of timber, a Dam across Slinkard’s Creek, and one or
two small Aqueducts, together with the usual variety of earth
work common to a canal. The line will be divided into sections
averaging aboul half a mile in length.

At the same time and place, proposals will be received for
building, with cut stone masonry. the piers of the Aqueduct over
East fork of White River. The stone for the masonry must be
procured from the quarrics of durable limestone 1o be found on
or near either the East or West fork of White River, from which
point they can be delivered by water.

The line to be placed under contract, will be ready for
inspection ten days previous to the time of lctting, and all
necessary information in reference thercto will be given by the
Resident Engincer.

CHARLES BUTLER,

A M. PUETT,

THO. H. BLAKE.
TRUSTEES’ OFFICE
Terre-Haute, April 23, 1849
(Express copy.)

3511

Courtesy of Stan Schmitt.

DAVIESS COUNTY

Daviess County contains 430 square miles. It is
bounded on the south by Pike and Dubois Counties, on the
west by Knox County, on the north by Greene County and

on the east by Martin County. It is located at the junction of

the cast and west forks of the White River which are fed by
its tributaries — Aikman, Mul, Pond, Prairie, Purse.,
Smithers, Sugar, and Veal creeks. It has heavily timbered
areas. A wide variety of trees are located on the rolling
hillsides or in the swamps. They are black and white ash;
black alder; red beech; black birch; buckeye; cottonwood;
box eclder; black and sweet gum; shellbark and pignut
hickory; ironwood; honey locust; sugar maple: red, black
and white oak; persimmon; pawpaw; red bud; spicewood;
willow; and black and white walnut. It has level prairie

lands and rich bottom lands of the White River and its ecast
fork that are ideal for farming.

Although mining is not as extensive in Daviess
County as it is in nearby counties, geological surveys have
shown that there is a reserve of 200MM of coal present.
This 1s mostly located in the southwest of the county, since
erosion has removed most of it from the northern part of the
county. A bed of coal around the town of Washington is
about 5 feet thick where at Clark's Station it is a little over
1 foot thick. The northern portion of the county yields
limestone, sandstone, and iron ore. In certain areas
limestone above the coal ranges from 6 inches to that which
is four feet thick near Aikman Creek. It polishes well, but it
weathers easily and is not suitable for outside building use.
Sandstone of durable building quality is found in the hills
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north of Washington. Near Clark's Prairic bog iron is found
that contains 40 to 50% metal. Clay ironstone and ochre are
found near Alfordsville.

Daviess County has more farms that any county in
the region, but has fewer acres in cultivation than its
neighbors Knox and Gibson Counties whose farms are
larger. Daviess ranks tenth in the state in livestock
production which includes hogs, pigs, cattle and calves.

It is a rural county with about 46% of its population
living in Washington. its county seat, or in Odon.

Good farmland attracted Amish settlers to the area
around Montgomery in Daviess County. Their scttlement
covers 64 square miles. They strictly interpret the Bible,
stress humility and simplicity in their life and dress, and are
thrifty and industrious. Many horses and buggies are seen
in the area today.

Early Settlement

The carly settlers came to the area from the southern
states. About one-half of them were from South Carolina,
one-fourth from Kentucky and the rest from North Carolina
and Tennessee. They came while Indiana was still a
territory and game was their primary source of food.

Wildlife

Deer were plentiful especially on the barrens. An
early settler claimed he could take a walk from his log home
and return in an hour to get a horse to bring back the deer
carcass he had killed and hung up to drain. By May 1822,
Robert Stephens, who traded in pelts, reported having
bought 800 deer skins during the winter that were killed that
season. He also bought venison hams for 12 to 16 cents per
ham,

Black bear roamed the areca and many bear
adventure stories were passed down. The bears loved the

honey found in hollow trees. At that time there were a great
number of bees which would collect the nectar from the
blossom of the "Spanish needle" and make it into honey.
The Peterson brothers gathered the honey by the barrelful
and hauled it to the Falls of the Ohio to be sold.

Lumber

Land was cleared of timber, marshes and swamps
were drained, and prairie lands were cultivated. The ax,
broadax, whip-saw, augur and draw-knifec were used to
fashion "lumber." Early log cabin floors were made of
"puncheons." logs that were only hewn on one side. These
were made to an even thickness at cach end and a broad-ax
was used to make a joint. They were laid with the hewn side
up.

James C. Veal, probably the county's frst settler
after whom Veal township received its name, built the first
saw-mill sometime between 1808-1810 on Veal's Creck.
This mill made slabs that were better than the puncheons.
The mill could not supply enough of them to meet the
demand. The mill was washed away by a freshet in 1812

The second mill built in the county was built on
Veal's Creek by Eli Chapman in 1815. Both of these first
mills were water powered. A third mill was built in
Washington by William McCormick that was powered by
three yoke of oxen walking on an inclined wheel. It supplied
more lumber but still could not keep up with the demand for
building materials. Finally a fourth mill was built in
Washington by four men who not only met the county's
demand for lumber but who were able to ship the surplus
down river to southern markets,

Crops

Corn was the first grain grown in the county. It fed
both man and animals. It had a faster yield that other grains.
Crude plows, harrows, and cultivators made of rough green
timber were used. James and William Thompson invented
and built the county’s threshing machine in McTagart's
barn. It could thresh and clean 100 bushels of wheat in ten
hours only requiring the labor of three men, three boys, and
two horses.

The first grist-mill to grind both corn and wheat was
built on Palmer's Creek by Richard Palmer about 1816.
That same year William Hawkins built a mill on the same
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Creek. Both of these mills could grind about two and one-
half bushels per hour.

Early clothing consisted of deer skin or cloth made
from the flax that the settlers grew. An attempt to grow
cotton was made, but the growing secason was too short.
Sheep were hard to protect from the many wolves, but once
the wolf population decreased, wool became more plentiful.
Eli Chapman's saw-mill built in 1815 had the first carding
machine.

To satisfv their thirst, early "Teapot stills" were
used. In 1810 "Obe" Flint built the county's first distillery
Just two miles south of Maysville in Veale township. The
first storc was opened about two and one-half miles
southwest of Washington near Maysville in 1812 by George
W. Curtis.

County Organized

Daviess County was originally a part of Knox
County. An act that was approved on December 24, 1816,
separated it with its boundaries being the forks of White
River, down the East Fork of White River to the mouth of
Lick Creek. then to the Orange County ling, then north to
where is meets the West Branch of White River, and then
down the West Fork to the place where it began. It was to
be named Daviess in honor of Captain Joseph H. Daviess,
who was killed while leading his company in a desperate
charge during the Battle of Tippecanoe on November 7,
1811. The same act appointed five commissioners to select
the site of the county seat--William Bruce and Henry Ruble
from Knox County, David Robb and William Barkers from
Gibson County, and Thomas Fulton from Orange County.
They selected the village of Liverpool which is now a part of
Washington.  Governor Jonathan Jennings then
commissioned Obed Flint sheriff. Flint called an election in
February 1817 at which the county commissioners were
clected--John Aikman, William Ballow, and Ephraim
Thompson.

The act establishing Daviess County took a large
chunk out of Knox County making Davicss County fifty-
seven miles long and thirty-one miles wide. It encompassed
all of present day Martin County except the portion south of
Lick Creek, all of Greene County cast of the West Fork of
White River and all of Owen County east of the West Fork
of White River. The establishment of Greene County in
1821 and Martin County in 1820 took pieces of Daviess

County and brought it down to its present size. The county
was divided into the townships of Barr, Bogard, Elmore,
Harrison, Madison, Reeve, Steele, Washington, Van Buren
and Veal. Towns that grew up within the townships were
Alfordsville, Chelsea, Corbytown, Comcttsville, Eldon,
Elnora, Epsom, Farlen, Glendale, Hudsonville, Lettsville,
Maysville, Plainville, Raglesville, Smiley, South
Washington, Tom's Hill and Washington. The towns not
along the Wabash and Erie Canal will be mentioned only in
passing.

Eldon

After the Wabash and Eric Canal and the Ohio and
Mississippi Railroad were built through Davicss County,
Seth H. Cruse, David H. Kennedy, and William S. Turner
saw the intersection of these two transportation systems as
a wonderful place to establish a town, Their 1857 plat
contained eighteen streets, fiftv-six blocks. and many lots.
They told those who purchased lots that Eldon was destined
to become a major metropolis. The canal only operated a
few more years before failing. Eldon was doomed. In 1886
only onc dilapidated shanty remained.

Elnora

Originally known as Owl Town with the postoffice
called Owl Prairie, this village in Elmore Township wasn't
laid out until September 25, 1885. William C. Griffith and
A. R. Stalcup platted the town with nine blocks and fifty-
three lots after the Evansville & Indianapolis Railroad was
completed in 1885, [t was named Elnora after William
Griffith's wife. The Wabash and Erie Canal served the
small community from approximately 1852 to 1860, but it
was not a prime canal port. The railroad was thought to
make it become an important buying and shipping point for
corn, wheat and other farm products. The post office name
was changed to Elnora on January 1, 1886. The
businessmen in the town at that time were A.R. Stalcup.
general store and livery; Taylor & Williams, druggists:
George D. Abraham, dry goods; and John Edmundson.
blacksmith.

Maysville

Maysville was located on Vincenncs Donation
Lands, In 1788 Congress granted 400 acres of land to the
heads of French families that settled in Vincennes and to
other persons for militia service. These lands were in Knox
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County, but when Daviess County was carved from Knox,
some of the land was grant land. When Eli Hawkins came
to Daviess County in 1806 from South Carolina, he
purchased one of the 400 acre tracts.

It appears that Eli Hawkins, a master of slaves,
brought them to Indiana Territory with him. Jacob and
Ellen Embrey Hawkins were two of thosc slaves from
Charleston, South Carolina. When Indiana became a state
they obtained their freedom and Jacob took the last name of
his master which was a common practicc. At that time
Jacob was sixteen years old. Through hard work and
perseverance he managed to become the owner of over 1.000
acres of rich farm land. Charner Hawkins was born to
Jacob and Ellen on March 29, 1831, the fourth of eleven
children. Jacob died in 1864,

HAWKINS
(PALMERS)
CREEK
CULVERT
REMAINS

PHOTO
BY

STAN
SCHMITT

One history says that Charner Hawkins was the first
owner of the land on which Maysville was platted. He
would have been about three years old at the time since John
McDonald laid out the town of Maysville in 1834. It had
seventy-two lots and was located four miles southwest of
Washington. It was an unincorporated village. It was the
busiest and most important town in Daviess County during
the 1850s when the Wabash and Erie Canal was in
operation. The demise of the canal and the growth of
nearby Washington left the area with tumble-down houses
and a few farms. James C. Veale taught the first school in
Daviess County in 1811 near Maysville.

Plainville

Plainville, which is located in Steele township about ten
miles north of Washington, was laid out by W. D.
McCleskey and Stephen D. Wright on December 19, 1855.
It was formerly known as Stump Town because the stumps
of many trees remained after they had been harvested. The

new name Plainville was decided upon because the land was
level. It was an important port on the Wabash and Erie
Canal during the 1850s having a flouring mill and several
stores. The demise of the canal took Plainville backward,
but the post office and a store or two continued to do trade.
When the Evansville and Indianapolis railroad passed
through the town in 1885 it once again expetienced a growth
of businesses.

Washington

David Flora erected a timber fort at what is now
Main and E. 2nd streets in 1812 to protect carly settlers
from the Native Americans. Flora, along with George
Curtis and Isaac Galland, laid out Liverpool in 1815. It was
selected to become the county seat in 1817 and renamed
Washington. Washington was about 2 1/2 miles from the
Wabash and Erie Canal which seemed to have little
influence on it.

It was the construction of the Ohio and Mississipp1
Railroad in 1857 that spurred on Washington’s growth. By
1862 there were railroad machine shops but the big division
offices, shops and vards weren't completed until after 1889,
The Baltimore and Ohio bought out the Ohio and
Mississippi. At one time their yards employed over 1.000
men and covered over 100 acres of land. In 1965 boxcars
were built in these repair shops by Evans Railcar Company

“ which bought the B & O shops. The operation shut down in

1980 following a strike and the jobs were lost.
First Courthouse

The first Davicss County Courthouse was built in
Washington between 1818 and 1824. It was a two story
brick structure that was located on the town squarc between
Walnut, Hefron, 2nd and 3rd streets. On the west end of this
square was built a log jail which had a criminal's room and
a debtor's room. The second courthouse was built between
1838 and 1841. Therc were many delays during the time it
was being built. The third courthouse designed by George
W. Bunting and built of brick was completed in 1879 and
was followed by of a new jail in 1884. Today's three-story
limestone courthouse was completed in 1927.

Pork-packing was important in the area. Beautiful
homes were built by William Helphenstine in 1847 and
Hiram Hyatt in the late 1890s, men who had interests in this
industry.
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Canal Men

Little reference is made of the Wabash and Erie
Canal in Daviess County and littler still is made of the men

who worked on the canal. Two of these men were A, J. Hart
and James C. Spink.

A. J. Hart was born on November 15, 1831, near
Washington in Daviess County to James and Sarah King
Hart. James Hart was born in 1793 on the Atlantic Ocean
coming from Ireland to America. James’ family settled in
Tennessee, moved to North Carolina where he married
Sarah and then came to Indiana. Sarah was a native of
central Tennessee. She died when A. J. was about 12 years
of age and he continued to live with James until he was 18.
At that time A. J. left home and began working on the
Wabash and Erie Canal. In six months time he was put in
charge of scventy-five to one hundred men and assumed the
position of superintendent.

AJ. came back to Daviess County two years later
with sixteen men to work on the Ohio and Mississippi
Railroad. In 1853 he began farming and married Mary
Arthur on February 8, 1854. In 1868 he began running a
store in Washington that sold general merchandise. He
continued this for three years beforc moving to Montgomery
where he ran another such store and operated a coal mine.
He returned to his 160 acres of land near Washington in
1876 and cultivated 120 acres of it. He was a Republican
and a member of the Masonic Lodge.

James C. Spink was born in 1824. He was the son
of Francis X. Spink from Maryland who came to Daviess
County about the time that Indiana obtained statchood.
Francis settled on a farm and taught James how to till the
soil. He was a surveyor on the Wabash and Erie Canal
when it was being built through the area. He later was a
miller and became the senior member of Spink & Veal. He
built "City Mills" in 1879 which he operated until his death
in 1893. He married Ann Elizabeth Wright of Tennessee
and their son, Thomas F. Spink, was born on April 29,
1865. Their other children were deceased by 1897 and were
not named in the history book..
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WABASH AND ERIE CANAL INDIANA

Canal Lettings.
THE undersigned will receive sealed proposals at Terre Haute,
Indiana, on the 24th day of May next, for the construction of
Forty miles of the Wabash and Erie Canal,extending from
Terre Haute to Point Commerce, on the West Fork of White
River. The line will be divided into sections, about a half a mile
in length, and will embrace the variety of work usually
presented on a similar division of Canal; amongst which one
reservoir, a number of lift-locks, culvert, &c. together with the
rebuildings of a portion of Eel river dam and the guard-lock
connected therewith,

Payments will be made as the work advances in par funds.

The line to be let, will be ready for inspection by the 15th of
May, and by the 20th of that month, the plans. specification.
estimates and quantities, &C. will be exhibited at the
Engineer’s office in Terre Haute.

Dated. Terre Haute, 17th March, 1848,
CHARLES BUTLER, THO. H. BLAKE, AUSTIN M. PUETT.
Trustees of the Wabash and Erie Canal.

ap 6-6w

Courtesy of Stan Schmitt
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GREENE COUNTY

Greene County contains 540 square miles of land
that lics seventy-five miles southwest of Indianapolis. It is
located in the southwestern part of Indiana and is the second
county from the state’s western border. The county is
almost divided equally by the west branch of White River.
Other major streams are the Ecl River, Beech, Black, Indian,
Plummer, and Richland Creeks.

The county’s hilly land lies to the east of the White
river and has many rock bluffs. This land was heavily
timbered with oak, poplar, walnut, sugar-tree,sycamore,
ash, beech, cherry, locust, gum, and hickory when the
settlers arrived. Most of this land has coal and iron deposits
in abundance that are of excellent quality. It has the richest
iron ore beds of any county in the state. They are from six
to thirty feet thick. At some places huge masses of ore
weighing several tons arc on the surface heaved there by
some natural force. The stratas of block coal are from four
to eight feet thick. Mining is a large industry. As early as
1914 over 2.4 million tons were mined annually which was
about the same mined each year from 1950-1970. It is
estimated that the county still has 420 million tons of
recoverable resources available. Limestone is abundant.

Level prairie land lies to the east of White river.
The prairies are Half-Moon, Nine-Mile. Scaffold. and Four-
Mile. Some of this prairic land is low and wet which makes
it more suitable for pastures than for the cultivation of grain.
The soil quality varies greatly from rich alluvial to stony
clay. Some timber is found on sandy ridges called barrens.
This timber is small hickory, short and rough black oak,
white oak and some walnut. Good quality coal is in
abundance. The county has never really developed or used
its natural resources to their potential.

The towns of the county in 1875 included
Bloomfield, Dresden, Fairplay, Jasonville, Johnstown,
Jonesboro, Linton, Lyons Station, Marco, Newberry.
Newark, Owensburg, Point Commerce, Scotland, Solsberry.
and Worthington. Today Linton is the largest of the towns
and some others are ghost towns. Most of Greene County’s
towns arc not written up in detail in this tour book for they
werc not along the canal. The county has seven
incorporated towns and 40 communitics, only a few other
counties can claim so many settlements. The average

population per square mile is 55 putting the county in the
rural agricultural category.

The geography of an area greatly determined its
pattern of settlement. This was especially true for Greene
County. The Eel River and the west fork of the White River
(Wapehani meaning “white” or “clear water”) join at what
was to later become Worthington and run through the
county. Settlements grew along this early niver
transportation route.

Native Americans

Native Americans wandered along these rivers
locating for short periods of time where they found a
plentiful supply of game. One of their villages was at
today’s Worthington and another was at Point Commerce
across the Eel River. A Piankeshaw village of several
hundred wigwams sat on the site that was later to become
Fairplay. The Piankeshaws were a branch of the Miamis.
Shawnee also came to the area. The mound builders were
the first to inhabit the area, there being no white settlers
prior to 1810. When the white settlers came they traded
with the Native Americans.

Stories have been handed down about that time.
One tells about a Miamis village across the White River on
the Dixon farm. There the Native Americans constructed
sweat houses to cleanse the skin and tone up the systems of
the braves. A sweat house was started by piling up stones,
building a fire on top of them to heat them, removing the
fire, and building a wigwam over the hot stones. The
wigwam was then entered by the naked braves who threw
water on the hot stones and danced around them sweating
profusely much like today’s sauna. Then they entered an
adjacent wigwam, wiped dry, and put on warm buckskins.

Another story tells of the part Greene County
played in the conflict between the settlers and Native
Americas. This was around 1811, the time of the Battle of
Tippecanoe when Gen. Wm. Henry Harrison battled the
Native Americans near Lafayette, IN. At that time the
“natives were restless” and there were uprisings in southern
Indiana and Kentucky. They wanted to protect their land
and keep the white settlers out.

Harrison had marched his troops along the Wabash
River from Vincennes north to Ft. Harrison at Terre Haute.
There he was to be met by General Hopkins and a company
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of soldiers from Kentucky and then continue on toward
Lafayette. The Kentucky soldiers set up camp for the night
at Point Commerce in Greene County on their way to Terre
Haute. Being unsure of the Native Americans who lived in
a village where Worthington now stands, the soldiers
stationed guards around their camp at what were thought to
be points of danger. One of these stations was at the Old
Indian Ford across the Ecl River. John Shelton was to man
the station on the hillside above the ford. He and the other
guards were ordered not to shoot unless they were firing at
an approaching Native American.

While John was keeping his watch, a deer passed
by. The men were very hungry from their long trek, John
Just couldn’t pass up the chance to secure some food. He
fired and killed the deer. He ran to where the deer had fallen
in the hollow and covered it with brush.

Meanwhile, an officer, who had heard the shot,
came running with a group of soldiers to defend the camp
from the Native Americans, John denied firing a shot or of
seeing any enemies, The other soldiers hadn’t heard the shot
so they returned to camp. After things quicted down, John
slipped back down the hollow, dressed the deer, and later
took it to camp where the hungry soldiers and the general
had a feast with no questions asked.

Years later John confessed to General Hopkins
about firing the shot. The general replied that he was glad
he didn’t find out that night that John had violated his order,
for he would had to have John shot at Point Commerce.

Following the defeat of the Native Americans at the
Battle of Tippecanoe, Gen. Harrison signed many treatics
with them and purchased their lands. White settlers soon
entered the county with the first white settlement being
established in 1813.

It was probably the Piankeshaws that visited the
area in 1819. A group of about 300 on horseback passed
along the Old Indian Trail. They crossed the Eel River
about a quarter of a mile north of the present day bridge at
what was called the Old Indian Ford. This was just outside
of present day Worthington.

A few days later on September 30, 1819, more
Native Americans floated down the White River in canoes.
They set up camp at the mouth of the Eel River, The exact
date 1s remembered for on that Sunday John Fires and
Martha Craig were married. Everyone in the town had
gathered for the wedding celebration. They were scared of
being massacred when they saw the canoes approaching.
The wedding party, accompanied by others, walked down to
the river to speak with the Native Americans,

A young newly married brave was the chief of the
group. He was very pleased with 15 year old Martha Craig
Fires™ appearance. She had light skin and blonde hair. He
offered to trade his new bride for Martha. This made
Martha indignant. Her new husband refused to trade brides.
Luckily the chief was appeased when his demands for a
blanket and a bear skin were met. Why either of these two
native groups were on the move at that time is unknown.

In 1820, the Native Americans were being removed
to live on reservations in the west. While awaiting their
removal from the area, they gathered west of Bloomfield on
the White River’s west bank and held ceremonies. These
ceremonies were sometimes very solemn and quiet. But the
white settlers became fearful of attack and fled to safety
when other ceremonies became wild. No attack ever
occurred.

These people left behind their marks on Greene
County . They traversed the land along what is referred to
as the “0ld Indian Trail.” They also built several mounds
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in the county, most of which have been excavated. The
mound located where Worthington sprang up was a
determining factor in the shape of the town. Two other
mounds were located southeast of Worthington — one on
the road that goes past the cemetery and another on the road
that goes out to the gravel pit.

Greene County Organized

White settlement of the area began before Greene
County was organized. In 1813 some settlers came to what
was to become Point Commerce, a settlement that flourished
for over fifty years. Shortly thereafter Fairplay sprang up
on the west side of the White River just five miles south of
Point Commerce.

Although the fourth largest county in area in
Indiana today with property valued at $86.38 million in
1981, it was at one time a part of Knox County which had
Vincennes as its county seat. People wishing to purchase
land or conduct business had to travel to Vincennes (settled
in 1702). During the early settlement this seemed far away
and difficult to reach.

Later when Sullivan County was formed, the
Greene County area became a part of Sullivan County.
Greene County eventually broke away when it had enough
settlers to form a governing body. It was organized in 1821,
a short five years after Indiana entered statehood, and held
1ts first election for county officials in the home of Thomas
Bradford. It was named after a Revolutionary War general,
Nathaniel Greene.

The county officials wanted the first county seat to
be located at what they thought was a prime spot. This was
at the geographical center of the county, was on the east
bank of the White River, and was directly opposite the
settlement of Fairplay. It was to be called Burlington. They
had a city laid out in what was a woods and a courthouse
built costing $250 on the land set aside for the town square.
A road running east to west and a road running north to
south were surveyed. This town was to be easily accessible
with a ferry operating across the river to the homes and the
few stores in Fairplay. Then they dug a well. No water was
available. The best laid plans soon came to a halt, It
appears that no town was ever established there.

The officials then decided to move the county seat.
The citizens of Fairplay thought that Fairplay would be

chosen since it was nearby, was close to the county’s
geographical center, had a town already established and had
a good water supply. But the officials were offered free land
for a public square in Bloomfield. They decided to locate
there. Bloomfield has continued as the county seat from
1823 to present. Fairplay experienced a severe cholera
epidemic that almost climinated it at the time. Fairplay no
longer exists today.

The third settlement in the county was at Newberry
in 1822 when John Ritter opened his store. The fourth was
Bloomfield, the fifth was Scotland in 1834, and the sixth
was New Jerusalem later to become Linton, the largest town
in Greene County today.

Newberry

This tour book is written from the south to the north
along the canal. The first town inside Greene County from
the south is Newberry which was first settled by John Ritter
in 1822. It was laid out on John O’Neal’s land and named
for Newberry, North Carolina.

The first house was built by Moscs Ritter. It soon
had a grist mill and a ferry across the White River. Around
1827 Cary O"Neal opened a store with merchandise valued
at $500. Later Peter Lester and Mr. Hinds operated stores.
Some of the leading articles of exchange were beeswax and
honey. Benjamin R. Morse, also in the mercantile business.
was the first postmaster. Before the canal was built the
town had about twenty families who were blacksmiths,
carpenters, coopers, shoemakers, and tanners.

When the Wabash and Erie Canal was built through
the county it had to cross the White River. A wooden crib
dam was built across the river to form a slackwater pool so
canal boats could enter the river from the canal, go up or
down stream and reenter the canal on the other side of the
river. It was located to the west of the present bridge
crossing the White River on SR 57. The slackwater pool
was beneath the bridge and extended up stream to the
northeast.

At the April term of the state legislature in 1852, the
Wabash & Erie Canal trustees were indicted by the grand
Jury for being an alleged nuisance. “This alleged nuisance
was the erection and maintaining a dam across White river
at Newberry, and thereby backing the water over the
lowlands adjoining the river.” At the court trial the case was
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LETTING OF VALUABLE WATER

POWER AT THE NEWBERRY DAM,
PR LE erection ol this Dam. 11 feet in height,

across the West Fork of White river will ere-.
ate aun extensive water power, well worthy the:
atention ¢t wanufac urers and capitalists. At
the_lowest stage of water in White river there is
sutlicient topropela very larse amount of machin-
ery. ‘The durability and certuinty af the power,
viewed in connection with the well known desti-
tution of permanent sater throughout that section
of the State, clearly indicates this as an importan
mannlacturing peint.  'I'be adjoining counties are
capnble of producing a large surplus of wheat. and
with tre stimulus nlfurde'fbv good meechant nulls
add the alvantoges of canal navigation, would
undoabtedly furnish an ebundant supply of this
gain. There is now a communicati n by canal
with Lake Erie, and by 1he fall of 1852, the same
cl.xlrlmnel will be cpened to the Ohio river at Evans-
ville

A portion of this water power, sufficient to pro-
pel not less than threc run of 44 feet millstcnes,
and dlso the power necessary for either ono or two
saws lor tumbering, is now offered for lease to the
bighest Lidder for the term of thirty years, with
ground sufficient for the use thereof, lying imme-
diately below the cast abutment ofthe Dam. The
minimum annaal rent for each run of stanes has
been fixed at $100, if a Breast wheel ke used, and
$150 with: a reaction wheel; and for ench esaw
uwriven by a reaction wheel 8150, below which
rates'it cannot be leased. ' ;

Praposals, sealed and directed to the undersign-
ed at Terre Haute, will be received until the 1st of
September next. :
n behalf the Trustces oj_ Wabash and Erie can-

. L. WILLTAMS,
Chief Engineer.

al,
jy19-d&w5w

LETTING OF VALUABLE WATER POWER AT THE
NEWBERRY DAM.

THE erection of this Dam, 11 feet in height, across the West
Fork of White river will create an extensive water power, well
worthy the attention of manufacturers and capitalists. At the
lowest stage of water in White river there is sufficient to propel
a very large amount of machinery. The durability and certainty
of the power, viewed in connection with the well known
destitution of permanent water throughout that section of the
State. clearly indicates this as an important manufacturing
point. The adjoining counties are capable of producing a large
surplus of wheat, and with the stimulus afforded by good
merchant mills add the advantages of canal navigation, would
undoubtedly furnish an abundant supply of this gain. There is
now a communication by canal with Lake Erie, and by the fall
of 1852, the same channel will be opened to the Ohio river at
Evansville.

A portion of this water power, sufficient to propel not less
than three run of 4 1/2 feet millstones, and also the power
necessary for either one or two saws for lumbering, is now
offered for lease to the highest bidder for the term of thirty
years, with ground sufficient for the use thereof, lying
immediately below the cast abutment of the Dam. The
minimum annuyal rent for each run of stones has been fixed at
$100, if a Breast wheel be used, and $150 with a reaction wheel;
and for each saw driven by a reaction wheel $150, below which
rates it cannot be leased.

Proposals, sealed and directed to the undersigned at Terre
Haute, will be received until the 1st of September next.

In behalf the Trustees of Wabash and Erie canal.

JL. WILLIAMS
Chief Engineer.
jv19-d&wSw

Courtesty of Stan Schmitt

“held under advisement™ until the September term. The
defendants were found guilty and each of them was assessed
a ten dollar fine that September. They appealed their case
to the supreme court and the decision was reversed.

During low water the foundation timbers of this
“alleged nuisance,” the dam, are still visible. When this dam
was built it was contracted that a stcamboat lock be built
into it so that steamboats could go up river. The river lock
in the southside of the dam was built large enough to admit
passage of flatboats but not large enough to accomodate
steamboats. Its dimensions were 105 fect long and 21 feet
wide.

The canal boats had to lock into the river to traverse
the slackwater. This required two canal locks, Lock 39 and
a Guard Lock, one on either side of the slackwater crossing.
The southernmost lock on the north side at the slackwater
pool formed by the dam at Newberry was Lock 59. In 1997
Jeff Kochler and a friend took a johnboat down the river in
search of this lock’s remains. They noticed that near the
abutments of two train trestles (one of which is still in place)
there was some cribbing m the very turbulent water.
Looking more closely at this spot on the northwest edge of
the river bank, they found wooden cribbing timbers, wooden
cribs, and the crib stones. They determined that they had
found the tail end of one wall of the old lock. These were the
pads of foundation timbers and cribs on which the sandstone
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combined lock rested. They were photographed and sent to
CSI by Jeft.

W & E LOCK 59 PHOTO - JEFF KOEHLER

The Guard Lock was located on the south side of
the slack water pool just above Newberry. (Let it be noted
here that the guard locks were not numbercd on the canal.)
Thus there were three locks in total at or near Newberry.
These were Lock 39, the Guard Lock that allowed canal
boats to enter or leave the slackwater, and the river lock in
the dam to allow passage of flatboats. All of this locking
through process took time giving people on the boats an
opportunity to do business 1n the town.

o

Logs were taken through the lock at the dam n huge
rafts. A traveler’s account records that John M. Leonard
when “speaking of the rafting of the logs, he told of the
Newberry &a.m, now almost destmyeti (1899), where seven
men had lost their lives.”

=

NEWBERRY DAM TIMBERS PHOTO-STAN SCHMITT

NEWBERRY DAM REMAINS PHOTO- STAN SCHMITT

NEWBERRY DAM REMAINS PHOTO- BOB SCHMIDT

Although the canal was no longer in use in 1875, it
had stimulated the growth of the town. At that time
Newberry had four dry goods stores, three churches, two
drug stores, two saddler’s shops, two hotels, two school
houses, one flouring and one saw mill, one blacksmith shop,
one wagon shop, one tan yard, one shoe shop, one millinery
shop, one planing mill and one cabinet shop. Today, there
is little business and stores sit vacant. Homes dot the town,
but many have fallen in decay. SR 57 does provide the gas
station with business.

A traveler journeying on the river in 1899 recorded
in his journal the following report on December 14.

“About four miles below New]geny we passe& the

remains of one of the ald Wabash and Erie canal dams.
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The base is about twenty or i]lirt}? feet wide and it is all
there ; the river l'mviug cut a channel to ’t}y_:: left of it. Tt was
built of stone, and eviclen’cly to stay, as it defied the efforts
of the [armers to destroy it until the river solved the
pm}l]em })y going around it. The river is very crooked
along this stretch....”

The dam mentioned was built of stone. CSI is not
sure what this structure was. The closest dam south of
Newberry is that at Shnkard’s Creek although that dam
was 1 1/2 miles not 4 miles below Newberry according to
the 1853 Chief Engineer’s Report. Also it was built of
timber and not stone. The engineer’s report lists no other
canal dams for many miles after that one. It can’t be a lock
for the only locks with any stone in them were locks 58 and
59 of the composite plan north of the Newberry dam. This
1s more likely to have been a mill dam. Not all recorded
history can be trusted as being accurate.

In the Annual Report of the Trustees of the
Wabash and Erie Canal. to the General Assembly of the

Sate of Indiana that was submitted by Charles Butler,
Thomas Blake and A. M. Puett on December 9th, 1848, the
planned completion of this division of the canal was given
as follows:

“On the twenty-fourth day of May last, another
division of the Canal, ex’cenrling from Terre Haute to
Point Commerce, a distance of forty and a half miles, was
put under contract at prices near the estimales, and the
work has been pushe& forward with great vigor, as is
manifest in the ]wavy dishursements alrea&y made upon it
in payments to conlractors. This division, it is believed,
will be rearly for navigation some time next fall, and in
anticipation of it, and to open the line further south as
rapidly as practicable, another letting was had at Point
Commerce on the 15th of November last for the
construction of the division of the Canal from that p]ace
to New}aerry, near the sout}l line o[ Green(e) county, a
distance of seventeen miles. At this terminus a dam is to
be erected across the west fork of White river, 425 feet
long and |l feet high, with a river lock so constructed as to
avoid any impedim ent to the river trade. The dam is made
to answer both for a feeder and a crossing for the Canal to

the eastern side of the river.”

“In the prel]'_minary survey of the Canal route,

made in 1845, the line was run about three-fourths of a
mile west of the viﬂage of Point Commerce, and a side cut
was sur\reyed and reportecl, extcn&i_ug from the main line
to the bank of Eel River, opposite the vﬂlagc Before
ma}eing the fin_a] location of the wor}e, a petition was
received from the citizens of Point Commerce, praying a
change of plan at this point, 1:)}? which the side cut would
be clispenged with, and the main line larougbt a little nearer
to the town. F‘i_nfling from the surveys and report of the
locating engineer, that the change of plan devised would
not increase the cost, nor otherwise affect unfavorable the
pu};iic interest, while it would better subserve the wants of
this viﬂage, whose accommodation was manifest]y the on_ly
olaject of the construction of this side cut, the Trustees
ordered the Canal to be located in accordance with the

petition.”

“The repairs on the southern end of the Cana],
between Pigeon Dam and Evansville, embraced in the p]ﬂn

of tlle Tmsteee, to loe madc t]1is year, ]mve been macle."

“There has been paid for construction, &uring the
year ending‘ the first &ay of December, instanl, the sum of
$341,953.16, and it is expected that throughout the
present winter, as it was the last, the force now cmpioye(l
upon the canal work will be laept up. The present force
employed upon the Canal is equal to 1780 men. There
are 96 miles of the main line under contract, from Coal
Creck to New]Jerly, besides the wotk at Patoka Summit.
There remains 72 miles of the ]ine, from Ncw}:erry to
Pigeon Dam, to be put under contract to complete the

entire line.”

In the Report of the Resident Engineer of the
Wabash and Erie Canal of November 30, 1848 by William

Ball to Jesse Lynch Williams, the canal in Greene County
was planned.

“In March last a }()Cﬂtiug parly was ordan ized, and
the line from Terre Haute to Point Commerce, a distance
of 42 miles and seven chaina, and also i_nclucling the Fel
river feeder and f]mn, was preparecl for ]etting the 24th of
May, at which time the contracts were all &isposed of.
This portion of the line is estimated to cost $273,631 .46,
and is now under contract, after several re-ie‘d:ings, to be

constructed for the sum of $275,319.39. The estimate on
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this c]ivision, made the 10th of November lagt, amounted
to $77,187.00, leaving work yet to be done to the value of
SS] 98,732.39. The work on this pm-tiou of the li_ne, has
gcncrauy been prosecutec]. with energy Ly the contractors,
and should the ensuing Winter not be very unfavora}xle,
the entire line to Point Commerce may be complete& L}’
the 1st of November next. There are now employed 1,250
laborers, and an effective force, equa] to 1,780 men on the
entire line from Coal Creek to Point Commerce. The
force South of Terre Haute in 850 men, and an effective
EOICE equal tU 1{215 ITJ.eTI.”

“This division of work embraces 14 locks, nine on
the North side of the Summit, having an aggregate lift to
78 J:CCL, and five on the South side with a total lift of 37
feet; the extension of the Eel river feeder dam 82 feet, and
the raising and repairing the old dam, the entire 1ength of
w}lic]'_l W‘l_u 130 264 [cc{, and lleigllt 16 12 {:eet alwve low
water; a reservoir bank containing 97,000 cubic }’ar(ls of
embankment with a prolection wall of two inch plan]re in
its centre the whole }ength; three arched culverts; two

small aque{lucts; 14 rectangular sul)mergcd culvcrls, and

17 road bridges”.

“In August last, a }Ucaﬁng party was put in the
field, with Mr. William P. Whittle at its 1103(1, to re-locate
the line from Point Commerce to New})erry (am‘] make
some surveys and examinations at, and in the vicinity of,
the Patoka Summit.) The line adopted follows down the
East side of the prairie, from Point Commerce to Latta’s
Cree}z, a distance of six and one-half miles, ’cllence, after
crossing that stream is traced along the foot of the hill
Louncli_ng the river })ottom, except in a few instance, where
too much distance would be lost l'Jy foﬂowing its
sinuosities, down to a point where the river comes into the
foot of the Muﬁ, thirteen miles below Point Commerce.
[Here two locks are introduced, and the river crossed in the
pool of the Ncw];crry dam. After crossing the river, the
pool of the dam will be the Canal, and the river bank the
tow path down to NeW]Jerr}-', a distance of four miles.
Upon this portion of the line there will be five lift locks,
one guarcl lock at New]:rerry, two culverts, three tow pa’ch
}:)ri&ges, one of which is for the crossing of White River;
and the feeder dam at .\Eewl'zerry 425 feet long and eleven
feet lligli [rom low water of the river. Pains were taken to

get accurate}y the level of the higb water marks of the great

fresh of January, 1847; and in all cases, except from the
crossing of White River above to New})erry, the tow patll
will be raised one foot {ﬂl)ove) this flood. In the estimate
of the dam at Ncwl;crry, provision is made for a suitable

lock to prevent interruption to the navigation of the river.”

“The duties of the locating party for the season
llaving been Close&, it was dishanded on the 25th of
October, and the camp equipage carefuﬂy stored at Point
Commerce, in order for next year’s operalions. A
sutficient number of assistants, and chain and axe men
were retained to prepare the line for contract from Point
Commerce to Newberry, the lcl.ting of which tmnspirec] at
the former place on the 15th of November. The contracts
were taken at fair rates, amounting in the aggregale, for
this portion of the .line, to $165,110.00, the estimated
cost of the same ]Jeing $167,875.00. Length of line 17

miles and six chains.”

“It is due to our numerous contractors to say, that
with but few exceptions, ’they have conducted their work
with spirit an d energdy, ]wving in many cases, gone th rough
with their contracts under the certain prospect of rea.lizi_ng
little or no pm{it on their work. These men deserve the
patronage of the Board of Trustees, and | Leg lcavc,
i}uough you, to bﬁng them to the favorable notice of the

Board.”

“In conclusion, it affords me pleasure to say, that
the gen’t}elnen who have been associated with me as
assistants, viz.: Messrs. |. H. Nelson, James Jo}mstcme, R.

B. Hanna, William P. W}ait’cle, N. R. Wﬂcl, Io}]_n Bcr&an,

and J. P. Pope, have porformed their several duties with

energy and ficlelity, having during the past season
of labor

(].cpartments, never surpasse&, if ever equale(l.”

peri:ormed an amount in their several
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William Ball submitted another report from Terre
Haute to Jesse Lynch Williams, Chief Engineer, on
December 6th, 1852, which is recorded as the Annual
Report of the Resident Engincer.

“The finished portion of the canal extending to
Newbury (Newberry), 59 miles from this place (Terre
Haule), was opened for navigation in March, and the
division extenriing from New].vury (New]:erry) to Maysvi]]e,
a distance of 23 3/4 miles, was prepare& for navigation in

]une last.”

“...On the Newbury (Newberry) Division there has
been paid the aggregate sum of $162,976.91, on account
of construction i1'1c]u_&i_ng paymentls for extra Lri&ges , waste

weirs, and ditches, amounting to $3,662.43.”

“The works about N’cwi)ury (Newl)erry) have been
finished in a substantial manner. The dam, 12 feet high
above the extreme low water, and 444 1/2 feet long, is 1
think, the best in the State. It was origiuaﬂy intended to
build this dam on a plan similar to those in other parts of
the Slale, but at your suggestion a material madification
was masle, By which the serious difficulties heretofore
encountered from drift-wood and unclermining‘ at the
lower end of the Eoun&a‘ciun, 18 entirely avoided. These
important objects ]’naving been [‘uﬂy accomplished by the
plans aclopLocl, i regarcl this as a model dam. During the
paat season a large amount of grave; 11&9 }Jeen {ille& in
above the dam, e{ltectuaﬂy stopping the lcakage, and

rendering the whole secure from undermining.”

“The cost of completing the works at Newbury
(Newberry) was increased some six or eight hundred
c}anra, }Jy the failure of the contractor to comply with the
agreement, upon which, he relinquished the work. We
were IT}L'IC}] (}elaye&, an(l {i}lauy l]ad Lo pIOCUTe ﬂﬂ(] pay {DT

ﬂ,“ the necessary 1‘1’18.{'.()1‘1‘&1.”

In the Annual Report of the Chief Engincer of
December 7, 1852, Jesse Lynch Williams reports that:

“The two very important and expensive structures,
}’J}' which the canal is carried over the two forks of White
river--the dam across the west fork (at Newl)erry:} and the
acque&uc!: (aqueéuc’c at Petersburg) over the east fork--
have been £u_uy cornplelcc] 7 and are believed to be safe and

durable works. The dam is considered a model structure
of its kind. The new and impl‘oveci form given to the lower
slope_, clividing‘ it into two successive 1(&119, with horizontal
aprons lo each, is found to pass off the drift wood with the
least possﬂ;le injury to the dam. The acque[luct (aqne(.]mct}
iz an imposing structure, of great 11eig11t and |engt}1, and
is believed to have been well constructed, both in its
masontry and superstructure, The construction and finish

of the timber superstructure reflects greal credit upon the

builder.”

“The number of boats employed on the canal
during the whele or a part of the season is 240, showing
no material increase over 1851. The Iegularit}-' of the
navigation, and freedom from interruptions, have enabled
the same number of boats to do the enIargecl business la}r
ma]re.ing a greater number of trips. But it is apparent thal
the means of transportation is inadequate to the increasing
f‘reiglﬂc, especial]y in view of the extension of navigation to

the Ohio river, now near al hand.”

Charles Butler, W. R. Nofsinger and Thomas
Dowling, trustees for the canal, stated the following in
their January 1853 Annual Report of the Board of
Trustees of the Wabash and Erie Canal to the General
Assembly of the State of Indiana:

“At the date of the last annual report, the
.Newl')crry, Maysville, and Pelcrs]mrgh divisions were
unfinished. The trustees have the satisfaction to report,
that these divisions have, rluri_ng the season been {iuishcc},
and the work paicl [or, with the exception of a small
balance upon sections 186 and 192 of the Peterslmrgh
Division, which Ll’;ey‘ withhold until those sections are

received ])y them from the contractors..... f

“In the construction of the canal south of Terre
Haute, ti'ze}_r have gencrauy a_d.opted the location and plans
origiﬂaﬂy contemplate(l l)y the State, except that the river
lock at N ew]aerry, on the west fork of White rive t, has been
made much longer and wider than was proposerl 1’)}' the
State Officers, with a view of more 1(11]_1}; accommoda‘cing
the trade of that river. The acquerluct (aqueclucl.') on the
cast fork of the White river has been built on the same
level originaﬂy aonl,emplated, but the spans have been
increased from 45 to 85 f:eet, thus gfrea’cly facﬂiating
(faci]itating) the passage of flat boats.”

Page 67




THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

“The Trustees refer with satisfaction to the
character of these structures > both in clcsign and execution.
T}jey will compare favorable with similar structures on any
pu}Jhc work in this country, and they reflect credit upon
those who have had the immediate supervision of their

construction.

“It is proper that the trustees should state, in this
connection, that to their surprise, t]:uey were indicted in the
Circuit Court of Greene County, for erecting and
maintaining the dam across the west fork of White River,
and the proceecling was sustained ]3}?' the court: and
nol.wilhstan&ing the provisions of the 28th section of the
act crealing the trust, they were fined by the court in a
small sum. The trustces have been since notified that a
second indictment has been found Ly the grancl jury of
Greene County against them for the same cause; and ’tlley
reg}uec’tfu_l_ly submit to the Legisla ture, whether tlaey ought
not to be protccteil 13}" a further act of the Tdeg{s}aturc,
Cleclari_ng that no suit or indictment shall be allowed
adainst them for the construction and maintenance of
such structures as are requirccl to be built in the
construction of the canal, which form a parl of its
established p]a.n, and which are imlispensablc to its very
existence. Of this character are the dam and lock on the
west fork of White River, and the ac.que&ucl. (aque(‘hwt}

across the east fork. “

North of Newberry there arc still remains of the

culvert which crossed Lattas Creek. These are visible at

[ow water.

LATTAS CREEK CULVERT
PHOTO-STAN SCHMITT

GPS - N 39D 02.040M W 86D 59.253M

LATTAS CREEK CULVERT REMAINS
PHOTO - STAN SCHMITT

Bold Bluff (Point Commerce)

The first white settlement in what was to become
Greene County was begun in 1813. Five families arrived
being led there by John O’Banyon and his family. They
built their cabins high atop “Bold Bluff” overlooking both
the White River and the Eel River. The village later
became Point Commerce.

Alexander Craig, a Shaker from Sullivan County.,
saw the commercial advantages of the bluff. It would not
flood and had two navigable rivers for shipping and trading
products. Rivers at the time were the only transportation
routes since no roads had been built. Craig brought his
family and several other Shakers to join O’Banyon's
families on the bluff.

The Shakers, a religious group, had lived in a
communc where all property was group owned. They were
industrious and worked hard for the benefit of all. They
had lived in large dormitories where men were separated
from women. During their daily rituals of dancing and the
chanting of words, they would have shaking spells.
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Those Shakers who accompanied Alexander Craig
changed their communal living habits. They built cabins
scattered around the area and lived as families. A grist mill
was crected and run by Craig. The others operated a cotton
gin, a blacksmith shop and a distillery.

Sadly, the first death in the township was that of
John O’Banyon. There was no sawmill in the area and no
lumber to build his coffin. The men from both groups
worked together to fashion his coffin from an eight foot
poplar log. A huge slab was split off one side of the log.
Then they hollowed out enough space to contain
O’Banyon’s body, placed him inside, hammered down the
slab using wooden pins and buried him.

When others died they used a log coffin or
sometimes a bark coffin. The latter was made by slitting
and removing the bark from a log and placing the body
mnside the bark tube. Once lumber was available crude
wooden coffins were made to fit those who died.

The reason is unknown, but shortly after
O’Banyon’s death, those who had followed him to the bluff
left the settlement. A few years later Alexander Craig died
and the settlement was abandoned by his followers as well.

The bluff again was home to a few families in
1824. This was for only a short time of several months and
they too left. But below the bluff some individual families
were scattered around who had built cabins. cleared the
land, and done some farming.

The Wabash and Erie Canal

It wasn’t until 18335 that the bluff became a truly
successful settlement. The Internal Improvement Bill was
passed that year by the Indiana State Legislature. It
included the construction of three canals, a railroad. and
several turnpikes. The project was to cost $11 million.
This was at a time when Indiana’s tax receipts were
$50,000 annually. The Central Canal was to connect Fort
Wayne via the Wabash and Eric Canal at Peru to
Indianapolis and then follow the west fork of the White
River to Evansville passing through Greene County. The
Crosscut Canal was to connect these two main canals
starting at Terre Haute and following the valley of the Eel
River to what is now the town of Worthington.

Canal Men

K. B. Osborn was the W & E (Canal
Superintendent for the canal from Lafayctte to Evansville.
He was born in Cayuga County, New York in 1822 and
came to Indiana in 1842. He came to Greene County in
1849. He was in the hotel business following the canal
building. He was also a charter member of the Odd Fellows
in Worthington and a stockholder in the Worthington
Advertiser, a Whig paper.

William H. Osborn was born on April 3, 1822 in
Cayaga County, New York, and came to Indiana in 1839,
He was one of the contractors on the canal. He began
issuing an independent paper, the Worthington Sun. in
1874 which he sold in 1876. He was in various businesses.
not all successful, but he owned a lot of property.

Alonzo Knight, Joseph Knight and Hugh Stewart
were also canal contractors. Their contract was for the
feeder dam, the guard bank, the locks and five miles of
excavation above. It was estimated that the value of this
contract was $140,000.

Burdan, Hutchinson, Pole and Whittle were the
engineers. The suvey for the canal was taken in 1848,
Jesse L. Williams, Chief Engineer of the Canal, and W. H.
Ball chose the site for the dam. Others who worked on the
canal were James Rouquet, architect; Owen and Bynum,
treasurers; and John F. Slinkard, clerk.

James R. Aydeclotte, a native of Delaware and
Ohio, came to Montgomery County, IN in 1837. He moved
to Clinton County, IN around 1842 where he took large
contracts to build the Wabash and Erie Canal. He
continued aiding in the work until the canal was completed.
Then he moved to Gibson County were he resided until his
death in 1876. His son, Thomas Aydelotte, was a doctor in
Worthington.

When the survey was completed and also when the
contracts for the construction of the canal were let, large
crowds gathered. Sceing the route and hearing the bidding
were great events at that time.

[EREDAINST
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Point Commerce

Two enterprising brothers saw the proposed
Junction of these two canals as a prime spot to set up
business since transportation at the time was still by boat.
These were entrepreneurs from Spencer, IN,, James M. H.
and John F. Allison.

James Montgomery Higgins Allison was born in
Elizabethtown, Maryland, on September 11, 1802. His
parents, Mr. and Mrs. John B. Allison, were of British
descent, were wealthy and owned many slaves. He was a
large portly man, weighing over two hundred pounds. He
supported the Whig Party, attended the Methodist church
and was described as both a generous person and a
businessman. He was married twice. His first wife, Julia
Ann Payne, died childless only nineteen months after their
marriage. In 1828 he remarried taking Julia Ann
Applegate, a daughter of a wealthy tobacco dealer of
Louisville, Kentucky, as his wife. They had thirteen
children, nine boys and four girls.

John Fletcher Allison, was born in Bourbon
County, Kentucky on July 10, 1814, and was a brother to
James. When he inherited his father’s slaves, he freed
them. He believed that one man did not have a right to own
another. He was a Whig. He later served three terms in the
state legislature, two in the house of representatives and one
in the senate. He was an advocate of the Butler Bill. He
traveled around the country meeting many people and was
well known and well liked. Following his term in the Senate
he returned to Greene County where he bought, drained,
and sold land south of Worthington. He was an advocate
for building the Great Air Limited, a railroad project. He
donated 1,200 acres of land for the project valued at that
time at $8,000. He also donated $1.000 toward the
Indianapolis & Vincennes Railroad and assisted in
promoting it. He led numerous public projects over the
vears making great sacrifices of his time and money for the
good of the community.

The Allisons began buying up land on both sides of
the Eel River where the Cross Cut Canal was to be built.
This land included what was “Bold Bluff” soon to become
Point Commerce. Their land lay as far north as Johnstown
on the river’s east side and some of it was on the west side
of the river, a part of which is now Worthington.

John F. Allison began surveying the land on the

bluff in April 1836 for the town the Allisons named Point
Commerce, a trading place for goods. They anticipated it
becoming a huge commercial center. There were 35 lots on
the plat they registered on April 22, 1836. They decided to
move their store from Spencer intending to buy and ship
produce down the river and later, when completed, down
the canal. The lumber for their store was obtained at
Littlejohn’s Mill in Owen County and was floated down the
White River from Spencer.

People from Indiana, Ohio, and other states also
recognized the potential of the area. They began arriving in
covered wagons overcoming many hardships to get there.
A town of 500 people arose in less than two years. The new
residents painted their houses white using whitewash made
from the lime gotten by burning mussel shells. The hillside,
covered with white houses, white out buildings, and white
fences amid a green forest, was a beautiful sight for those
approaching the town by the river thus the town became
known as “Whitetown.” At a later time the population of
Point Commerce reached 1.200.

The Allisons built a 22 x 40 foot large frame
building to house their store. This was named Allison and
Allison. John F.
Allison was in charge
of the outside branch
of the store while
James ran it. Their
extensive merchandise
¥ costing them around
% thirty thousand dollars
§ annually included all
*: the things that people
needed at that time.
= They bought their
J"stock in New York,

4 shipped it to Pittsburg,
[ then shipped it down
the Ohio River to
g Louisville, and then
hauled it by wagon to

Alligon

Merchandigers

i Point Commerce.

Point Commerce, Ind. They traded this
merchandise for

produce from the

surrounding area since
&, money was in short
R supply. After

ot l]ﬁj :!
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shipping and selling this produce, they paid their
customers’ taxes. This was the only way to raise money for
County and State expenses. They continually employed
fifty to one hundred men.

John made trips to New Orleans by flatboat to se¢ll
produce from the area. Sometimes he went to Louisville
and Pittsburg. He also established another store north of
Worthington named Johnstown after himself, John Allison.
It was an important place in canal times. There was bad
blood between the people of Johnstown and Point
Commerce over the river dam at Point Commerce which
backed up water to Johnstown. After some litigation the
trouble ended.

The Allisons also built a steam saw and grist mill
in 1836 at the mouth of Eel River. Then they built a pork
house where they inspected and shipped the pork products
from 2 to 4 thousand hogs annually. They built a large
warehouse to receive grain, tobacco and all the various
other types of produce. They usually shipped around 25
boat loads of produce a year.

Junction House

The Junction House hotel was built at Point
Commerce in 1837 by James Allison, It was named
Junction for the junction of the two canals and the junction
of the two rivers. James did not have the time to run it
himself. He asked his brother-in-law, Dr. David Shepherd,
to be the landlord. Shepherd was married to Mahala
Allison, James’ sister.

At that time hotel or tavern rates were set by law,
These were: Dinner (Lunch) - 25 cents, Breakfast - 20
cents; Supper - 20 cents, Corn and Hay for the Horse - 25
cents, 1/2 Pint Whiskey - 12 1/2 cents, Quart of Whiskey -
25 cents, 1/2 Pint Rum - 37 cents, 1/2 Pint Brandy - 50
cents, Board and Lodging for One Week - $2.00.

The Junction House was important to the local
people as well as to travelers, for it housed the post office.
The arrival of the mail was probably the most important
weekly occurrence. Through a Star-Route Contract, mail
that arrived in Washington, IN was taken to Sullivan, IN
and then to the Junction House by James Stalcup who rode
the 40 mile route. If the weather was good the mail carrier
would charge a fee and drive a hack bringing passengers
and produce with him. If the weather was bad he would

ride horseback or walk. He would announce his arrival as
he came into the town by blowing a bugle. This would alert
the citizens to pick up their mail or bring letters to be sent.
It was an occasion to gather at the hotel and visit with
others from the community.

Once inside the hotel, the carrier would dump the
mail onto a table or the floor. Then the postmaster would
call out the name on the letter or package. When his name
was called, a person answered “Here” and the letter was
thrown over the top of the general mailboxes which stood
seven or eight feet tall. There would be a scramble to catch
the letter. If the person missed the calling of his name or if
the person was not present, the letter was placed in
alphabetically arranged pigeon holes in the general
mailboxes to be claimed later at the window. These
general mailboxes were not open to the public on the
outside. The recipient of the letter would pay 25 cents to
receive his mail. The sender did not pay.

Church services were originally held in private
homes, but as the population grew the Junction House was
put to use. Sometimes the crowd was too large to be
accommodated in its dining room and the doors to the bar
room had to be opened.

The Junction House was razed afier the decline of
Point Commerce by Tip Osborn in 1880. Its lumber was
used to build the Hedden Hotel in Worthington.

The same year that the Junction House was built
(1837), Dr. Shepherd built a one story brick house. It had
two small porticos and a back porch. This plan seems to
have been copied by John Allison on the lower floor of a
home he built a few years later. The house’s foundation
was of stone. Its walls were very thick. Many of the rooms
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had old fashioned chair rails, wide baseboards, and heavy
doors that swung on three hinges.

Just north of Dr, Shepherd’s home were buried the
first citizens who died in the community. Their bodies were
later moved to the Hays Cemetery. east of Point Commerce,
on the farm of Mark Hays.

Allison House

It wasn’t until 1838 that James Allison brought his
family to Point Commerce. They lived in a cottage just cast
of the Junction Hotel. As he gained in wealth he built them
a brick home in 1844, This house still stands today though
it is in very poor condition. It has no trespassing signs and
a caved in roof. It was an elegant building n its day. a
show place in the community. It stands on the hill
overlooking the junction of the Eel and White Rivers and
had a commanding view at the time the trees were cleared.
It 1s a two-story building with ten rooms and high ceilings.
Big fireplaces, wide baseboards, impressive chair rails,
deep window ledges and six-inch-wide floor boards were
used in most of the rooms. Under one of these rooms is a
large fruit cellar. The rest of the house sits on a foundation
of large sandstone blocks. It has three porches, a small
portico on the front that opens into a hall, a small one on the
west side, and a large long double verandah on the east side
with a long enclosed room above it. On the same property
was built a dairy housc that has architecture corresponding
with that of the main house.

HOME OF JAMES ALLISON BUILT IN 1844
PHOTO - BOB SCHMIDT

Across the street from this home John Allison built
a white two-story frame house. His home was arranged
exactly like James Allison’s home, even down to the dairy
house. Its outside appearance was different in that it was
built of wood. It was sold to Sam Hays and then to Taylor
Messic. Messic tore it down to build another home on the
hill from its lumber.

The Courthouse

The courthouse that was to cost $5,157 was started
by C. B. Hartwell, but after being paid his first payment, he
left the state. Andrew Downing and Samuel Simons, his
sureties, had to complete it. It was finished in 1839
Downing later built the jail in 1859-60 for over $9.000.

Andrew Downing owned a blast furnace about one
mile from Bloomficld which was known as Richland
Furnace. It made pig iron and cast stoves, etc. He hauled
the products from his furnace to Louisville, KY about 100
miles away paying the tcamsters $5 per ton. When
steamboats began running on the White River he purchased
onc and named it “The Richland.” In 1855 he organized
“Downing’s Bank of Indiana at Richland Furnace™ and
began issuing wild cat currency. In 1856, Henry Irons, a
manager of an iron furnace in Kentucky, took charge and
transported the products via the canal. At this time a
thriving little town grew around the furnace. Later when the
Canal Company no longer kept the southern portion of the
canal in repair, the furnace “blew out.”

The traveler journeying on the river on December
13, 1899 says, “Here was the famous Richland furnace,
whose output of iron went to near]y all parts of the
world....The ore here is from twelve to twenty feet in
‘ch.ickness, both the brown and red menitite ores smeitiug
58 per cent pure. Here, also, is the coal so free from
squ}mr as to make it fit for use in smcll.i_ug without ]Jeing‘
coked. Here, also is the limestone for ﬂu_}dng 3 all of which

18 procurecl in Lal?i_ng out the ore.”

Andrew Downing heard about cholera in 1832
while he was away on the river. When he returned home he
learned the county clerk, Thomas Warnick, had contracted
it and was being given calomel by the doctor to no avail.
Downing whipped up his horse and quickly arrived at
Warnick’s home where he found Warnick with “the cold
sweat of death already on him.” He boiled ears of corn in
a huge kettle. wrapped them in cloth so that they wouldn’t
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burn Warnick, packed them around his body, arms and
legs, and held Warnick still so the covers would stay in
place when reaction set in. This hot pack apparently helped
and Warnick lived for many years. The person who had
experienced cholera in 1849 in New Orleans explained “the
agon}-' Of IEEI.CtiOI"l. T]ﬁs 'I.S (1rea(ljr-u_1... \Yfrhcn t]:le }D}LOOC{ gOES
back in the cold feet and L::gs it hurts like hot needles. All
this is just like a Slnl'emg chill.”

The School

Point Commerce was in need of a school and a
place to worship, so in 1849 a two-story brick building was
erected. It was 40 foot by 80 foot in size. It stood across
the street from Dr. Shepherd’s home. The bricks for the
building were made from the soil between Dr. Shepherd’s
home and that of Ben Hays. When completed the lower
floor was used for schoolrooms and the upper floor for
religious services. A stone slab proclaimed the building as
the “Wesley Chapel, ME Church, 1849.” James Allison
contributed $3,000 to the building fund. He also was very
active in securing a teacher and preacher for the building.
When the church was razed in 1882, the slab was used to
cover the cistern on the property of Mark Hays. Later it
was moved to the yard north of the Worthington Methodist
Church. The bricks from the church were used to build the
home of Hays. The people of Point Commerce believed in
recycling building materials.

Contributing to the growth of Point Commerce
were the two ferries which provided a way of crossing the
rivers. Smith’s Ferry was located just below Point
Commerce. Osborn Ferry was north of the town. With this
casy access to the town, a flouring mill that was run by
water power was built on the west side of the Eel River.
Nearby was once located a dam that pooled the water for
the mill. The mill was the only one in the county. Farmers
would travel two to three days from as far away as Sullivan
County to have their wheat ground. They tried to have a
vears worth ground at a time since the journey was so
swampy and muddy that it took teams of oxen to pull the
wagons.

The mill had several different owners and
operators. Sam Miller ran it for many years. Henry
Newsom was the last owner. The mill was finally
destroyed by a fire that was set by a group of Native
Americans passing through the arca. It is unknown why
they did this.

A bridge across the Eel River was erected around
1843-44. Its estimated cost was $736.55.

In 1864 Sam Miller built a home that stood on a
stone foundation, the stone having been quarried near the
Devil’s Tea Table located east of Point Commerce. This
quarry also provided the foundation for the old Eel River
bridge. When Sam died his son, Frederick, occupicd the
home until 1888, when he sold it to Ben Hays. It was a big
two story house that in later years was painted vellow. It
was razed when the new State Highway 67 was built.

Before long Point Commerce was a thriving town
with over 100 houses scattered over the hillsides. It had a
main square of one block. The school house sat on one of
the lots and there were other lots to the east. It sported
blacksmiths, coopers. doctors, gunsmiths, milliners,
shoemakers and tanners. There were also saw mills, coffee
houses and distilleries. For many years it was Greene
County’s model town. It was noted for its thrift and
enterprise, its cleanliness, its advanced commercial activity,
and its progress in education and religion,

All of these businesses and people needed the
supplics the Allisons’ store provided and business boomed.
Their store dealt more in trading farm produce for their
store’s stock than in cash since money was scarce. This
caused the Allisons little problem, because they simply
shipped this produce down the river to New Orleans. It was
not uncommon to ship as many as 15 to 25 flatboat loads
of produce in a year. A major part of their cargo was pork
packed in barrels and covered in brine. The only problem
to this type of transportation was that the rivers were too
high and the current too swift in the spring, they werc
frozen over in the winter, or they were too low to float a
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boat in late summer. The Allisons had to be selective in
when they shipped. They often had in their warehouses and
pork houses a stock of over $40.000 worth of pork and
produce waiting for the river to reach boating stage.

A traveler journeying on the river on December
11, 1899 tells what happed to these warehouses. He writes,
“There used to be huge packing establishments along the
river at this point, but they passed with the flathoat into
oblivion and the town relies now c]ﬁe*ﬂy upon the fertile
farms that surround it. There are some good coal fields
within a short &istance, but t]1ey are worked in such a

primitive manner as to be Scarce]y pro{‘ita]:)lc....”

William C. Andrews was also one of Point
Commerce’s early settlers. He was born in Essex County.
New York in 1812, and moved to Franklin County, Ohio,
where he became a clerk at a store in Worthington, OH at
age 12. He clerked in Gambier, OH from 1837-1839 when
he came to Greene County with Dayton Topping. He and
Topping were in the mercantile business and he was
married to Topping’s sister, Eunice. They had three
children. Eunice died on April 30, 1852. Andrews than
married Josephine Stalcup and they had three children. He
was a lawyer admitted to practice in 1859, He and J. E.
Miller went into a partnership in merchandising from 1865-
1871 when Miller moved his woolen factory to
Worthington. He then went into partnership with C. J.
Barrackman in the mercantile business which they moved
to Worthington. One vear their business purchased 15,000
bushels of wheat to be shipped to market via the canal. He
was Justice of the Peace in Point Commerce and later in
Worthington for more than 25 years. He was elected Clerk
for Worthington in 1874, a town trustee in 1878 and served
the last three months of 1879 as trustee succeeding J. M.
Foster. He was president and stockholder of the
Worthington Bank in 1875. He also was a stockholder on
the Worthington Advertiser. He was considered a radical
but participated in the Whig and later the Republican
parties. He was a member of the Odd Fellows and of the
Protestant Episcopal Church. He later participated in real
cstate. collections, and insurance,

Failure of Point Commerce

Point Commerce eventually failed and is little more
than a few buildings on “Bold Bluff” today. What factors
contributed to this decline?

1. In 1851 a huge cholera epidemic spread
throughout the country. Greene County and Point
Commerce were no exception. The town’s four doctors
were hit first which left Point Commerce without medical
help. Over 125 people in the town of 500 died. Perhaps
this number would have been fewer if medical aid had been
available, Others fled the town hoping to escape the
disease.

2. James Allison became ill. They thought he
would die. The Allison brothers had been overly generous
to the community with their resources and the firm of
Allison and Allison had made some imprudent business
ventures, Their finances crashed in 1852.

3. A huge fire swept through the town about three
years following the cholera epidemic.

4. The proposed junction of the Central Canal and
the Cross Cut canal at Point Commerce never materialized.

Both of the Allison brothers, who risked so much
for the proposed canal, later died in Indianapolis, John in
1877 and James in 1885. John’s body was brought back to
Point Commerce for burial alongside his wife in Hays
Cemetery. Many other settlers were buried there as well.

In 1917 a new cut was made for the Eel River that
was half way between the railroad bridge and the wagon
bridge. This cut completely changed point Commerce’s
landscape. The few homes that remained in the area did not
get electricity until October 21, 1929,

Platting Worthington

Before 1849 and while Point Commerce was still
thriving, two of her influential businessmen, William C.
Andrews and Christian J. Barrackman, purchased several
hundred acres of land on the west side of the river. They
were ready for the announcement on April 1849 that said
the Wabash and Erie Canal was to be completed and
rerouted. They hired a surveyor and platted out 94 lots on
both sides of the canal’s route. Mr. Andrews had come
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from Worthington, OH and gave this new town the name
Worthington in its honor. The citizens of Point Commerce

didn’t want another town so close to theirs. They tried to
block the sale of the lots.

Mr. Barrackman told the surveyor that he wanted
all the streets to run north to south and east to west. But he
hadn’t taken into consideration the large Native American
mound that was in the way or the old roadway that ran
northeast to the river. Therefore, one north-south street had
to be located west of the mound. This is today’s
Washington Strect. The old roadway paralleled the canal
and entered the area at an angle. This was left in place
becoming Commercial Street or State Highway 67.

The junction of Washington Street and Commercial
Street was 500 feet south of the Native American mound
and a triangle was formed that became the public center of
the town. The mound was located at the base of the
triangle. It covered most of the block that is now occupied
by First Farmers State Bank, True Value Hardware, and
others. This public triangle made Worthington unique in
that most towns have public squares.

The Mound

This Worthington mound was a very large. slightly
oval mound which measured 360 feet wide north to south
and somewhere between 360-390 feet long from east to
west. At its highest point it was 9 feet 6 inches high. It was
built from nearly 4000 cubic yards of soil that was
transported from a marsh one-quarter to one-half a mile
north of the site. The Native Americans did not have an
casy way to transport the dirt. They probably used baskets.
A calculation has been made that figures it would have
taken 200 persons about 60 days to move over 108,000
baskets of soil.

The excavation of the area’s mounds was done by
Dr. Black from Indiana University and Fred Dyer and
Bernard Bucher from Worthington. In the Worthington
mound they found indications of a communal home built
within the mound with an earthen roof and sides. There
were ashes in what was once a fireplace and the remains of
a chimney. The ashes contained broken bits of houschold
pottery and bone and stone implements. No war like objects
were found indicating a peaceful people. Indications of
poles used to support the earthen roof were seen. Some
authorities believe it housed a large communal tribal

family. They also found a crushed skull indicating murder
by a hard blow. It is thought that the murder might have
made the mound taboo to habitation and then it became a
dedicated burial spot.

Earlier William C. Andrews excavated a portion
to the east side of the mound while building the Franklin
Housec. At that time he found an eighteen inch thick
sandstone wall surrounding an clliptical oval vault eight
fect long, five feet wide, and three feet deep. The floor of
the vault was covered with thin flagstones. This vault is
thought to have been built after the mound was abandoned
and used as a temporary receiving vault for bodies of those
dying between the Native Americans” epochal national
funerals. Several Native American graves were found near
the surface of the mound.

By March of 1880 the Terre Haute & Southeastern
Railroad reached Worthington and needed to be connected
to the Indianapolis and Vincennes Railroad. In order to do
this, the abandoned Wabash and Erie Canal bed had to be
filled in. This was accomplished under the direction of
Calvin S. Taylor, who took the carth from the mound being
very careful to preserve the relics found and keeping
measurements of the finds. Today the mound is gone and
forgotten. When planning the tour several business people
where questioned as to where the mound was located. They
didn’t know. One older man questioned worked at True
Value Hardware which was built on the mound site.

The Triangle

Worthington’s Main Street was at the southern
boundary of Samuel Harrah’s holdings. It crossed the tip
of the triangle. Harrah built a store on the corner of Main
and Washington. He then decided to beautify the town and
planted 100 hard maples along Main Street.

The triangle served the same purpose as most town
squares. Hitching rails were placed around it for farmers
to tie up their horscs when doing business in town. A well
was dug on the triangle in 1884 to provide water for the
horses and their owners. It had a roof over it that made it a
shelter house. It had scats to rest on and a fence around it.

The was replaced with a fountain that operated
with water from an artesian well when the earlier shelter
became run down. The water was thought to be healthy and
people came to fill jugs with it. Over the years this fountain
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was replaced with a concrete one and then with a fountain
much like the first one.

The Cotton Field

Worthington was actually built on the site of an
carlier 50 acre cotton field. This ficld had 5 acre plots that
local farmers cultivated. Anyone with any knowledge of
cotton knows that cotton requires intensive work and small
fields are all an individual farmer can manage. The farmers
would hire young people to pick the cotton at harvest. They
would hold picking bees that were major social events.

Cotton gins were built to clean and remove the
seeds from the cotton. To add strength to its fibers for
knitting socks, the women would add wolf or fox hair. But
the cotton growing season was really not long enough.
Often the cotton hadn’t ripened before the fall frost and the
crop was lost.

Wool was a stronger fiber and made more
comfortable clothing. Mr. Black decided to bring sheep to
the arca. Wolves, panthers and other predators were so
common at the time that the sheep had to be watched
constantly.

Worthington Settled

To get their newly platted town going, Andrews
and Barrackman decided to move their store from Point
Commerce to Worthington. Other merchants followed suit
and the town grew.

Andrews and Barrackman’s business was much
like that of the Allisons. They bought produce, pork and
grain from the farmers, built flatboats, and shipped the
cargo to New Orleans. In one record year they shipped
15.000 bushels of wheat by canal boat. They also donated
the lot upon which the Protestant Methodists built a frame
church,

A problem arose as to how to get the money
(several thousand dollars in gold and silver) back to Indiana
after one very successful trip to New Orlcans. Mr.
Andrews found it too hard to carry on his person and was
afraid of being robbed. Hc put thc money in a barrel,
unknown to anyone else, and had the barrel shipped to
Louisville. KY. He and a trusted assistant traveled as
passengers on the boat and took turns guarding the barrel.

When they docked in Louisville, Andrews put the barrel on
a wagon and hauled 1t back to Worthington.

Wabash and Erie Canal

The route of Wabash and Erie Canal was changed
to run to Evansville. The Cross Cut Canal had been
completed from Terre Haute to where Worthington would
be built. A 20 mile portion of the Central Canal had been
completed northeast from Evansville. The Wabash and Erie
took over these completed portions. The “final link” was
buiit joining the Cross Cut to the Lower Central Canal
between Port Gibson and Worthington.

The new route of thc Wabash and Erie Canal
passed through Greene County where Worthington now
stands. It was completed through the county during the
vears of 1849-50. It ran north to south as is described in
the Historv of Greene & Sullivan Counties published in
1884 as follows: “Entering the county at Iolmslown,

thence down to Wottllington; thence along the west side

of the river to Newllerry, where a dam was built and the
river crossed ; thence southwes’cwar(u.y into Daviess

County.”

The canal was dug in the standard way of the time.
Men with money contracted to build sections of the canal.
Irishmen provided the labor using spades, shovels, picks,
wheelbarrows, one-horse carts, and sometimes scrapers.

The citizens of the county awaited the opening of
the Wabash and Erie (Cross Cut) portion of the canal
There was a great celebration in 1850 when the first canal
boat the “Aeolus™ arrived carrying passengers from Terre
Haute Quite a few of the citizens from Greene County
went to Terre Haute to ride that boat into Worthington.
Others took a “grand excursion™ up the canal to Terre
Haute from Worthington when regular canal boat traffic
was opened to the north in 1850,

Page 76



THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

By 1853 the canal
was opened all the way to
Evansville. The owner of
the won furnace, Andrew
Downing. owned two
canal boats on which he
shipped his iron products
to Evansville. He was also
a merchant in Bloomficld.
His canal boat captains
were Paul Thompson and
his brother, Alexander
Thompson, who joined the
Thirteenth Battery, Light
Artillery for the Civil War
i 1862, One of Downing’s boats was wrecked at the
Richland cut-off where its remains were imbedded in the
canal bank.

Other boats were owned by Start & Co.,
Worthington flour merchants, and by Peter C. Vanslyke,
Bloomfield shipper of grain and other products. Vanslyke
started his small horse mill in Bloomfield to supply meal to
his distillery which had a production capacity of twenty
gallons a day. He had two canal boats named the John H.
Eller and the H. T. Ford. The Ford was said to be a very
rapid sailer.

Even though there were six locks on the Wabash
and Eric Canal in Greene County to control the water
levels, heavily loaded boats could not use the canal in this
area. There simply wasn’t enough water available to
maintain the proper depth of water to float them.

From 1851 to 1859 business on the canal was fairly
good. The canal system operated from Worthington south
to Evansville for about 6 years and from Worthington to the
north about 10 years. Then it was almost abandoned. At
various times they tried to revive it. It did some business
until about 1863, but it could not be depended on. It soon
became an eyesore and was regarded as a nuisance. The
upkeep of the canal was too expensive. But it must be
remembered that the canal is why Worthington was
originally built.

The Newspaper

The Advertiser. Greene County’s first newspaper.
was established m 1853 by two men who had been

publishing a paper in Salem, IN. They came to town with
a full outfit to print the 6-column folio. The first paper cost
subscribers $1.50 a year. Through its 148 years the owners
and the paper’s name changed as follows: The Hoosier
Blade, The White River Valley Times, The Worthington

Gazette, and The Worthington Times.

The Railroad

August, 1869 saw the Indianapolis and Vincennes
Railroad completed to Worthington. A crowd of around
6,000 citizens, many who had never before seen a train,
gathered as it puffed into town. The Terre Haute and
Southern reached the town ten years later. These railroads
further stimulated the growth of the town. One of them
purchased the canal and laid its tracks on the tow path. At
that time soil from the mound was used to fill in portions of
the canal bed.

Worthington had a water tank to supply the steam
engines’ boilers with water. It also had a turntable for
turning the trains around. Trains became more numerous
and profitable. At one time there were 25 trains passing
through the town daily.

It wasn't until the spring of 1870 that
Worthington’s citizens petitioned to hold an election to
decide if it should incorporate and have its own town
government. The vote was favorable. This new
government constructed wooden sidewalks which through
the years were changed to brick and then concrete. They
also drained the stagnant water from the remaining canal
bed in town and filled it in with dirt. They had a 10 ft. by
6 ft. jail that was 8 ft. high built for $150.

The Bank

The first bank with a stock of $20.000 was
organized in 1872. This was followed by another bank
three years later and others over the vears. Sometimes one
bank bought out the other,
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The Flood

Worthington encountered a major flood in 1875.
Trains could enter the town from the north, go as far south
as possible before the water put out the fire in the firebox,
and reverse using the remaining steam to get back into
town. This kept the town from being completely
inaccessible.

The Telephone

It seems reasonable that the first telephone lines ran
from Worthington to Bloomfield, the county seat. Oral
history tells us that two of Worthington’s boys became
fascinated with the railroad’s telegraph system. One boy's
father encouraged his son by buying two telegraph sets so
that the boys could communicate from one home to the
other. When the boys learned of the invention of the
telephone, their interest was transferred to it. Soon they set
up a telephone line from Worthington to Bloomfield. A
telephone company establishing a system for the town
purchased the boys’ line.

Two boys set up
first
telephone.

Worthington’s Industry

As the population grew, industries boomed. By the
1880°s it had a large business center. “The Big Mill”
owned by Mr. Darnell covered 5 acres at the junction of the
Ecl and White Rivers. It sawed the logs that were floated
down the river and shipped the lumber by rail. One year it
shipped over 4 million board feet of walnut lumber to New
York. Other lumber shipped was cottonwood. gum,
hackberry and sycamore. It had a 727 saw, a 64” circular
saw, and planers with which they finished the lumber for
home building.

The clay about four miles north of town was of
exceptionally good quality. Worthington Potteries owned
by Esquire George Wills of Northampton, England, made
fruit jars, milk platters, and butter crocks which were

purchased locally or shipped by rail. Worthington Brick
and Tile Company was located on the Terre Haute Road
west of town. This yard produced as many as 30,000
bricks in a day. It employed 15-20 men.

Boilers and hoisting machinery were made at a
foundry and machine works. Two mills ground wheat into
flour, Worthington Flouring Mill and Gilt Edge Flour Mill.
Plow handles, clothes pins. screen doors and other wooden
items were made at the Bentwood (Beachwood) factory.
Five thousand bobsled runners were ordered and produced
in this factory one year.

There was a large poultry packing house and two
smaller oncs. Poultry was put in refrigerated railcars for
shipments directly to New York. The Armour creamery
shipped to various cities closer to home. Farmers brought
their milk to the creamery for processing. When the
building burned down in 1925, over 60 people were without
jobs.

I

Other establishments included ecight grocery
stores, six churches, five saloons, five drv goods stores,
three hotels, three drugstores. two undertaking businesses,
a laundry, a butchering business and a weather station,
The daily weather report was reported to the local citizens
by raising signal flags atop a flag pole located on the
triangle in front of Dr. Squire’s office. The Dr. would get
the daily report by telegraph and hoist the flags.

The Hotels

This was before the time of advertising and
ordering from catalogs, newspapers, magazines, and
television.  Salesmen called on the businesses to
demonstrate and sell their products. These traveling men
needed places to stay overnight. As early as 1853 the
Osborn House registered 437 guests in onc month. The
Franklin House located on the old mound and the Williams
House built by Mr. and Mrs. Henry Williams in 1890 also
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accommodated the travelers. The Williams house was
“modern” for the time. It had a basement which not only
provided storage spacc for food but had room for a furnace
to supply the rooms with heated warm air. The local people
also enjoyed the comfort of the hotel. It served dinners to
them as well as the travelers. It also sponsored dances.

The large front porch of the hotel was against the
sidewalk with a second story porch above it. To enter the
hotel the traveler climbed a wide sct of steps and came in
through two sets of double doors. One set of doors led to
the hotel’s main floor with its large lobby. dining room,
kitchens, and living quarters for the Williams family. The
second set opened to a wide stairs to the second floor where
there was a large room lighted during the day by a skylight
and at night by hanging lamps. Off this room were four
halls. Guest rooms lined the halls and each hall had a large
washroom. There were no private baths.

Much of the time
the salesmen came to town
by rail. They would then
rent a horse and perhaps a
wagon or buggy to call on
the area’s businesses to sell
their products. They were
known as “drummers” for
they went around
“drumming up trade.”

Salesmen
tere called
"Brummers"”

The Homes

It appears that there were two men who worked
together to build most of the early homes in Worthington.
These were James M. Dyer and John Kayser., Dyer selected
and provided the materials with which to build the homes.
He later established a lumber yard on Commercial street
that burned down m 1991. Kayser was the actual builder
of the homes.

The early homes were built on the east side of town
where the land was higher. This was smart as proven by
the flood of 1913. At that time the railroad grade which
was thought to protect the town was broken through by the
flood water. Several homes in the northern part of town
were flooded and the families had to be evacuated. The
roads around the town were all flooded and with the rail line
washed out, the town was isolated.

The Schools

Students from Worthington at first attended the
academy that was on the hill at Point Commerce. It
compared to today’s high school and had two teachers.

The citizens of Greene County knew the
importance of cducation. Elementary grades were taught
by Miss Julia Taylor in her home and by another man in a
log house. As early as 1830 education was available at the
five or six one-room elementary schools in Jefferson and
Eel River townships. School often only lasted about three
months during the winter. One recorded fee prior to 1850
was $1.50 per student. By 1870 when Worthington was
incorporated, there was a school on South Myra Strect and
another one-story brick school on the corner of another
street.

The first high school was organized in 1875 in
Green County and was the area’s only commissioned high
school for many years. It was located in a large building
built that year to house both elementary and high school
grades. Students would often come from Coal City and
Bloomfield and live with friends or relatives so that they
might attend the school. The school added a gymnasium 2
1/2 blocks away in 1945. In 1955 the present school
building was constructed adjacent to the gymnasium to
house both elementary and high grades. Worthington High
School is one of the oldest high schools in the state.

The Churches

Recorded history mentions an carly log church
built on high ground on the west side of Jefferson Street in
Worthington. The church floor was built about three feet
above the ground. At that time livestock roamed the streets
at will. A bunch of hogs were attracted to the shade
provided under the church floor and they moved in. The
animals would squcal and fight and they smelled bad. They
could not be driven away. Finally things became so
intolerable that the people were driven away.

1850 saw the building of the Protestant Methodist
church which remained active until after the Civil War. In
1859 the brick Christian Church was built on the hill on the
cast side of town. Prior to that its members worshipped in
homes and school houses. Through the years its ownership
transferred to the Nazarene Church and then to the Living
Christian Church. The Christian Church built its current

Page 79




THE FINAL LINK - Port Gibson - Worthington

building at the corner of Main and Lafayette Streets in
1915,

St. Matthews Episcopal Church’s frame building
stood on Main Street where the present day GTE Telephone
building is located. The congregation of the Methodist
Episcopal Church first built a frame church on the
southwest corner of Willie and Jefferson Streets. It cost
$800. It was moved to a lot donated by Sophia Folsom on
Main and Lafayette Streets. In 1901 the present building,
built with bricks made west of town at the Cantwell brick
vard, was dedicated.

In 1869 the Baptist Church was organized. It built
its building on its present site, but the building has been
enlarged and remodeled over the years.

Major Events and Attractions

The citizens of Worthington enjoy
congregating for special events. On July 4, N
1884 over 3,000 people attended a huge
fireworks celebration held at the Fair Grounds.

Another 5,000 attended the Worthington Corn

Fair held on the triangle on January 1895, It

was organized by J. E. Miller and was so

successful that he was asked to manage a corn

fair for Edinburgh. The Worthington fair had

beautiful weather with snow covering the

ground. The largest load of comn was that of

Fred Jessup. He had 32 horses pulling a load that was 44
feet long, 7 feet wide and 6 feet high. The smallest load
was pulled by a Newfoundland dog and another was pulled
by a large horse and a small pony, Probably the strangest
team was the combination of a mule, a cow, and a billy
goat.

Worthington even had a horse racing track located
north of present Worthington Park. Wilson Race Tracks
operated from 1895 to 1905 and admission was ten cents.
On one July 4th over 10,000 people paid to see the race and
the fireworks celebration.

The Greene County Fair was hosted by
Worthington for many vears at the park. For years a big
parade was held in conjunction with the fair. Floats were
built and decorated with tissue paper flowers and
papiermache figures by organizations and churches who
competed for prizes.

During the depression a Civil Conservation Corp
camp was located in Worthington where the school now
stands. The young men, who were without work, were
given jobs by the government through this program to do
things for the community. Much of the group’s work was
planting trees in Shakamak and McCormick’s Creck State
Parks located nearby,

A limb of the huge sycamore tree known as the
“Greene Giant™ is in the city park. The 100 foot tall, 500
vear old trec grew on the Dixon farm that was located on
the cast side of White River. It measured a little over 42
feet in circumference about five feet above the ground. Its
trunk divided about 15 feet above ground into two huge
limbs, the smaller of these is on display in the park, It is
said to have been the largest deciduous tree in the United
States. Pioneers passing through the area often camped
beneath it and built fires so near its base that some think
this caused it to become hollow. As people learned of the
tree more came to see it, many of whom carved their initials
on its trunk opening it to insects and decay. Five men
paddled a big canoe through its fork during the 1875 flood
and marked the water level. When the tree died a lady
wrote about it and one possible cause of its death. She also
had picture postcards made to sell. In 1925 a bad
windstorm caused a part of the tree to fall. The section of
one limb was moved to the park to save part of it.

A rock formation on the bluff of Mark Hays farm
overlooking White River east of Point Commerce is known
to residents as the “Devil’s Tea Table.” Native Americans
and early settlers used it as a lookout and possibly for
religious ceremonies. It attracted people from miles around
as a picnic spot. Other nearby rock formations are known
as “Fat Man’s Squeeze” and the “Devil’s Chair.”

In 1905-1906 the Indianapolis Southern Railroad
built the highest trestle in the United States at the time
across a valley in eastern Greene County. It stands today
and is 157 feet high and 2,300 feet long, almost 1/2 mile in
length. The Illinois Central Railroad still uses this trestle
which is one of the three largest trestles in the world.

The population center of the United States was in
Greene County near Linton in 1930. As the population
expanded this center has continued to move west.

Greene County had shaft underground coal mines
and later strip mines that cmployed many of Worthington's
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men. They were never the larger coal mines found in other
arcas, but they left behind pits and lakes.

Worthington Celebrities

/s Fred Fewell
"J. €. Wellg"
bandleader,compoger,

musgician, teacher

-

Fred Jewell

Fred Jewell, the son of a Worthington attorney, had
no formal music training other than that given him by his
father, but he won fame throughout neighboring states as a
band director and composer. He conducted the bands for
the Ringling Brothers Circus and the Barnum and Bailey
Circus from 1897 to 1917. Then he published music in
Iowa and was a band lcader there from 1920 to 1922. He
returncd to Worthington in 1922 bringing along his
publishing business, teaching music at the public school,
and organizing a band. He then went to Florida to direct a
concert band returning to Worthington later as the school
band dircctor and as the Murat Shrine Band director in
Indianapolis.

Fred Jewell died in 1936 and is remembered by a
plaque on the entrance to the park. He composed over 150
pieces of music, most of which were marches. Some were
published under his pen name, J. E. Wells.

Captain Smith

Captain David Smith learned of the ocean’s oldest
ship, a sunken British prison ship named “Success,” that
was launched in 1790 and went down off the Australian
coast. He saved $5.000 to purchase the ship and had it
raised off the ocean floor, refitted its sails, and sailed it to
Boston in 1912. This earned him international fame. He
made several trips up and down the Ohio and Mississippi

rivers with it. After adding a steam engine, he sailed it to
almost every U.S. port. He even took it to the Chicago
World’s Fair on Lake Michigan in the 1930s.

Smith returned to Worthington after selling the
ship and tried to develop an oil field nearby. He hit a lot of
dry holes and this dream never materialized. He formed
“Lake Eva” on his farm west of Worthington by building a
dam. This lake he stocked with ten tons of fish from
Tennessee and king sized Louisiana frogs. It was a
fisherman’s paradise. The lake was drained after his wife
died. He moved to Indianapolis where he resided in semi-
seclusion until his death.

Herbert Yardley

Herbert Yardley, who worked as a telegraph
operator after graduating from high school, crcated a
technique to decode diplomatic messages of foreign
governments. The United States War Department and
State Department used this technique during World War 1.
He was given a budget of $100,000 and employed 50
decoders known as the “Black Chamber.” After the war his
services weren't needed and he wrote a book entitled “The
American Black Chamber” which told of his experiences.
He wrote several other books that were published. One was
made into a movic. He was also in the employ of the
Chinese for a while to head up their message decoding.

sTA!'s
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(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - DAVIESS CO INDIANA VEALE TWP
Columns : Residence# Name Age Sex Occupation Real Estate$ Born
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Trotter, Cldham
Barbara
mattingly, Sarsh
Trotter, William
Epruim
John
Sarsh E
Meredeth, James
Ann
Catherine
Elizabeth
Rebecea
John
James H
Smith, John
Rebecea
Robart
Lewis
30 July 1850
Smith, Ann
Henry
Shanke, John
Sarah
William
Edward J
Fitzgerald, Elisha
Sarah A
Sarah A
Ells &

Ty
Martha M
Rupell, James
John

Asay
Fitzgerald, Benjanin
Rarncy
Dugan, Margaret
Condra, Christian
laghley, Delelah
ebe

Mzriha
William G
26

Burch, Christopher
Sarah

Lemuel
Samuel
Hannah
Lylsbury
Hanmah
Morgan, George
Ellen
James
Franklin
Ephrain
Taylor, Delelan
Ballow, William T
Julia &
Lyndall, William
Hyatt, Margaret
Rodarmel, Catherine
3 July 1850
Solon, John
Eaton, Edward
Furphy., Michael
ﬁﬁ\ms.ﬁon‘is
BY
McKimey,r;{ur
MeDermot, Jemes
¥inney, John
lane, Thomas
Jowman, Charles
Pay, Feter
Keenan, Patrick
Melon, Solomen
Melegan, Michael
Shonn, Michael
Hennessey, Daniel
Hugent, Jamep
Brady, FPatriek

Lloyd,

Flynn, Barnard
Sarah, Patriek
Horon, Michael
¥eGiraw, Darby
¥allocks, John
Buckley, Edward
Cenley, Patrieck
Riley, Thomas
Weckee, Barnard
Gardner, James
Gallagan, Owen ¥
Mulvay, Peter
Carty, Marthew
William
Sullivan, James
Foster, Feter

2?7

o4
e £

23

DO D =IO

mwuwummugo\ el

AR RO N FEFMOON DO MN DN

B T o o T et
nmommowrog\auﬂmwwﬂm-@o‘gﬂm
B I ISR IO RA S FERITIRHaHTIRTI TS T MR E AT I T s

'8

e
R e e |

foe -
M»hﬂggmga
HAH AR RS B NE B T

i

1
3
28
12
&4
21

25 21

BNl SR SR B R RSN EN S R R By

AR E-RENER RN e

farner

farmer 1500

fermer 1000

fermer 500

farmer
farmer
"

miller

farmer 2000

farmer 800

constable 1000

farmer

teacher 1000
700

E600
canal digger
" 1

E N R

Age

‘));;g:l=gs:ll!l!;%ll!gawéilll';

Sex

o

[0:]
IR
Nd
kY
iKe

g;rrl:qsqgﬁ

™

H
L

EEroEEoWE 4N AR R3S 3EYIEIE PN TNN TN EME

Page 87

270

271

272

Fage
273

274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

271

T2

104
273

e75

276

277

278

279

-

280

281

Fage 105 1 August 1850

Occupation Real Estate $
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(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - DAVIESS CO INDIANA WASHINGTON TWP

Columns : Residence# Name Age Sex
KeCarty, Charles 40 m laborer Ire
Sullivan, Dennise 25 m : :
May, Thomas 39 m %
MeNanarrs, Prancis m e 4
Burk, Michael Am s 2
Hagar, Charles E‘l m 4
¥ilholland, James 5m . = :

282 282 Willlamson, Corneliug 22 m farmer NJ
Hannah s Ky
David ¢ 22 m 3 IN
Nathan L 20 m ¥ »
Randolph b m =
Cornelius 12 m 3
John BEm IL
Elizzbeth 71 i
283 283 Hi1l, Elizs o0 PA
John 7@ 1L
Louise Er N
Theressa 5 B 52
Emeline 14 f KC
Naney 12 r -
Lucinda 0 r A
¥aloney, John 29 m clerk Ire
2866 2845 Doolin, Pater 32 m £
Ellen il
Hary L o IN
285 285 Williams, William R 5 m farmer NG
Jane i o
Anne 17 £ IN
Permienas 20 m i NG
Ama 32 £ iN
Jehn on 5
William Im .
286 2B6 Doolin, Peter 28 m laborer IRE
Ellen 27 F %
Mary ir IN
287 287 ¥Noralty, John Jom ire
Mary 28 1 .
1 Auguet 1850 26 16
288 2R Burns, Jimes 4z m bosE on publie Ire
Hargaret 4o f /works *
239 289 Gslavin, Mathew Enm laborer *
Joanna i £ T
Edward Zm m
290 290 Mulhalland, James 42 » bosm on public Ire
Anne 3T works "
Thomas i7m laborer =
Catherine 2 =
Elizabeth T 5
James 2m IN
Davidson, Anne 21 f Irs
291 291 Burng, Michael ég m contractor 2
lizabeth T =
James 16 m labvorer -
Thomas it = L
Canner, John 0 n IRE
Catherine 3T &
Thomas Zm Can
20 beol m 2300
Page 113 7 Aug 1850
k05 405 Getiings, William 32 » PFarmer ¥D
Mary A 261 PA
Charles B 2m iN
Kehan, Catherine 16 ¢ PA
406 U406 Bradberry, Henry 30 m farmer XY
Nancy 2k f L
Julia kg IN
William bm -
Eliza 3£ “
407 k07 Themas, John X 32 mB farmer 5C
Catherine 26 rB IN r/w
4 William ImB 2.
408 L4028 Bamsett, Elram 30 m i KY
Hary 20 f Fa
Gecrge E/12 m I
¥enneth D 2bm ~ -
Smith, Valentine jg m Ger
Duzan, Ezeklel ibs * IN
kg 410 Myers, Mary Lot VA
. . Zdmund P m GH
411 411 Kearnes, Phillp 46 m farmer K
Sarah 60 £ VA
Armstireong 22w " IN
Martha 4l g 2
Eagle, Iaina b £ -
Williang, George i . »
Martha 11 £ !
William B ”
kiz 41z Eagle, George 3? i " rfw
Sarah 27 £ Fa
Ersull c 6 F IN
rmatr 2m i
Dillon, Mary =& i5 1 " g
413 513 Williman, Catherine L0 f €00 PA
Levi 18 m fermer ¥
Naney 16 £ -
William 14w H
Mary B o U B
18 20 2 colm i col £ 600
41 L1k Williman, Hiram L b5 w farmer P
Marjory A U-g e ke
M 18m OH
James 16 m OH
Elizabeth 14 ¢ * oy
Sarah J 121 N
Donna B io £ - .
Willlam H Bn L
John B Em " g
Hiram L 2nm -

Occupation Real Estate $

292

296

297

Page
258

300

301

302

415

416

L17

518

Mg

k20

Page
hat

Page 88

2592

253
294

295

296

297

106
258

299

300

301

j02

415

416

L17

kig

419

20

114
L21

Eurns, Mary

Elizabeth

Coolan, Thomas
Sophia
Joana
Thomas

John
MeCluskey, John
Ma

Y
Cary, Michasl
Catherine
John
Themag
KcCleskey, David
Yirginis

¥ajor, John
5

ugan
Reynelde, William H
lizabeth
Tiot naned
Marilds
Culberiscen, Josiah
Anne
2 August 1850
Robsrtson, James J
A4l

Thenas M
Aeillis
Josiah G
Nancy J
Martha

James
Ragsdell, Hezekizh
Themas T
Maria A
Milewunm
Hepekiah
Nancy J
John A
Louisa
Copeland, George
Colbext, Levi D
Elizabeth
Abner D
John
Jane
Henry J
Asahol
Eliza
Loules
Mary J
Duncan, Benjamin
Febeca
Joseph

Colbart,

Williman, Levi
Anne

Jemes L
Joseph C
Elmira
Anneg
Sephrania
Scott, William
NEnCY
Margaret
Nancy
Abram
Francess
Louisa
Francesa
Thomas
Lavina
Catherine
Wykoff, John F
Rodaymel, Hannah
WykofI, Eliza
Aodarmel, Carcline
Williams, John
Presley
Ageh

Right,
Falth,

Archiveld
Zdward T
Beasett, Alfred
Elizabeth

Jehn B
Arthur. Elijah
Bassett, Milton

)
g

7 hug 1850

Clark, Lewis
layra
Hail
Genrge
KeCay, Kichael
¥elene, Michael
Thomas
M¥olntire, Jehn
Deoolan, Peter
Patrick
Kernea, Richard
MeGeughey, John
Malone, John
Hill, Barnard
Van Fuff, John
Bondsrville, FPeter
fileholas
Cramer, Michael
Whlte, John
Sholtz, Lewis
Leak, Jacob

ra o
[Tl o = RCLTE |

m =
S T
a2 - B L) = UU\a
Al P On ] TR OO R R O PO O O
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o
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Born
Ire
™
laborer Ire
I8
- ire
IN
farmer 1200 XY
e
R
= s/
KX r/w
IR r/w
farmer 2000 SC
3200 52
farmer KY
sC
35 IN &8
- e
il
A
e
Al
carpenter 2000 YA
farmer IN
N
¥ s
T
farmer 1500 KY
* rfw
I¥ &
T
e 1500 VA
KY
farmer 500 PA
Kx
IN e
iy
L
ey
» " i
NE /W
Y r/w
IN
carpenter 200 CH
IN z/w
farmear 1300 "
KT
IR
" 1000 KY
- IN
- o
el
" IN
3800 10 &
cenal contractor PA
EN
Ire

latorer on canal
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Columns : Residence# Name

Lz2 G422

423 423

Lah b2b

425 25

(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - DAVIESS CO INDIANA WASHINGTON TWP

Pieper, Enos
lavre, Hermen
Clark, Philip
Mooney, Matthew
¥eDermot, James
Leavy, Patrick
Callahan, Felix
Holland, John
MeManus, Hugh
Cowen, Petrick
Conway, Patrick
Burng, James
Haley, John
Conawvay, John
Quinn, Edward
Micheel
Whalen, James
Nugent, Michael
Hoy, Matthew
Walsh, James
Harry, John O

griffin, Willian
Shay, Patrick

Peter

John

Corneliue
Hennsbry, Thomas
Leavy, Thomas
Henrasgy, Patrick
Cormer, John
Harrigan, Timothy
Puller, William
Yudden, Bichael
MeKelligate, Patrick
Sullivan, Michael
Fitzgerald, William
Crowley, Michael
Burns, Patrick
¥oralty, Daniel
Wren, Kicheel
Lyneh, Patrick
Rearden; John
Welch, Fatrick
Ryan, Martin
Ogar, Michael
Doyle, Jeremizh
Riley, Jereniah
Kennedy, Andrew
Hamet, Patrick
Griffin, Dennis
Agan, John P

Serah

Fary

John

Age

31 p laborer on canal Ger

35n
¥in
2m
28 m
in
2Z®

27 n
2in

im
22n

3
-3
=
s = 8 » 3 5 % % 3 3 ¥ F ¥ N W X X T W I

28
Manbt

47 m cenal centractor
3 g = laborer
‘ L]

[t
=
=
¥ 3 £ 3 3 2% 3 3 T E R EEDEERINKLRET AT IS .

farmer

198 "

Ire

"
"
L
"
"
"
[l
"
"
L
"
»*
»
"
"
"
L]
"

PA

Ire
»

"y

Lol
b |
-

2% TP 2 =2 2 3 = r T®T ®EOE OE OB O3 oERoX

2000 NY

XY
IN

Sex

Page 89

Occupation Real Estate$  Born
filliam 1tm EN §
Y 12 ¢ Y
laura i0f - 8
Florente 51 .
Elects < 4 :
Yartha 6/% 1 5 ok
. or, R n fermer
k26 426 Barr, Hugh W 1
page 115 8 hugust 1850
ko7 L27 Melin, George 52w farmer 200 P'CY /v
Amme 42 1 :
| hm
e .
George 16m ;
John R :
¥artha 1% ¢ 3
James 12n :
Stewart bV ] 3
Fargaret 6t ;
Sriagit o1 Ire
Bridgit
i o H:;t 27 n farmer '
Timothy 250 : :
Jereaiah 2p 3
Catherine it E
Margerest e E
Patrick i5p -
k25 U429 Vaughan, Alexander 9 f&
ary 7% i
Ellen 151 .
Rhoda 11
Elizabeth 8f Ell
Hannah LS 4 b
Uiﬁi&n 5:16 1; 5
land
s .kl?mder 29m fermer koo El
Willis B 2n " i
Prudence 177 ek
Harthe 157 =t
Mzlinda 1é .4 .
b3t 431 Eade, John 28a * 7
e 281 :
Eliza kg :
Hannah 21 4
Lu;{ ; 4 :
Taylor, Thomas n
W32 432 Allen, ¥illian wp " oo "
Sarah 23 b8 . /v
Tucy g i
Wilten in .
Elizabeth 2L
19 23 1000 3 2
a1 1§ Ha; 60t Bod KY
S ?egr 32 m farmer 600 IN



(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - DAVIESS CO INDIANA STEELE TWP
Columns : Residence # Name

Lett, Alllce
Copelin, James
Wood, William
tilda
Devid
¥a tilda
Scudder, John
Elizabeth
Jameg
Emma

596 596

Charles
Hood, liathaniel
497 597 Singleton, Hundley
Martha
laura
Bryan, Jomm C
Edwards, Charles
Edwards, Henry
Elizabeth
Warmer, Adam
Maris
Sarah
Rupell, James
Mati

558 598
599 599

600 600
Martha

Mary
Hays, Ezekiel
25
601 601 Ragsdale, James
Susan
Hiram
Alfred
Lydls

Miles
Pitzgerald, William

Elijsh
Colbert, Julian

Total of Veale Township
No of inhablitante
> married within year
o sttending school
o over 20 years, cannot
read and write
I idiots
4 ingane parsens
= dwellinge vieited

Page 128 Steels Township

602 702. Houk, Jacod =
Sophronis
Adline

Grow, Adam
Froderick
John

Grow, GCeorge
Rome
Caeper
Shafer, Anthony
Llutz, John
Holland, Lewis
Badger, John
Begamon, Frederick
Shuckemend, Charlas
Snlder, Chariea
Seller, George
Trees, Jacob
Guyman, Leonard
Buber, William
Smith, John
Myers, William
Cagper
Swartz, Frederick
Lehigh, Charles
John
Stiger, Augusta
Hoard, Willlam
¥iller, Feter
WeCown, Nichclas
603 603 Martin, Michael
¥ary
John
Entheny
Mary A
Catherine
Bridget
!ﬁchul
Tgaret
Patrick
Ellen
Thomg
33

604 Eo4 Hill, Bernard
McGregor, Archibald
¥ellon, John
Wayne, Frarklin
Hutchingon, Gecrga P T
Elizabeth
Llaura
Georga E
James

Enilz A
Percell, Reuben M
Sarsh J
Winfisld T
Feuben
Walker, Zacherish
Louisa
Edwerds, Harriett

605 605

606 506

607 607

b B ¢

14w

30 » farmer 1
T

PO e ) = B M -
SRDYE S mwIl b Eon Fu el ARG BSOS R
HrareraBH el a8 0 3 D 3B g H e ey
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250 5
farmer

LA
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bt s
=3 ohao ona

158

30 hug 1850

34 m contracter on
Jg ; canal

16 m laborer
Hn
2

-

)
]

borer
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6/1

7/

carpenter

LI - Ay

Age

500

‘500

» 200

1

2RE Y
W oo o a

= g

re r/w

E

7R omEd 8 3 T T 3k 3P4 2ES v o4 o4 oA w

o own

borer on cenal Ire

Page 90

Occupation Real Estate$ Born
Cellins, Stephen 1B o farmer IN
Gotes, Hanry 2lm " M
608 608 Sullivan, Ellen 2t Ire
Mathew 12 m CAN
Catherine 7T PA
Bary €1 "
Timothy S5n 1L
Ellen i IN
Dolan, John s O Ire
0 Br{an. Jeremiah Zm . riw
609 609 Pemingtm, Jephthah ¥ 53 m * Xy ¥
Maria &t IN
640 610 Mowrey, Henry 22m ™
ElizAbeth 2t N o/w
Ben jamin b m "
Pennington, Jefferson 40m " "
611 611 Tommy, Ellas P . hm " B
Sarzh e KY rfw
612 612 Fanneh, Khoda 271 IN
Priesills 6 r -
613 613 Siatien; Hegekiah 55 m farmer 1700 SC r/w
Lydie 51 b
John b " a
Kary 3¢ kB
26 15 i7o0 2 6
Fage 129 31 Aug 1850
614 £14% Shown, NWieholes kD m contrector .54
Sarah T 3% £ i
John © 9m IN
Eliga J & ¢ i
Francis ¥ e "
Bass, John b5m KY
Howard, James M 2(2, : U KM
Cavin, Patrick - * Ire
Van Hoep, Shawn bt m * Hol
¥cGrain, Thomam Sn " 2
Hurley, Jersmiah JE m " Ire
£15 615 Zennett, John 24 m farmer IN r/w
Doress 26 £ NE
Rosanng i2 £ IN
indrew J 9m L}
Sarah J A L
Riley, William 16w = I
616 616 Coleman, Hammond 28m "™ YA /%
Sareh 30t =
Christopher ¢ ¥m el
John A 9m b
Andrew Em L
Hermond 2n s
617 €17 Lester, John ;E o " 1500 T
Mary £ ¥D
Thorag 2Xm " IN
Willlem 17w = 5
Robert BEIE *
61B 618 Pringle, John 3 m farmer 500 IN
Sarah 211 i
Thomas Zm "
619 619 Allen, Samuel 23m " ™
Loulsa 20 £ =
620 620 Lester, Willlam WBa 1 ™
Julis & b5 £ YA
Lewis H R m IN
621 621 Lester, Robert n ! 1000 T
Francese 32 f PA
Charles M 2m ™ IN
Rachel i9 £ L
Adem M ism Sef
Nancy L = B
28 1k 40 L o3
622 £22 Malker, Thomas 28 p farmer go0 IN
Jans 24 £ ™ rfw
William M Im N
e ul s 1300 ‘;‘N
623 623 Lester, Joseph 5 m
Rachel Ly £ " orfw
Loulee J I N
Abraham 20 m Wi
Willlam M iTm L
Sarah 4 131 (deaf & dumb) *
Mary E g f ®
624 €24 Lester, Abram 3 " VA
Jane bR 4 o
Abram A e 1000 IN
MeCormick, Minerva Hr XY
Thomas P igm * N
Sarah 171 v
¥artha 158 "
Elizabeth i1z =
625 €25 Crowley, John 35 m laborer on canal Ire r/w
Mary 21 1 2
Ann g1 NY
Hanry fm Can
Jehn im IN
Michael it w *
Grant, Thomas 2w " Ire v/w
Haragan, Daniel, -w " e
Fogarty, Fhillp r:g : T "
Tobin, James w E
Downey, James 2bm ™ i
Barry, James m " * rfw
626 626 Donahue, Michael 25w v *
lary, John Eg 5 " /W
Mahoney, James w " S
627 627 Hagarty, Daniel e -
Catherine 8.1 i
Ellen sfi2 t N
628 £2B Pitts, Stephen 28w " "
Sarah 191 .



(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - DAVIESS CO INDIANA STEELE TWP

Columns : Residence # Name

625 629 Neldrone, ¥Willlam
Hancy
23
Fage 130 31 Aug 18350
£30 630 Murphy, Jerealzh
Jodnna

Fargaret
Long, James
Hays, Timothy
Looning, Michael
Dailey, Michael
Bazzle, John
Savage, Kane

Thomas
Garvin, Patrick
Murphy, Willlam
Lumbord, James
Stillon, Samuel
landers, Richard
0'Connexr, Michael
Dugan, Robert
Coffey, Mathew
Sullivan, Mathew
Mahoney, Jeremlah
Hurley, Jeremiah
Stillon, Henry
sadigen, Thomas

¥ary

£33 631

Burke,

John
James

¢'Bryan, Patrick

HeGraw,

32 632

§33  Kennedy

Jeremiah

Johnson, Chesley

MaTy
Joshua
Hilljam
Anerica

+ Bicheel
Cornelius

Naney
&34 lucas, Resd
S5a
Mary
Partha
31
3 Sept 1850

635 635 OGCoainman, Jimes
Aleander D
Luey A

Mary

Enoch
William
Naney

536 636 Huland, Tyrs
Eliza
Thomas
Anne
Lucas
Rebecca
Fary

Hargis, William
Elizabeth
Ben jamin
John
Sugan
Willlam R
Huldah H
Nancy M
¥ary J
Charles F
Elizabeth

Sumnera, Ceorge
Jas;rﬁ
Thorss, Willlam

Ary A

Bruce, Spekr A
Catherine
John
Jane

David
Lignt, Rupel

4
Kinkle,

Ma

637 637

638 638
637 £3%

£k ko

Cunmings, Janes
2k

4 Sept 1850

641 G4t Simonson, Isalah
Fa.
Alfred
Mary
Jogepn
=11
grat;:xl.in
atherine

642 642 Kelty, James
Ma

2k
20
18

9

o

oy

P . e 8 e
botort ettt SN vt

A e e R
LA R0 O DS A Eos B

-
T

e

P e o =8
D ST S A0 L 0B A R A

Age
n IN
z -
oo 3 8
? laborer on canal IRE
- 4 IN
2 Ire
e .
- "
5 . "
P "
S "
Rl "
5 - -
o "
ol -
" -
W .
a v "
el -
. .
5 -
n " "
. -
i -
. " -
'3 R 7
n IN
;i DE
o Ire /v
2 w5l
W KY
T v
. .
n .
r "
B Ire
. . H
¢ YA
n farner 30 SC r/w
™ -
£ N =
r H
30 v -6
m fRrmer 1000 KY
K " I
r M
¥ .
. "
b 5
T M
» farmer 200 KY r/w
T IH.
Y M
T L |
] i
T -
e »
= Tarmer 4100 KY
£ ™
n " IR
n " T
I " omy
» " il
E .
- o
T tos
= i
v -
n * el
= et
5 .
T .
a - kDD KY
T YA
{ IN
T -
- -
= =
i N
n N oo W
F XY r/w
.1 I8 =
e »
= B
] 2
8 6000 2 11 3
w farwer Joo IN
t L
i "
T i
i .
n
g -
P -
n " K
¥ .
% " IN =
n " s |
T B
m IR |
T plet -
] GITE
- *ow

Sex

Occupation Real Estate$  Born
643 643 Hulasnd, Hirvam W = farmer 1000 KY
Elizabeth 24 T In
Elias E5 . 0
Susan 3f 2
Henry 6/12 m -
Gresnwood, Jemes K 2om * r/w
64l 644 Bruce, Sarzh b or 8oo YA /%
Nathan 28m " <
Jamen 20 " W
Chadiah 18w 2
&45 645 Brown, John B 2& n " v/
Elizabeth 24 r 4
William Sm 2
Cynthiz i o 4 i
George W Zmn E
Helless L/1e 1t
646 646 MHeart, Ralph Lbm " 2000 KC r/x
Boyles, Hiran 2w " 2 S
.‘Imﬂ\mi 22 . S
647 647 laveley, Ignatius "
Y g fon Bt IX
¥ary 15 £ :
Alfred i3 a o
Frunklin 0w :
Louisa A
35 12 4100 g 9
648 645 Lance, Willlam ¥ 29 m farmer N
Jerusha 22 ¢ CK /¥
Foster, Prancis ik o i
¥agls, John 95 . /v
£49 649 Herrington, Willlam 23m " KY
Rebecca 23 I
Sarah A L/12 £ s
650 650 Colbert, Pielding 2w * S
MHartha wr i
& £ H‘l%}iul i = tractio IRE
lgan, e ® contractor on
SRRAOE S mcimn 29 b canal IN
Kary A i1 : L}
Jehn 7 L
Sarah E g/1z t .
Toole, John 30 m laborer Ire
Sxelly, Bicholas 2w " i
Achison, Enanuel bm * KY
Grimes, Jimes R ] Ire r/w
Mzhon, Michasl 2w * 2
KcGilouth, Patriek 2bm "
Fitigerald, Martin 2= " 7
Hurphy, James 27 m
Foy, Peter 5 b BT "
€52 652 Leddy, Patrick 39 " e "
Brinnecn, John dmw " 2
Piper, Willlam iim " Ger
Hooney, James o * Ire
672 672 Reeve, John 2% m farmer N ay
Jang 19:f Y oEy
673 6§73 Huland, Simpsen 2a 2000 TN
Elizabeth 2T IL
Hancy 4 IN 5
Elizabeth 61 s
Laurs } i o o
James iInm el
676 £76 Caywood, Mowmes B " 1500 YA
Hannah 20 f IN
¥ary I8t i
Joseph 1w e
Louisa 61 .
George im =
Johngon, Robert Bn " s
675 675 Cofling, Joseph 40 m laborer Ger
Hart, Willism v S s
Bager, Christian Hw " Ger
Swariz, Prederick 8= " *
Shomones, Frederick w * =
Kline, Conrad 2w " .
676 676 Everett, John 27 m furmer .
Hane: 25 r » rfw
Willlam ¥ kn %
Vary E 21 =
Janmes H in o
677 677 Faith, Henry BN " oK
Caroline ot KY
Lavim iLf Mo
Thonas 9m IN
Jehn P bm *
Lucinds 3T 2
Martha b o 3
28 19 3s8n 2 1o 2
6 Sept 1850
£78 678 Walte, Charles B 30 m farner 500 Y2
Elizabeth I 5C
Lucas; Jane 52 : 4 Ire
Robert nm " sC
Jemima 19 1K
William ina ky
679 679 Faith, Jonn P o * rfw
Llucinda 28 ¢ Ark
Hiran = IN g
Tucinda ) 552 3 »
Mitchell, Rebecca it |
Faith, William K 2lm *® i
680 680 KHuland, William 2w * 300 *
¥argaret 20 f O r/w
Hancy 1 hi |
Hoover, Wicholas STm £Y /v
Childers, Toliver I " rfw
681 681 MHuland, Nelson Zg n " )
Cynthia e 0 4 .
tary 1T .
Hoever, Jehn 2Zn T ¥

Page 91



(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - DAVIESS CO INDIANA ELMORE TWP
Columns : Residence# Name Age Sex Occupation Real Estate$ Born

Ketcham, Mary C it N 853 853 Dulien, William Im ™
Jagob 12n ] Elism P NG /v
i 8
James iin i 54 854 Kinneman, Jacob M 2 Fa
Nancy E 0r " Elizabeth 20 ¢ ™ /W
Solomon 7n L aniaant ai bine 2k 17 8700 7
837 B37 Smiley, James 20 o farmer " nfy ptemver 28, 185
Rhoda 2t . B55 B35 Kammer, Mary 65 1 1000 VA
Martha 20 1 « zfw Jonathan 27 m farmer 150 IN
838 838 Moore, James Jr Zlm " 20 - Enoch 25w ° "
Irene 20 1 " Jene 22t * r/w
Foiggeia 29 % Physict - o i ;
u Physiclan n
533 R30Sk oi‘:iﬁ:ggh 1&2 4 i VA t/w ; : Co::ts. Jameg izn N
Davis, Hester 1b ¢t N 56 856 Ellison, George W k9 m Blacksmith xe
David 1= * Rancy 26 ¢
" Joseph M 18m i s
Taylor, James 5 2m Os thorine ot I
Smiley, Margaret 281 ™ r/w i 5.2 =
840 B40 Price, John 28 m farmer 150 XYy ™ Exily 197 1
Cathering 18 1 e Melinds it .
841 841 Scollet, nghohs 40 » laborer E‘rs ¥arsh, John 22 m o
ia;t;:ennu 1; : 3 Bsr 85y Bar“’s’; Lucinda 22 7 N
o ephen -
ghz 842 Mitchell, John 38 n farmer XY v/w ml’h ; . ;
Meresret 42 1 n Eliza 3/13 ¢ =
Tsriel 17 = JIN 858 858 Kelly, Tarence . 40 m laborer on IRE
23 18 j600 2 & 10¢ ¥artha T okoy Jeansl " r/fw
843 BU43J Bugher, Henry 65 A farmer 350 PA gtg:l{ea fg n ¢ ;
Toretta g5 1 KY Ba;net i m = 3
¥William X 25n " * e { '; 3
Lorella 18e : Bridget i 5
fon 158 ! 859 859 Moan, Patrick 3 a .
Alonzo 1= IN Mary 31 2
Vest, Simeon 27w X Catherine 2 ¥ n
Ceorge 25w " BED  B&D Maxey, Jesse B 12 m farmer 7
Davis, Riley 20m 5 Alethia 2 Ky
Thomas 22n " Sarah 91 b
Limbarker, George W 2Zm KY Judith Er w
Dinking, Sylvester 2)nm N Jogephine 4t “
Bhly BL4 Smith, Owen 41 m lzhorer on IRE Maria 1r .
Bridget Bt camal *  r/w 861 B61 Mugh, Abeslom im " = rhw
Mary L8 4 . Mary 20t PA
Riley, Philip 28r " - Janes N - 23 » e 3 :
Sheham, Michael i o i
Iynch, Corneleus bom " . Page 147 28 September 1850 ®
Shin, Andrew m " = 862 B62 Elnore, Stephen T
McNalley, Patrick ag n " i Ruth b6 ¢ o
Petor | s i3 John 20w * I
Doplen, Michael o " " Isaac 8n * S
Hernessy, Thomas Ve " " Maa.-y‘ 13 1 g
Burns, Jameg ibm * . William D Bn &g
Carrigan, Michael i " Abraham 7w i g
Cogan, John F¥m " " Cereline 15 7 "
Bhs 845 Liveley, Patriek 30 m leborer on IRE B63 863 Bunker, Jeremish :6 m sut contracter gﬁ
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(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - DAVIESS CO INDIANA ELMORE TWP
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(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - GREENE CO INDIANA CASS TWP

Columns : Residence # Name Age Sex Occupation Real Estate $
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(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - GREENE CO INDIANA CASS TWP
Columns : Residence # Name Age Sex Occupation Real Estate$ Born
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(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - GREENE CO INDIANA JEFFERSON TWP
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Thomas P I
1 ,fals 26 M " Ly
Hanngn, Patr'mk v - s
: Colling, Jumes il -
411-411  Trayler, Lewis . 0 K 5.0, tmv}l?/!af‘!v';
» Har, Campbell 3¢ P Ol'_w {-m- 1/21/1830)7
+ Buery Lujow 4 un
A th:ann.e 1g g o ns”«7 LY
irassy . =
ehum h"""ﬁ, P iuat‘ ;%u"“
412-512  Terpey, Solomon Si0v9 35 ¥ Irelard confractor
1 Elizabeth Hor *
Torpey, Wm. deesBee 33 M ¢
Burke, Michasl & 0c o boss
» WE. 22 M canaler
Obrine, Michael - F 7 (A
Ryns, Michasl 27 "
Ri::. Michael W or -
Sullivan, Edward R a "
Naughton, John 3% 8 -
Caughlin, James 2 N ¢
Buckley, Timothy b e T
Weleh, Patrick i, S
Kehan, Jersmiah Lo
Fitzpatrick, John o9 N "
Delana, Patrick 23 O
Burck, Michael Jr T
PSounuTengan, Jm!(l.okd&ﬁ“’lh) “3 Wi e
Conners, Fatrick L
Tmey, Jakn 23 ¢ i
Casey, Wi, * 3 N -
Hawlay, Daniel g K
Eagrnug, Thomas 3 N
Riley, Bamona LW
Blackwill, Henry el
Glynn, Michasl ° L i
Medndrew, Anthomy 25 K "
McGrath, Thomas 35 ¥ "
D 1y%,, Richard 37 X
Conway, Terence &2 K -
Hervil, James A k2 N
Smith, James nE "
Glynn, Patrick ¥ N -
. Patrick 23 8 "
{zon't on next page)
M2 (con't)
%m. Fatrick A |
Murnzey, Jeremiah jg M E.reland
Hahoney, James 29 K v
Sullivan, Michael 6.M -
Melarty, Patrick 27 R "
Maorton, Wm. i i G ]
Gomnolly, Michaei s 0K e
et 5.y g1
Nee,) L "
813413 Snilts, Wichas] I£eT- EH L N wc far
« Racal Aaehe) Li431- 794736 B n' Pplad Bae st
¥
v Aghley ﬁ ; EM
1 Amars 1 E v
» John . S
1 Bdwarg i A
' 'r‘?ilip Bomo=
Clarsnce 1 )
G1bau1k Young, gng.ki; Ticali o $aco X 5; 2. farmer
: Fo. i
+ Aaron 12 B Ind
» #eshington g W
 Jaged o B
13815 dyast, ‘5‘5"“ 4 i P hew Fasnas 74 1942+ 539
REL, Patesy o Byse S P R.C, wid ¢ Tmes] s
! Barthenid 5 F Tee et
+ ¥athaniel oM v
Fanny 3 P
o Tulsn i p =
816416  Tarvin, gglimr da¢ 33 M ¥y  contracter
' aha 3 K2
Rardon, Michael 3
Gallahan, Patrick 5% : jreid ?u\aler
Kockan, Daniel 25 Miav P
Tomnelly, John 3 K. "
Keck, Danisl 35 Rxn .
Tappe, Fohn Box - "
Bammoyrs, John 27 Mia~ W
Hols, David 71 o "
WLML.JMH % x - .
Ryan, Jonas o B 2
Kegria, John N K o= ¥
Smith, Nicholas $ackimth 27 ¥ = s
Y v Patrick can 2 N 5
Gomsrfort, Patrick 4w - i
Flymn, W, % M - o
Rylus, ¥oah vl i
Hays, Philip 2% N o %
Mahu, John 0 s
Gormufont, Thomas Ji X " »
Morris, John N -
Dewdan, Michasl eg - 1
Heorley, Henry S -
Maner, John R K = i
cﬂ:ltex. Emh L H- " v
nelep, John 2 N TolsxmaRy,
Jesse, Richard 28 N xmm =)

TWPS

Age Sex

Occupation Real Estate$ Born
F17-417  MeNubty, Patrick b M Ireland boarding mester
» Elizabetn L
L 1 Nancy b
s Elizabeth 15 B Ind
Rurphy, Patrick 28 M
EL8-418  Oderal, Herar®) b6 M Irelend boarding master
; Gatherine 2. s ST
s Nancy 15 P Imd
) Yerar?[uras) 1K -
¥eDrenan, Anthomy cam 29 M |aIreland
Teley, John - 28 N~
Pitygrala, Nichael . 4 M
+ Henry " 35 W Germany
b1g-419  Duttonm, Richard 27 M Ind  voarding-house
» Saney P -
, Richard ol EE
Rackenur, Adam Lo 2k ¥ Garmany
Salden, Dolant W G i )
Pitygrala, James i 27 M Ireland
Muneder, Richael 2l Mis”
Binn, Barney . % K "
Caurley, John w i
“Telan, Wichael %ﬁ ¥
Rea-y, David - % "
avi Stephen 25 M
y Timothy A F
Barney, Batfay 2} N -
Ahaley, Jemes " o T
Convay, Bdward . N
Sheim, Michasl o Wox
bao-420  Lounback, John b3 M Germany boarding-house
{Loderbach) Bary b2 B *
v John 12K Ind
Sholes, Lewis an 41 Mja Ireland
Shaw, Patrick % N
Loanback, Kicholas 37 Mt
Thompaon, Robert . 2K -
Dutton, Green .. N Mpiat
Forgaty, Bichael . Eé | B
Ryan, Patrick o 6 K "
© tto, John " e
Franklin, Ramgsy 27 Mt
Pisher, Stephen . b3 ¥ o
Algus, Avon " 22 K~
421521  Conway, Michael 43 W *  bearding-house
+ Ellzabeth by P *
+ James i F I
y Mary 130 =
Flemm, James L ¥ K Germany
L‘omny Leanara? g M .
y, Herry 36 % Treland
hgz-baz Nvendrksen' Alfred F Bee 28 ¥ Ind boarding-house
, Winay? T
» Tririen? B *
Dial, Bter? cow 27 ¥ Germany
Affet, John “ U
Dyer, John - g
Menhorne, Michael . o N =
k22-422 (con't) boarding-house
ey, John Tty 24 M jatna
e Rardon, Enoch - 33 M "
Cooplin, Josaph " 27 Mpr
Forngo, Hobert " 31 M Carmary
Whaley, John . 23 N g
Hplan, Pagslck ¥ 4o M »
Ryan, Marton 2 31 M Irsland
Oherin, Dennis - 26 M/~
7 a Pi " 21 W
mc I ETIO i n:thu 3 ‘;g & Eﬂﬂw
n "
MeGuire, J“eaw % 27 M
Milagon, John % L1 M o
Pord, John .. 23 M/zIreland
Conway, James " 27 M ' !
Temple, John a gz M it
Fanchu, John i Mg~
PUncuses, Grago o 38 M Germany

End, of Weshingten, Patoka, and
Madi

aon

2823 inhabitants
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(Partial) 1850 CENSUS - PIKE CO IND. WASHINGTON / PATOKA / MADISON

TWPS
Columns : Residence# Name Age Sex Occupation Real Estate$ Born
IN THE TOWN OF PETERSBURG IN THE TOWN OF PETERSBURG
=73 Canal Workers 73-73 Canal Workers (oon't)
Uenovan, Timethy 3 H  Ireland contrastor Michan, Patrick 31 ¥ Irsland
» Pater E o alark Etpton, Joseph 9 Miz"
' gatridéh ;g iﬂ i Hurley, James ok
5 I:mi £ ‘Cowns, John 2) Miz"
, W, 3% M nl
, Dennis 9w Socker, Wm. g w »
Hays, Wichael 32 M Ireland Barrey, Julvis 27 Mjar
Ragrath, John 23 Mya” ‘ Maston, Luther dfa. fn b 3 M Ky
« Patrick 35 K - Shangniss, John 28 Mz I11
s Columbus 13 NJR: Mahi, Luphn 8 K "
Donoche, J‘ﬂEn N s Neel, Patrick 27 Mi=r
MoKendry, Cormelas 28 X John i »
Nalse, W, 21 M/t P R
Dristsl, Patrick 35 4 e i b b5 M
! mimat EE Mia o Welch, Edward I wia
) Hichae K " Quinn, Patrick ig TS
Cantery, Fatrick 33 M Onele, Patrick Wiz "
Griffith, Barthusy o Casey, Nichael 27 Wi v
Rivion, James 28 M " Hius, Michael Jr 35 M =
Orew, Marmel R Minhley, John 23 N
MeALutiff, Jeremiah 31 M2 Barrey, John o
Bradey, Cornslas 26 % m“-;y'ﬁ 2o Bis
Surnery, Csrnelan 23 Mpiaw e G 28 Ma
MeCarty, James 25 it Bucknath, Michasl 22 m "
» Michael 2h M pa ™ Whitten, John ; MR T
; Charles HS5 At Dillin, Isasc 28 M i Ind
Hurd, Richard 0 n - 2 Bua 5 Livan, Martin 33 ¥ Ireland
Otrine, John Sr 3 M Raver, Owen 23 Mja”
' g:bnl-:rr gi ;ps .:Ll Caglaw, James 9 W -
v Charles I
Curd, Stephen 27 Mia Ireland Shushaw, John 35
Craaly, Doininich 2 + Biram? 9 N e
Filinger, Samuel 2h My + Timothy 30 Mpan
Noland, John 35 M. . Cashner, Bat &
graﬂyéﬁ.!aunig ;‘9' :n : Sha, Daniel 23 Mie"
nynch?, Can IH Bucls "
Cabing, Manules 24 K" cat%eg: Pi:?iu gh Epﬁ. #
Stavan, Patrick 5 M3~ Shughughupy?, Daniel b ¥
Suiney, Peter L iie ‘.iml' o
ulavan, Owen 3% Wi g o 27 M2y
. Jeremian gk Rairden, Daniel 22 & Ireland
, David 3 M Griffin, Michael 27 Ria ™
y Gornalas 28 Hia " ¢ Patrick 2 N -
. v Daniel 3 Rt Shaw, John 2] My2*
Sullivan, Daniel ﬂs o Cartig, John 46 Worr
8 4T gt M % _m?' ward 2 M -
Redn?, Cornelis b3 Mis Murey?
Rigein, John 2 M * 1‘
Ravghtte, Patrick 28 M "
+ Michael 25 M.
Hart, Jeremiah ;E T
Mistechy, Michael Miw .
Millins, Denis F L
Coniley, John B u =
Collings, Donis 28 M+ *

{con't next page)
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Columns

1850 CENSUS

I1B50 Cenigus {

(Partial) 1850/1860 CENSUS

: Residence # Name  Age
- VIGO/CLAY CO IN
Vo County
i Cimalt Tnuates,
I Kech Tondin.
m.m Pl !':l“""d-g&“j
1, fusciis nmfu., Boat Gl
1 Thurad Dodhoen 9‘”"1":}
‘aemm W Boodomam
!| bﬂ,m.., Comal Grrdiaakin
| Chalis Houpran Bond Bunelidon
l‘ Ofkgametan Hamnia ¢
]|. Biumimn (aval Condanetor
‘I }}Q.t;\&u)’ gﬂ?ﬂ“ M J:'= aelon.
{ Copv Counry .
! Lok fach: Kuasgen
|
il
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Sex

Occupation Real Estate $

Born

1860 CENSUS -VANDERBURGH CO IN

{BL0 cedsus

1
11l Vinsperauass Counmy

1| EvARSViALE

tdnrrick Couniy
ML €85 BURGH

CAnpBELE  Toudhise /P

;}m:mm

i Gased County

H CorumBin TownsHP

?"m Revta

L asminamn Towasiir

CiliVige  Csuwry

Tewae Haing

Ennal] briche

i

B T g e
| o Aot
I bl Pl

=

Fud Sl i
us_tz.;.b,bw 37 Comal Cotleckn

TR L S TR CMAMM
éﬁu‘? Webda 3 Cauad Boud Toddsa
| Bhamas (OBulibad 30 Conok Bk Gestdin  Fhrsnaglioma

Comal Besk Copliin

Comat Basderam

CM(\E ‘Bm:l’mn

Comal (b

Chiiat - Tty
457 T
Tiiiic WE Covatt



